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DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise noted or the coniext requires, all references in this report to:

ITC Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries
* “ITC Great Plains” are references to ITC Great Plains, LLC, & wholly-owned subsidizry of ITC Grid Development, LLC;
¢ “ITC Grid Development™ are references to 1TC Grid Development, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary £ ITC Holdings;
* “Green Power Express” are references 1o Green Power Express LP, an indirect vholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Holdings;
» “ITC Holdings” are references to ITC Holdings Com. and not any of its subsidiaries:
« TITC Midwest” are references to ITC Midwest LLC, 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Holdings,
« “ITCTransmission” are veferences fo International Transmission Company, a wholly-ocwned subsidiary of ITC Holdmgs;
* “METC” are references to Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MTH;
* “MISC Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” are references to [TCTransmission, METC and ITC Midwest together;
¢ “MTH™are references to Michigan Transco Holdings, LLC, the sole member of METC and an indirect wholiy-owned subsidiary of ITC
Holdings;
» “Regulated Operating Subsidiaries™ are references to ITCTransmission, METC, ITC Midwest and I'TC Great Plains fogether; and
= CWe” “our™ and “us” are references to ITC Holdings together with a1l of its-subsidianies,

COther definitions

¢« “Consumers Energy™ are references to Consumers Bnergy Company, & wholly-owned subsidiary of CM$ Energy Corporation;

* “Detroit Edison™are references to The Detroit Bdison Company, & wholly-owned subsidiary of DTE Energy;

= “DTE Energy” are references to DTE Energy Company;

= “Entergy™ are references 1o Enlergy Corporation:

» “FERC® are references o the Federal Energy Regulatéry Commission;

* “EPA” are references to the Federal Power Act;

¢ “1CCT are references to the Hlinois Commerce Commission;

* CIP&L” are references to Interstate Power and Light Company, an Alliant Energy Corporation subsidiary;

> “J8O” are-references to Independent System Operators;

= YIUB” are references to the Towa Utilities Board; .

= MROCT are referenices to the Kansas Corporation Cormission;

» “EV™ are references to Kilovolts (one kilovoll equaling 1,000 volts);

* “kW™ are references tokilowatts {one kilowatt equaling 1800 watts):

 “MISO” are references to the Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., 2 FERC-approved RTO which oversees the
operation of the bulk power transmission system for a substantial portion of the Midwestern. United States and Muanitoba, Canada, and of
which ITCTransmission, METC and ITC Midwest are members;

* “MOPSC” are references to the Missouri Public Service Commission;

< “MPSC™ are references to the Michigan Public Service Commission:

= “MPUC” are references fo-the Minnesots Public Utilities Commission;

= “NIW™ are references 1o megawatts (one megawatt equating 1,006,000 wattsy;

© “NERC” areteferences to the North American Eleciric Reliability Corporation;

)
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* “NOLs” are references to net operating loss carryforwards for income taxes;

+ “OCC” are veferencas to Oklahoma Cormporation Commission;

« “RTO” are references to Regional Transmission Organizations; and

* “SPP” are referencesto Southwest Power Pocl, Inc., a FERG-approved RTO which oversees the aperation of the bulk power
transmission system for a-substantial portion of the Seoth Central United States, and ef which ITC Ureat Plains isa member.
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PART1

FTEM 1. BUSINESS.
Drverview

Our business consists primarily of the electric transmission operations of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, Tn 2002, ITC Holdings was
incorporated in the State of Michigan for the purpose of acquiring ITCTransmission. TTCTransmission wes originaliy formed in 2001 as a
subsidiary of Detroit Edison, an electric utility subsidiary of DTE Energy, and was acguired in 2005 by ITC Holdings. METC was originally
formed in 2001 as a subsidiary of Consumers Energy, an electric and gas utility subsidiary of CM$ Energy Corporation, and was acquired in
2006 by FTT Holdings. 1TC Midwest was formed in 2007 by ITC Holdings to acquire the transmission assets of IP&L in December 2007, ITC
Great Plams:awas formed in 2006 by ITC Holdings and became 2 FERC-jurisdictional entity in 2009 after acquiring vertain electric transmission
assets-in Kansas, We operate high-voltage systems in Michigan's Lower Peninsula. and portiens of lows, Minnesotz, llinois, Missouri and
Kansgs that transmit electricity from generating stations to local distribution facilities connected to our systems.

Cur business strategy is fo operate, maintain and Invest in transmission infastructure i order to enhance system infegrify and reliability, to
reduce transmission constraints and to allow new generating reéscurces 1o interconnect o our transmission systems. We also are pursuing
development projects not within our existing sysicms, which are also intended to improve overall grid reliability, reduce transmission
eongtraints and facilitate intercennections of new generating resourses, as well as to enhance competitive wholesale sledtricity markets,

As electric transmission-wtilities with rates regulated by the FERC, owr Regulated Operating Subsidiaries earn revenues through tariff rates
charged “for the use of their electric transmission systems by our customers, which include nvestor-owned utilities, municipalities,
cooperatives, power marketers and aiternative energy suppliers. As-independent transmission companies, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries
are subject to rate regulation-only by the FERC. The rates charged by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are established using cost-based
formula rate templates s discussed in “Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Cost-Based Formula Rates with True<Up Mechanism.”

Development of Business

We are actively developing transmission infrastrueiuee required to meet reliability needs dnd emerging long-term energy policy. Our long-
term growth plan mcludes continued {nvestment in current transmission systems, generator imtercomnections, and our ongoing development
prajects. Refer to “ltem 7 Management's Disoussion and Analysis.of Financial Condition and Results of Cperations - Capital Investment and
Operating Results Trends™ for additional details about our five-yeat capital investinent program totaling 34.2 billion for the period 2012
through 2016. In addition, we have entered into-definitive agreements whereby the electiic transmission business of Entergy will be merged
with & wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Holdings {("Entergy Transaction") as discussed under "ltem 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results-of Operations—Capital Project Updates and Other Recent Developments.” Binally, refer to the discussion of
risks associated with ouwr strategic development opportunities in “Hem 1A Risk Factors — Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries® actual capital
expenditures may be lower than planmed, which would decrease expected rate base and therefore our revenues. Inaddition, we expect to Invest
in strafegic development oppertunities ic ismprove the efficiency and reliability of the transmission grid, but-we cannot assure you thet we will
be able to initiate or complete any of fisse investments.”

Curvant Transmission Sysfems

We expect to invest approximately $1.6 billion from 2012 through 2016 at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries in order to maintain and
replace the current transmission infrastructure, enhance system integrity and reliability and accommodate load growth,

Generator Interconneciions

We expect o invest approximately $0.9 billion from 2012 threugh 2016 w0 develop and build trensmission. infrastructure to suppert
generator interconnections.
In 2010, we recelved MISO approval of the Thumb Loop Projest which is primarily located in 1TC Transmission’s region, The Thumb Loop

Project is a 140-mile, double-circuit 345 kV transmission line:and related substations that will serve as the backbone of the transmission system
needed to accommodate future wind development projects inthe Michigan counties of Tuscola, Huron, Sanilac and St. Clair.

Baged on the anticipaied growth of generating resources, we also foresee the need to construct additonal fransmission fecilities that wil
provide interconnection opportunities for those wind facitities. The backbone transmission network, fransmission for wind interconnection and
for interconnection of ofher generating fecilities may provide additional investment opportunities,
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Development Profects

We expect fo Invest approximately $1.7 billion from 2012 through 2616 to construct our portions of various development projects that we
are ourrently advancing in the South Central and North Central regions of the countty. We are pursuing strategic development opportunities for
transmission investments related io upgrading the exdsting transmission grid and regional transmission facilities, primarly to improve overall
grid reliability, reduce transmission constraints, enharce competitive markets and facilitate interconnections of new generating resources,
including wind generation and other renewable resources,

South Ceniral Region

We have pursued the opportunity to invest in two projects in Kangas, through ITC Great Plains, known as the Spearville-Knoll-Axtel]
ransmission project (the “KETA Project”) and fhe Kansas V-Plan Project transmission profect running from the Spearville substation fo
Medicine Lodge, Kansas.

Additionally, ITC Great Plaips is in advanoced stages of construction for the Hugo to Valliant Project in Oklahoma. ITC Great Plains has
established a formula rate for these three projects and other projects within the SPP region.

Morth Central Region

In 2009, we announced the Green Power Express project, consisting of transmission line segments that would facilitate the movement of
power from- the Dakotas, Minnesota and lowa to Midwest Ioad centers tha: demand engrgy. Since the annowncement of the Green Power
Express project, MISO undertock its Regional Generation Outlet Study ("RGOS™} 1o promote investments. in new regional fransmission
infrastrucinre and implemented #ts Muli-Value Praject (“MVP™) cost dllocation methadology that belter-afign the costs of MVPs with the
benefits associated with them. MISO's RGOS and MVP processes provide a channe! for the Green Power Express project, or its underiving
segments, to move forward through the planning approval process as MVPs. In December 2011, MISO: approved the first portfolio of MVPs
identifield through the RGOS which includes porfions of four MV Py that we intend-to build, own and operate. The four MVEs aré loeated in,
south central Minnesota, portions of fows, southwest Wisconsin, #nd northeast Missouri,

Segments

We have one reportable segment consisting of our Regulated Opserating Subsidiaries. Additionally, we have other subsidiazies focused
primarily on business developrient activities and 3 holding company whose activities include corporate debi and equity Tinancings and general
corperate activities. A more detailed discussion of our reportable segment, inciuding financial irnformation about the segment, is included in
Note 18 to the sonsolidated financial staterents.

Gperations

As transmission-only ¢ompanies, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries function as conduits, allowing for power from generators to be
transmitied to local distribution systems either entirely through their own systems.or in sonjunction with neighboring transmission systems.
Third parties then transmit power through these locai disiribution systems fo end-use consumers. The transmission of electricity by our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is a central function to the provision of electricity to residential, commercial and industrial end-use
censumers, The operations perforined by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries fall into the following categories:

* asselplanning;

* engineering, design and construction
* ‘maintenance; and

 real time operations.

Asset Plonning

Our Asset Planning group ases detailed system models and long-term load forecasts to develofr our system gxpansion capital plans. The
expansion plans identify projects that would address potential future reliability issues and/or produce economic savings for customers by
eliminating constrainis,

Asset Planning works closely with MISO and SPP in the development of our system expansion capital plans by performing technical
evaluations and detailed studies. As the regional planning authorities, MISO and §PP approve regiondl system Improvement plans which
inciude profects to be constructed by their members, including ocur Regnlated Operating Subsidiaries.

Lngineering, Deslgn and Construction

Our Engineering, Design and Construction group is responsible for design, equipment specifications, maintenange plans and project
engineering for capital, operation and maintenance work, We work with outside contractors to perform some of our engineering and design and
all of our construction, but retein internal technical experts whe have experience with respect to the
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key elements of the transmission system such. as substations, lines, equipment and protective relaying systems.
Maintenance

We develop and track preventive maintenance plans o promote safe and reliable systems. By performing preventive maintenance on our
assets, we can minimize the need for resctive maintenance, resulting in improved teliability. Crur Regolated Operating Subsidiaries contracy
with Utility Lines Construction (“ULC™), which is a division of Asplundh Tree Expert Co., to perform the majority of thelr maintenance. The
agreement provides us with access to an experienced and scalable workforce with knowledge of our system at an established rate. In January
2012, we gave notice to ULC that we intend to terminate the agreement for all of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries upen the conclusion of
the six month notice period stipulated in the contracts, We are in the process of negotiating and expect to enter Into new agreements with the
same supplier prior to the end of the notice period and do not anticipate any disruption in maintenance services.

Real Time Operations

System. Gperations. From-our operations facility in Novi, Michigan, transmission systemn operators continuoushy monitor the performance of
the transmission systems of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, using software and communication systems te perform analysis to
plan for contingencies and maintain security and relisbility following any unplanned -events on the system. Transmission system operators are
also responsible for the switching and protective tagging function, taking equipment in and out of service 1o ensure capital construction projects
and maintenance programs can be completed safely and reliably. Similar system operations services for ITC Great Plaing will be provided as
new transmission-lines are placed in service.

Local Balancing Authority Operater. Under the functional centrol of MISO, ITCTransmisgion and METCO operate their electric
wansmission systems as a cembined Local Balancing Authority (“LBA™) area, known as the Michigan Eleciric Coordinated Systems
(“MECS™), From our operations facitity in Novi, Michigan, our employees perform the LBA functions as ouflined in MISO's Balancing
Authority Agreement. These functions include actual interchange data administration and verification and MECS LBA ares emergency
procedure implementation and coordination. JTC Midwest and ITC Grear Plains are not responsible for LBA functions for their respective
assels:

Operating Contracts

Sur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have varfous operating contracts, including numerous interconnection agreements ‘with generation
and transmission providers that address terms and conditions of interconnection. The following significant agreements exist at our Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries;

FrTransmission

Detroit Edison operates. the electric distribution system to which ITCTransmission’s transmission system connects. A set of three operating
contracts sefs forth the terms and conditions rélated to Detroit Edison™s and ITCTransrsission’s engoing working relationship. These contracts.
include the following:

Master Uperating Agreement. The Master Operating Agreement (the “MOA™), dated as of February 28,2003, governs the primary day-
to~-day operational responsibilities of ITCTransmission and Detroit Bdison and will remain in effect until terminaced by mutual agreement of
the parties (subject o any required FERC approvals) unless earlier terminated pursuant to its terms. The MOA identifies the control area

. coordination services that ITCTransmission is obligated te provide to Detroit Edison. The MOA also reguires Detroft Edison to provide
certain geweration-based support services to ITCT ransmission.

Generator-Interconnection und Operation Agreement. Dietrolt Edison and ITCTransmission entered into the Generator Interconnection
and Operation Agreement {the “GIOA™), dated as of February 28, 2003, in order to-establish, re-cstablish and maintain the direct electricity
interconnection of Defroit Edisen’s electricity generating assets wih [TCTransmission’s transmission system for the purposes of
transmitting ¢lectric power from and to the electricity generating facilities. Unless otherwise terminated by mutual agreement of the parties
(subject to any required FERC approvals), the GIOA will remain in effect until Detroft Bdison elects to ierminate the agreement with
respectto a particular unit or until a particular unit ceases commercial operation. :

Coordination and Interconnection Agreement, The Coordination and Interconnection Agreement (the “CIA™), dated as of Februgry 28,
2003, governs the rights, obligations and responsibilities of ITCTransmission and Detoit Edison regarding, among other things, the
operation and interconnection of Detroit Edisen’s distribution system and ITCTransmission’s transmission systern, and the construction of
new facilites or modification of existing facilities. Additionally, the C1A sllecates costs for operation of supervisory, communications and
metering eguipment, The CIA will remain I effect untl terminated by mufual agreement of the parties (subject to any required FERC
approvals}.

METC

Consumers Energy operates the electric distribution svstem to which METC s transmission system connects. METC is a party to 2 number
of operating contracts with Consumers Energy that govern the-operations and maintenance of its transmission system,
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These contracts include the following:

Amended and Restaled Easement dgreement. Under the Amended and Restated Easement Agreement (the “Easement Agreement™),
dated as of April 29, 2007 and as-further supplemented, Consumers Energy provides METC with.ar easement to the land, which we refer to
as premises, on which a majority of METC s transmission towers, poles, lines and other fransmission facilities used to transmit electricity at
volages of at least 120 KV ave located, which we refer to ecllectively as the facilittes. Consumers Emergy retained for itseHf the rightsto, and
the value of activities associated with, all other uses of the premises and the faciliies covered by the Easement Agreement, such as for
distribution of electicity, fiber optics, telecommunications, gas pipelines and agricultural uses. Accordingly, METC is not permitied 1o use
the premiises or the facilities covered by the Easement Agreement for any purposes other than to provide electric transmission and related
services, to inspect, maintain, repair, replace and remove eleciric fransmission facilities and to alter, improve, refocate and construct
additional electric transmission facilities. The easement is further subject to the rights of any thitd parties that had rights to use or ocoupy
the premises or the facilities prior to April 1, 2601 in a manner not-inconsistent with METC s permitied uses.

METC pays Consumers Energy annual rent-of $10.0 million, in squal quarterly instaliments, for the easement and related rights undes
the Easemnent Agreement. Although METC and Consumers Energy share the use of the premises.and the facilitics covered by the Baserment
Agreement, METC pays the entire amount of any rentals, property tases, inspection fees and other amounts required to be paid to third
parties with respect to any use, ocoupancy, aperafions or other activities on. the premises or the facilities and is generally responsible. for the
mzintenance of the premises and the facifities used for slectric transmission at its expense. METC also must maintain commercial general
Liability insurance protecting METC and Consumiers Energy againgt claims for persenal mjury, death or property damage ocowrring on the
premises or the facilities and pay for all insurance premiums, METC is aiso.responsible for patrolling the premises and the facilitias by air
at its expense at least annually and to notify Consumers Energy of any unauthorized uses or encroachments discovered. METC must
mdemnify Consumers Energy for all labilities arising from the facilities.coverad by the Easement Agreement.

WETC must potify Consumers Energy befors altering, improving, relocafing or constructing additional transmission faciiities covered
by the Easement Agrecment. Consumers Energy may respond by notifying METC of reasonable work and design restricons and
precautions that are needed to avoid endangering existing distribution facilities, pipelines or communications lines, in which case METC
must-comply with these restrictions and precautions. METC has the vight gt its. own expense to require Consumers Energy to remove and
refocate these facilities, but Consumers Fnergy may reguire payment in advance or the provision of reasonable security for payment by
METC prior to removing or relocating these facilities, and Consumers Energy need not commence any relocation worl until an sliemative
right-of-way satisfactory to Consumers Energy is obtained at METC s expense.

The term of the Basement Agreement runs through December 31, 2050 and is subject to 10 automatic. 30-yeer renewals after that time
uniess METC provides ore vear's notice of ifs élection not 1o renew the term. Consumers Bnergy may terminate the Easement Agreement
30 days after giving notice of a failure by METC to.pay its quaricrly installment # METC does not cure the non-payment within the 30-day
notice period. At the end of the term or upon any earlicr termination ¢f the Basement Agrecment, the easement and related rights terminate
and the fransmission facillties revert to Comsumers Energy.

Amended and Restated Operativig Agreement. Under the Amended and Roestated Operating Agreement’(the “Operating Agroement™),
dated as of April 29, 2002, METC agrees to operate its transmission sysiem to provide zll transmission customers with safe, efficient,
reliabie and nondiscriminatory transmission service pursuant to its tari T, Ameng other things, METC is responsihie under the Operating
Agreement for maintaining and opetating its transmission system, providing Consumers Energy with information and access to ifs
transmission system and related books ard records, administering and performing the duties of control area operstor (that is, the entity
exercising eperationa! contral over the transmission system} and, if vequested by Consumers Epergy, buHding connection facilities
necessary to permit interaction with new distribution facilities built by Consumers Energy. Consumers Bnergy has corresponding
obligations to provide METC with access to its books and records and o build distribution facilivies necessary to provide adequate and
reliable transmission services to wholesale customers. Consuruers Energy must cooperate with METC as METC performs its duties as
control arca operater, including by providing reactive supply and voltage control from generalion sources or other ancillary services anid
reducing load. The Operating Agreement is ffoctive through 2050 and is subject to 10 antomatic 50-year renewals after that time, unless
METC provides one vear's notice of its election not to renew.

Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement for Ancitiary Services. The Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement
for Anciltary Services (the “Ancillary Services Agreement”) is dated as of Aprii 29, 2002, Since METC does not own any generating
facilities, it must procure ancillary services from third party suppliers, such as Consumers Energy, Currently, under the Ancillary Services
Agreemenl, METC pays Consumers Brergy for providing certain seneration based services necessary to suppert the reliable operation of
the bulk powe grid, such as voltage support and generation capability and capacity to balance loads and generation. METC is not precluded
from procuring these ancillary services from third party suppliers when available. The Ancillary Services Agreement is subject to rolling
one-year renewals starting May 1, 2003, unless terminated by either METC or Consumers Energy with six months pricr wrilien notice.
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Amended and Resiated Distribution-Transmission Interconnection Agreement. The Amended and Restated Distribution-Transmission
Interconnection Agreement (the “DT Interconnection Agreement™, dated April 29, 2002 and amended most recently effective as of
September 1, 2010, provides for the interconnection of Consumers Energy’s distribution system: with METC s mansmission system and
defines the continuing rights, responsibilities and obligations of the pariies with respect to the use of certain of their own 2nd the other
party’s properties, assets and facilities. METC agrees to provide Consumers Energy intercommection service at agreed-upon interconnection
points, and the parties have mutual responsibility for maintaining voltage and compensating for reactive power losses resulting from their
respective services. The DT Interconnection Agresment is effective so longas any interconnection-point is connected to METC, unless it is
terminated earlier by mutual agreement of METC and Consumers Energy.

Amended and Restated Generator Interconnection Agreement. The Amended and Restated Generator Intereonnection Agreement (the
“Generator Interconnection Agreement™), dated as of April 29, 2002. and amended most recently effective ag of August 1, 2011, specifies
the terms and conditions under which Consumers Bnergy and METC maintain the interconnection of Consumers Energy’s gencration
rescurces and METC's wransmission assets. The Generator Interconnsciion Agresment is effective either until it s repiaced by any MISO-
required contract, or until mutually agreed by METC and Consumers Energy to terminate, but not later than the date thaf all Lsted
generators cense commercial operation.

FFC Midwest

iP&L operates the eleetric disteibution system fo which ITC Midwest’s transmission system connects. ITC Midwest s a party to a number
of operating contracts with IP&L that govern the operations and maintenance of its transmmission system. These contracts include the following:

Distribudion-Transmission Intercornnection Agreement. The Distribution-Transmission Interconnection Agreement (the "DTIA™), dated
as of December 17, 2047, governs the rights, responsibilities and obligations of ITC Midwest and IP& 1., with respect to the use of certain of
their own and the other parties’ property, assets and facilities, and the construction of new facilities or modification of existing faciiities.
Additionally, the DTIA sets forth the terms pursuant to which. the equipment and facilities and the interconnection equipinent of IP&L will
continue to coanect ITC Midwest’s facilities through which ITC Midwest provides transmission. service under the MISO Transmission and
Energy Markets Tariff. The DTIA will remafn in effect until terminated by mutual agreement by the partios {subject to any required FERC
approvals) or as long as any interconnection point of IP&L. is connected 1o ITC Midwest’s facilities, unless modified by written agreement
of'the parties.

Large Generotor Imierconnection Agreement. 1TC Midwest, IP&L and MISO entered into the Large Generator JInterconnection
Agreement (the “LGIA™), dated as of December 20, 2007, in woder fo establish, re-esteblith and maintain the direct electricity
frizerconnection of IP&L’s electricity generating assets with ITC Midwest's transmission system for the purposes of transmitting electric
povwer from and to the electricity generating facilities. The LGTA wilt remain in effectuntil terminated by ITC Midwest or until 1P&L eleats
to-terminate the agreement if 2 particular unit ceases commercial eperation for three consecutivie years.

Operdtions Services Agreement For 34.53 kV Transmission Focilifies, TTC Midwest and IP&L enterdd inte the Operations Services
Agreement for'34,3 &V Transmission Faciiities {the “OSA™, effective a5 of J anvary 1, 2011, under which IP&L performs certain operations
functions for FTC Midwest's 34:5. kV transmission systeny on behall of ITC Midwest. The OSA will remain in full force and effect until
December 31, 2015 and will extend awtomsatically from vear 1 vear thereafier until-terminated by efther party upon not fess than one vear
prior written notice to the other parfy.

ST Greas Plains

Amiended and Restated Maintenance Agreement. Mid-Kansas Electric Company LLC (“Mid-Kansas”) and [TC Great Plains have
entered into a Maintenance Agreement (ihe “Mid-Kansas Agreement™), dated .as of August 24, 2010, pursuant to which Wid-Eansas has
agreed to parform various ficld operations and maintenance services refated to the TTC Great Plains Elm Creek and Flat Ridge Substations,
which ITC Great Plaing purchased from Mid-Kansas. The Mid-Kansas Agreement has an mitial term of 10 years and automatic 10-year
renewals unless terminated {1} due toa breach by the non-terminating party following notice and failure to cure, {2) by mutuzl consent of
the parties, or (3} by ITC Great Plains under certain limited circuimstances. Services must continue to be provided for at least six months
subsequent to the termination date in any case,

Begulatery Eovirenment

Many regulators and public policy makers support the need for further vestment in the transmission grid. The growth in clectricity
generation, wholesale power sales and consumption combined with historically inadequate transimission investment have resulied in significant
transmission constraints across the United States and increased stress on aging equipment. These problems will continue without increased
mvestment in transmission infrastructure. Transmission system investments can also increase system reliability and reduce the frequency of
power-outages. Such investments can reduce mansmission constraints and improve access 1o lower cost generation resources, resulting in a
lower overall cost of delivered electricity for end-use consumers. After the 2003 blackout that affected sections of the Northeastem and
Midwestern United States and Omiario, Canada. the
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Depariment of Energy (the “DOE™) established the Office of Electric Transmission and Distribution, focused on working with reliability
experts from the power indusiry, state governments, and their Canadian counterparts to improve grid reliability and increase investment in the
country’s electric infrastructure. In addition, the FERC has signaled fis desire for substantial new mvestment fn the transmission sector by
implementing various financial and other incentives.

The FERC has also issued orders-té promote non-discriminatory transmission access for all transmission customers. In the United States,
electric transmission assets are predominantly owned, operated and maintained by utilities that aiso-own electricity generation and distribution
assets, known as vertically integrated utilities, The FERC has recognized that the vertically-integrated utility mode!l inhibits the provision. of
non-discriminatory transmission access and, in order to alleviate this potential discrimination, the FERE has mandated that al! transmission
systems over which it has jurisdiction must be operated in a comparable, non-discriminatory manner such that any seller of electricity affiliated
with a transmission owner or eperator is not provided with preferential treatment. The FERC has also indicated that independent fransmission
companies can play a prominent vole in furthering: its policy goals and has encouraged the legal and funetional separation of trangmission
operations from generation and distribution sperations.

On August &, 2005, the Energy Policy Act was enacted, which requires the FERC to implement mandatory electric transmission refiability
standards to be enforced by an Bleotric Refigbility Organization, Effective June 2007, the FERC approved mandatory adoption of certain
reliability standards and approved enforcement actions for visiators, including fines of up 1o $1.0 million per day. The NERC was assigned the
responsibility of developing and enforcing these mandatory reliability standards. We continually -2ssess our wansmission systems against
standards established by the NERC, as well as the standards of applicable regional entities under the NERC that have been delegated certain
authority for the purpose of proposing and enforcing Teliability standards. Finally, the Energy Policy Act repealed the Public Utility Holding
Company Act of 1935, which was replaced by the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2003. It alse subjectad utility holding companies to
regtilations of the FERC related to access to books and records, and smended Secfion 203 of the FPA ta provide explicit agthority for the
FERC 1o review mergers and consolidations involving vtility holding companies in certain ciroumstances.

Federal Repulation

As eleewric transraission companies, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are regulated by the FERC. The FERC is an independent
regulatory commission within the DOE that regulates the interstale transmission and certain wholesale sales of natural gas, the transmission of
ofl and oil products by pipeline, and the ransmission and wholesale sale of eleciricity in interstate commerce. The FERC also administers
accountiig and financial reporting regulations and standards of conduct for the companies it regulates. In 199¢, in order to facilitate open
ateess transmission for participants in whalesale power markers, the FERC issued Order No. 888, The open access policy promulgated by the
FERC in Order MNo. 888 was upheld in 2 United Stmies Supreme Court decision State of New York vs. FERC, issued on March 4, 2002, To
facilitate open access, among other things, FERC Order No. 888 cncouraged investor owned wiilities to cede operational control over their
trapsmission dystems to ISOs, which are not-for-profit entities.

As ap aliernative 1o ceding operating contrdl of their transmission assets to I80s, certain investor owned wilites began o promote the
formation of For-profit transmission companies, which would asseme control of the operation of the grid. In December 1699, the FERC issued)
Crder No, 2000, which strongly encouraged utilities to voluntarily ransfer operational control of their fransmission systems to RT0Os. RTOs; as
envisioned in Order No, 2000, would assume many of the functions of an IS0, but'the FERS permitted greater flexibility with régasd to the
organization and structive of RIOs than it had for 180s. RTOs could accommeodate the inclusion of independently owned, for-profit companies
thef own transmission assets within their operating structure. Independent ownersh 1p would facilitate not only the independent operation of the
trénsmission. systems- buf alse the formation of companies with  greater financial jnterest i maintaining and augmenting the capacity and
reliability of those systems. RTOs such as MISO ard SPP monitor electric reHability and are responsible for coordinating the operation of the
wholesale electric transmission system. and enguring fair, non~discriminatory access to the transmission grid.

In July 2011, the FERC issued Order No. 1000 ("Order 1600™) which amends certain existing transmission planning and cost allecation
requirements to-ensure that FERC-jurisdictional services are provided at just and reasonable rates and on a basis that is Just and reasonable and
not unduly discriminatory or preferentizl. With respect to transmission planning, Order 1000: { 1} requires that each public utility transmission
provider parficipate in a regional transmission plarming process that produces a regiopal transmission plan; (2) requires that each public utility
rransmission provider amend its Open Aceess Transmission Tadff ("OATT™) to describe procedures that provide for the consideration of
transmission needs driven by public policy requiremenis in the local and regional transmission planning processes; (3} removes from FERC-
approved tariffs and agreements a federal right of first refusal for certain new transmission facilities; and {4y improves coordination betwsen
neighboring transmission planning regions for new interregional transmission facilities. Order 1000 could potentially lead to greater
competition for cerzain transmission projects, including within our current operating arca. The compliance phase Tor Crder 1000 is expected 10
take up to 18 months.

flevenue Reguivement Calzulations and Cost Shaving for Projects with Regional Henefits

The cost based formuia rates used by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries continue to evoive 1o imntlude revenge requirement
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caleulations for various types of projects. Network revenues continue 1o be the largest component of revenues recovered through our formula
rates. However, regional cost sharing revenues are growing as & result of projects that have been identified by MISO or SPP as having regional
benefits, and therefore eligible for regional cost recovery under their 1ariff. Separate caleulations of revenue requiremnent are performed for
projecis that have been approved for regional cost sharing and dertain of these revenue requirements are subject to an annual frue-up. The
separate caiculations of revenue requirement impact only which parties ultimately pay for the transmission services related 1o these projects and
do not impact our financial results,

We have projects that are eligible for regional cost sharing under Attachment FF of the MISO teriff. such as certain network upgrade
projects, and the MVPs, including the Thumb Loop Project. The FERC accepted MISO’s Thumb Loop Preject MVP filing in 20610
Additionally, certain projests at ITC Great Plains are eligible for recovery through a region-wide charge in the SPP tariff the KETA Project,
which was pait of the balanced portfolio of projects approved by $PP in 2009 and the Kansas V-Plan Project, which is subject to SPP's
highway/byway cost:alloeation. The FERC approved SPP’s highway/byway cost allocation methodology in 2010, These projects are deseribed
in more detail in “Mem 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiohs — Capital Project Undates
and Other Recent Developmenis.”

State: Regulation

Theregulatery agencies in the states where our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ assets are located do nol have jurisdiction over rates or
termss ané conditions. of service. However, they typically have jurisdictioh over siting of transmission facilities and related matters as described
below. Additionally, we are subject to the regulatory oversight of various state environmental quality departments for compliance with any
state environmental standards snd regulations.

ITCTronsmission gnd METC
Michigan
The MPSC has jurisdiction over the siting of transmission facilities. Additionally, pursuant to Michigan Public Acts 197 and 198 of 2004,
ITCTransmission and METC have the right as independent transmission companies to condermn property in the state of Michigan Tor the
purposes of building or maintaining transmission facilities,
ITCTransmission and METC are also subject to the regulatery oversight of the Michigan Department of Environmental Cuality, the
Michigan Depariment of Natural Resources and certain iocal authorities for compliance with all environmental stangards and regulations.
IFC Midwest
lowg

lowa Code ch. 478 provides that the TUB has the power of supervision over the construction, operation, and maintenance of transmission
faciitties i lowa by anv entity, which inChides the power to issue franchises. lTowa Code ch. 478 further provides that any entity granted a
franchise by the TUB is vested with the power. of condemnation in lowa o the extent the TUR approves and deems necessary Tor public use, A
city has the power, pursuant to Iowa Code ch. 364, to grant a franchise to erect, maintain, and operate transmission facilities within the city,
which franchise may regulate the conditions required and manner of use of the-streets and public grounds of the city and may confer the power
to appropriate and condemn private property.

ITC Midwest alse i subject {o the regulatory oversight of certain state agencies ( including the lowa Department of Natural Resources) and
certain local authorities with respeet to the issuance of environmental, highway, railroad, and similar permits.

RAinnesolq

The MPUC bas jurisdiction over the siting and routing of new (ransmission. Hnes or upgrades of existing lines through Minnesota’s
Certificate of Need and Route Permit Processes. Transmission companies are also required to participaie in the State’s Biermial Transmission
Planmiing Process and are subject to the staie’s preventative maintenance requirements. Pursuant to Minnesota law, ITC Midwest has the right
as an independent trensmission company to condemn property in the State of Minnesata for the purpose of building new transmission facilities.

ITC Midwest is also subject to the regulatory oversight of the Minnesota Pollution Contral Agency, the Minnesota Department of Natural
Resourtes, the MPUC in conjunction with the Department of Commerce/ Office of Energy Security, and cerain local authorities for
compliance with applicable environmente! standards and regulations.

Hlinois

The ICC exercises jurigdiction over siting of new transmission lnes through its requirements for Certificates of Puble Convemence and
Necessity and Right-Of-Way acquisition that apply to construction of new or upgraded facilitiss.

ITC Midwest also is subject to the regulatory oversight of the Tlinois Environmental Protection Agency, the llincis Depariment of Natural
Resources, the Hllinois Pollution Control Board and certain local authorities for compliance with all environmental
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standarfls #nd regulations.
Missouri

Bevause ITC Midwest is a “public wility™ and an “electrical corporation” under Missouri law, the MOPSC has jurisdiction to determine
whether ITC Midwest may operate in such capacity. In this regerd, on August 30, 2007, the MOPSC granted TTC Midwest & certificate of
public convenience and necessity to own, operaie and maintain a 161 KV transmissfon line of approximately 9.5 miles located in Clark County,
Missouri which connects the substation in Keokuk, lowa with Ameren Energy Generating Company s transmission substation near Wayland,
Missouri. The MOPSC also exercises jurisdiction with regard to other non-rate matters affecting this Missouri assef such as transmission
substation construction, general safety and fire transfer of the franchise or property.

ITC Midwest is also subject to the regulatory oversight of the Missouri Department of Natural Resources for compliance with all
environmental standards and regulations relating to this transmission line.,

ITCreat Plains
Kansas .
FYC Great Plains is:a “public wiility™ it Kansas and an “clectric utifity™ pursuant to state statutes, The KOO issued an order approving the

issuance &f a limited certificate of conventence to TTC Great Plains for the purposes of building, owaing and operating SPP transmission
projects inKansas. In addition to its certificate authority, the KCC has jurisdiction over the siting-of slectric transmission Hnes.

TTC Great Plains is-also subject to the regulatory oversight of the Kansas Department of Health and Environment for comphiance with all
environmental standerds and regulations relating to the construction phase of any trapsmission line.

Oklahoma

On Septeniber 11, 2008, ITC Great Plains received approval from the OCC o aperate in Oklahoma, pursuant to Okizhoma Statutes as an
etectric public.utility providing only transmission services. The OCC does not exercise jurisdiction over the siting of any fransmission lines.

ITC Great Plains may be subject to the regulatory oversight of Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality for compliance with
environmental standards and regulations rejating to construction of proposed transmission Tines.

ITC Great Plains does not.currently own or operate transmission facilities in Oklahoma, but is conpstructing an approximately 19-mile 343
KV trensmission tne and associated facilities in southeastern Oklahome, known as the Hugo to Valliant project,

Souwrces of Revenuoe

Sec “liem 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Resuits of Operations —
Operating Revenues™ for & discussion of ourprineipal sources of revenue.

Seasopality

The cosi-based formula rates with a true-up mechanism in effect for all our Regulated Operaling Subsidiaries, as discussed in “Hem 7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Up
Mechanism,” mitigate the seasonality of net income for our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries acerue or
defer revenugs tothe extent thet theactual revenue regaivement for the reporting period is higher or lower, respectively, than the amounts billed
relating o that reporting pericd. For example, to the extent that amounts billed are less than our revenue requirernent for a reporting peried, 2
revenne acerual is recorded for the difference and the difference resalts in nonet income impact,

Operating cash flows are seasonal at our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, in that cash received for revenues is typically higher in
the summer months when peak load is higher.

Prindipal Customers

Our principal transmission service customers are Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy and [P&L, which accounted for approXimately 30.8% ,
26.0% and 25.3% | respectively, of our total operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 . One or more of these customers
together have consistently represented a significant percentage of our operating revenue, These percentages of total operating revenues of
Detrelt Edison, Consumers Energy and IP&L include an estimate for the 200 1 revenue gecruals and deferrals that were includad in our 2011
operating revenues, but will not be billed to our customers uniil 2013, We have assuied that the revenues billed to these customers i 2013
would be in the same proportion of the respective percentages of network and regional cost sharing revenues billed to them in 2011, Cur
remaining reveauss were generated from providing service to other entities such as altomative elestiicity supphers, power marketers and other
wholesale customers that provide electricity to end-use consumers znd from transaction-hesed capacity reservations. Nearly 21l of our revenues
are from transmission
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customers in the United States. Although we may recognize aliveated revenues from time e time from Canadien enfities reserving transmission
over the Ontario or Manitobs Interface, these revenues have not been and are not sxpected to be material {o us.

Billing
MISO is responsible for billing and collection for transmission services and administers the transmission tariff in the MISO service

territory, As the billing agent for owr MISC Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, MISO bills Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy, IP&L and other
custorners on 2 monthly basis and coilects fees for the use of our ransmission systems,

SPP is responsible for billing and collection for transmission services and administers the transmission tariff in the SPP service territory of
which ITC Great Plains is & member, As the billing agent for ITC Great Plains, 8PP independently administers the fransmission teriff.

See “ltem 74 Quantitative ad Qualitative Disclosures about Market Rigk - Credit Risk™ for diseussion of our cradit policies,
Competition

Each of our MISO Reguiaied Operating Subsidiaries is the only transmission system in its tespective service ares and, thersfore, effectively
has 0o competitors. However, the competitive environment may change due 1o the implementation of Order 1000, See further discussion of
Order 1000 above under "Regulatory Eavirenment — Federal Regulation.” For our subsidiaries focused on development opportunities for
transmission investmennt in other seivice areas, the incupibent utilities or ofher endities with transmission development mitiatives may compete
with us by secking regulatory approval to he named the.party authorized to build new capital projects that-we are also pursuing. Because our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are currently the only transmission companies that are independent from electricity market participants, we
believe we are best abie to develop fhese projests iB a non-discrimingfory menner. However, there are no assurances we will be selected to
develop projects that other entities are also pursuing.

Employees
As of December 31, Z011 , we had 452 epiployees, We consider our relations with our employess to be good.
Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to federsl, state, and lecal environmental laws and regulations, which impose mitations on the discharge of
pelivtants into the environment, establish standards for the management, treatment, storage, transportation and disposal of hazardous materials
and of solid and hazardous wastes, and impose obligations to. investigate and remediate contamination in certain circumstances, Liabilities to
mvestigate or remetiate centamination, as well as other labilities concemning hazardous materials or contamination, such a$ claims for personal
injury or property damage, may arise at many locations, including formerly owned or operated propertiss and sites where wastes have been
treated or disposed of, as well as at properties currently owned or operated by-us, Such liabilities may arise even where the contamination does
not result from noncempliance with applicable environmental laws, Under a numiber of environmental laws. such Habilities may also be joint
arl several, meaning that a party can be held responsible for more than ifs share of the labiiity involved, or even the entire share.
Environmental requirements generally have become more siringent and comphiance with those reguirements more expensive. We are not aware
of any specific developmends that would increase our costs for such compliance in a manner that would be expected to have & material effect on
cor resulis of operations, financial position or liquidity,

Our assels and operations also involve the use of materials ¢lassified as hazardous, texic or otherwise dangerous. Many of the properties our
Regulated Operaling Subsidiaries own or operate have been used for wany yvears, and include oider facilities end equipment that may be move
tikely: than newer ones to contain or be made from such materials. Some-of these properties include aboveground or undergrouind storage tanks
and associgted piping. Some of them also include large electrical equipment filled with mineral oil, which may contain or previcusly have
contained polyehlorinzted biphenyls {commonly known as PCBs). Our facilitiss and eguipment are often situated close 1o or on property owned
by others se that, i they are the source of contamination, the property of others may be affected. For exatnple, dhoveground and undergronnd
transmission lines sometimes traverse properties that we do not own, and, at some of our trensmission statfons, transmission assets (owned or
operated by us) and disiribution assets {owned or operated by ourtransmission customers) are commingled.

Seme properties in which we have an ownership interest or at which we operate are, and others are suspected of being, affected by
environmental contamination. We arenof aware of any claims pending or threatened against us with respect Lo environmenta! contamination, or
of any investigation or remediation of contamination at any properties, that entdil costs likely to matevially affect us. Some facilities and
properties.are focated near environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands.

Claims have been made or threatened against zlectric whlities for bodily injury, disease or other damages allegedly related fo exposure to
clectromagnetic fields associated with electric transmission and diswribution lines. While we do not believe thar a causal link hetween
electromagnetic field exposure and injury has been generally established and accepted in the scientific comumumnity, if such 2 relationship is
established or aceepted, the Liabilities and costs imposed on our business could be significant.
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We are not aware of any claims pending or threatened against us for bodily injury, disease or other damages altegedly related to exposure to
elootromagnetic fields and electric transmission and disiribution lines that entail costs tikely to have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial position or liguidity, K

Filings Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Our internet address is http/fwww.itc-holdings.com . You cen access froe of charge on our web site all of our reports filed pursuant to
Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1954, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), inchuding our annual reports on Form 10-E,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Borm &K, and any smendments to {hose reports, These reports are available as soon as
practicable after they are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission {the “BEC™). Also on our web site are our:

« Corporate Governance Guidelines;

« Code of Business Conduct and Ethics: and

¥ Comenittee Charters for the Audit and Finance Comimittee, Compensation Commitiee and Nominating/Corporate Govemance
Committee.

Gur Code of Business Conduct and Bthics applies to all directors, officers and employess, including our Chairman, President and Chief
Excoutive Gfficer and our Excontive Vice President and Chiaf Financial Oficer. We will post any amendments to the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, and any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of either the SEC or the NYSE, on our web site within the
required periods. The information on our-web site is not incorporatsd by reference info fhisreport,

To learn more about us, please visit our website at fittp//wyw.itc-holdings.com . ‘We use our website as 2 channel of distibution of material
company information. Finaaeial and other material information regarding us is roufinely posted on our website and is readily zecessible,

You may also read and copy any materials we file with the SEC af the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 ¥ Street, NE, Washingion DC,
20548, You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-8EC-0330. The SEC slso
mainins an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
eiectronically with the SEC. The address is httovwerw.sec.poy

ITEM 1A, RIS FACTORS.

Risks Related to Our Business

Ceriain clements of our Reguluted Opevating Subsidiaries” cost recovery ‘through rates car be challenged, which could vesult in lowered
retes and/or refunds of amennts previowsly collected and Hhues heve an adverse effect on our business, finwncinl condition, results of
operafions urnd cash flows. We have olse made cevtain commitments to federal and state regulators with vespect to, anmang other things,
our rates i connectivn with recent acquisitions-(including ITC Midhwest’s. acquisition of IP&L’s elestric transmission assefs} that could
have an udverse affect on anr business, finarcial condition, results of operations und cashk flows,

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries provide tranamission service under rates regulated by the FERC. The FERC has approved the cost-
based formula rate templates used by our Regulated Operating Subsidiariss, but i+ has not expregsly approved the amount of actual capital and
operating expenditures to be used in the formula ratés, All aspects of cur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries® rates approved by the FERC,
including the Tormula rate templates, [TCTransmisston’s, MET (s, ITC dMidwest®s and FI°C Great. Plains” respective allowed 13.88%, 13.38%,
12.38% and 12.16% rates of return on the actudl equity portion of their respective capital smuctures, and the daty inputs provided by our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries for caloulation of cach year's rate, are subject to challenge by interested parties dt the FERC in a proceeding
under Section 206 of the FPA, If a challenger can establish that any of these aspects are unjust, wreasopable, wadunly discriminatory or
preferential, then the FERC will make appropriafe prospective sdiustments to them andlor dissllow any of our Regulated Opersting
Subsidiaries” inclusion of those aspects in the rafe seffing forimula. This could resuliin lowered rates andiaor refunds of amounts collected after
the date that & Section 206 challenge is filed,

The FERCs order approving eur acquisition of METC was conditioned upon IFCTiansmission and METC not recovering “merger-related
costs™ in their rates, as described in the order; unless 2 separate informational filing is submitied to the FERC. The informational fiing, which
could be chalienged by interested parties, would need to identify those costs and show that such costs are outweighed by the benefits of the
agquisiion. Dreterminations by ITCTransmission or METC that expenses included in their formule rate templaie for recovery are not
acquisition related costs are also subject to challenge by interested parties at the FERC. If chalienged at the FERC and ITCTransmission or
METC fail to show that costs included for recovery are not merger-related, this also could result in lowered rates and/or tefunds of amounts
collected. Wehave not sought recovery of merger-related costs at ITCTransmission or METC,
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Under the FERC’s order approving ITC Midwest’s asset acquisition, ITC Midwest agreed o 2 hold harmless commitment in which ne
acquisition premium will be recovered in rates, nor will ITC Midwest recover through trarismission rates any trensaction-related costs that
exceed demonsirated transaction related savings for a perfod of five vears. If during the five year period ITC Midwest sesks to recover
transaction-retatert costs through its formala rate, ITC Midwest must make an informationa) filing at the FERC that identifies the transaction-
related gosts sought to be recovered and demonstrates that those costs are exceaded by mansaction-related savings, If chalienged at the FERC
and ITC Midwest fiils to show that transaction-related costs mcluded for recovery do not exceed transaction-related savings, ITC Midwest
could be subject to lowered rates and/or refunds of amounts previously collecred. Additionally, in Towa and Minnesote, as part of the regulatory
approval process, ITC Midwest committed not to recover the first $15.0 million in transaction-related costs under any circumstances, We have
not sought recovery of transaction-related costs ar I'TC Midwest.

In the Mihnesota regulatory proceeding to approve ITC Midwest's December 2007 acquisition of the wansmission assets of IP&L, ITC
Midwest also agreed to build two transmission projects intended to improve the reliability and efficiency of our electric transmission systern,
Specifically, ITC Midwest made commitmenis to use commercially reasonabie best efforts to complete these projects prior to December 31,
2009 and 2011, respectively. In the event ITC Midwest k found to have failed to meet these commitments, the allowed 12.38% rate-of refum
on the actual equity portion of ITC Midwest's capital structure-would be reduced to 10.29% unti] such time as ITC Midwest completes these
projects, and ITC Midwest would refund with interest any amounts collected since: the close date of the transaction that exceeded what would
nave beer: collected if the 10.39% return oni-equity had been used. The project that was required. v be completed prior to December 31, 2009
was completed by that deadiine. With respect to the second praject, the 345 XV Salem-Hazelton line, certain regulatory approvals wereneeded
from the TUB before construction of fhe project could.commence, but due 1o the TIIB's case schedule, these approvals were not received untl
the seeond quarter of 2011, As a result of the delay in the receint of the necessary regulatory approvals, the project was not completed by
Irecember 21, 2011, While we beliove we used commereially reasonabic best efforis to meet the December 31, 2011 deadline, any of the events
described above could have & material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, resultsof operafions and cash flows.

Our Reguluted Operating Subsiniuries” wesfusl capital expandifures way be Ipwer than planned, whick world decrense expected rate base
und therefore onr expecied revenues and earnings. In addition, we expect to invest i strategie development opportanities fo improve the
afficiency and veliahility of the transmission gridl, bui we cannet assure you that we wil] be able 40 initiate or complete any of these
invesiments,

Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries® rate base, revenuss and carnings are determived in part by additions to property, plant and
equipment when placed in service. We anticipate maling significant capital investments over the next five vears which include esiimated.
transmission network vpgrades for generator interconmections. The ameunts for network upgrades could change significantly due to factors
beyond our control, such as changes in the MISO gueue for gensration projects and whether the generator meets the various criteria of
Attachment FE of the MISO Open Access Transmission. Energy, and Operating Reserve Markets Tariff for the project to guatify as.z
refundable network upgrade, among other factors. If our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ capital expenditures and the resulting in-service
property, plant and equipment are lower than anticipated for any reason, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries will have a lower than
anticipated ratc base thus.causing their revenue requirements and future earnings to be potentially lower thary anticipated.

In addition, we are pursuing broader strategic development investment opportunities for fransmission construction related to building
regicnal transmission facilities, interconnections for generaring resources, and other investment opportunities. The incumibent utilities or other
entities with transmission development initiatives may compete with us by deciding to pursue capital projects that we are pursuing, These
estimates of potential investment opportunities are based primarily on foreseeable transmission needs. and general transmission construction
costs, not necessarily on particular project cost estimates.

Any capital investment at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries or as a result of our broader strategic development initiatives may be jower
than expected due te, among other fuctors, the impact of actual loads, forecasted ivads, regional economic conditions, weather conditions,
union strikes, labor shortages, material and equipment prices and aveilability, our ability to obtain financing for such expenditures, if necessary,
limitations on the amount of construction that can be undertaken on our system or transtission systems owned by others af any one time,
regulatory approvals for reasons relating tw rate construct, envirenmeital, siting, regions! planring, cost recovery or other issues or as a result
of legal proceedings and variances between estimated and actual costs of construction eontracts awarded. Our zbility to engage in constraction
projects resulting from pursuing these initiatives is subject to significant uncertainties, ncluding the factors discussed above, and will depend
on:Obtaining any necessary reguiatory and other approvals for the project and for us to initiate constriction, our achieving status as the huilder
of the project in some circumstances and other factors. Therefore, we can provide no assurance.as fo the actual level of investmeni we may
achieve at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries or as a result of the broader strategic development initiatives.
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The regulations to which we ave subject may limit our ability to reise capital and/or pursie acquisitions, development opportunities or
other transactions er may subject us to finhilities.

Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is a “public utility” under the FPA and, accordingly, is subject to regulation by the FERC,
Approval of the FERC is required under Section 203 of the FPA for a disposition or acquisition of regulated public wiility facilities, either
directly ar indirectly through a holding company. Such approval may also be required to acquire securities in & public wtility. Section 203 of the
FPA also provides the FERC with explicit authority over utility helding companics’ purchases or acquisitions of, and mergers or consolidations
with, a public utility. Fimally, each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries must also seek approval by the FERC under Section 204 of the
FPA for sssuances of its securities (including debt securities),

We are also pursuing strafegic development opportunities for construction of transmission facilities and interconnections with generating
resources: These projects reguire regulatory approval by the FERC, applicable RTOs and state reguiatory agencies. Failure to secure such
reguiatory approval for new sirategic development projects could adversely affect our ability to grow cur business and increase our revenues,
In addition, we are subject to state and/or local regulations relating to..among.other things, facility siting Howe fail 1o comply with these local

regulations; we may incur labilities for such failure,

Changes in federal energy iows, regulations or policies cowld impact cash flows and could reduce the dividends we may be able (o pay our
stockholiers.

The formula rate templates used by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries o calculate their respestive annual revenue reguirements will be
used by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries for that purpose unti] and unless the FERC defermines that such rate formula is unjost and
unreasongble: or that ancther mechanism is more appropriate. Such determinations coulé result Fram chalienges initiated at the FERC by
tritevested parties, by the FERC on its own initiative in a proceeding under Section 206 of the FPA or by & successful application initiated by
any of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries under Section 205 of the FPA. End-use consumers and entities supplying electricity to end-use
consumers may attempt to influence government and/or regulators to change the rate sefting methodologies that apply to our Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries, particularly if rates for delivered elecri city increase substantially.

Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is regulated by the FERC 2s a “public wtility” under the FPA-and is a transmission owner in
MISOor SPP. We cannot predict whether the approved rate methodologies for any of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries will be chenged. In
addition, the U8, Congress periodically considers enacting energy legisiation thet could shift new responsibilities to the FERC, modify
provisions of the FPA or provide the FERC or another entity with increased authority to regulate wansmission malters, We cannat predict
whether, and to what extent, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries may be affected by any such changes in federal energy laws, regulations. or
policies in the future,

Y amourns Billed for transwrission service for our Regudoted Operaiing Subsidiaries’ trapsmission systems are lower than expected, the
tinzing of coilection of vur revenues would be deloyed.

If amounts billed for transmission service are lower than expected, which could result from lower network load or point-to-poins
transinission service on our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ transmission gystams due to weather, & weak economy, clanges in fhe nature pr
composition of the transmission sssets of our Regulmed Operafing Subsidisries and surrounding areas, poor transmission quality of
‘neighboring transmission systems. or for any other reason, the timing of the collection of cur reveme Tequirement would tikely be delayed until
such circumstances are adjusted through the true-up mechanism in our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ formula rate templates. The effect of
such under-collection would be o reduce the amount of our available cash resources from what we had expecied, which may require us fo
increase o culstanding indebiedness, reducing our available berrowing capacity, and may require us to pay interest af 2 rate that exceeds the
interest to which we are entitled in connection with the eperation of the true-up mechanis.

Each of onr MISO Regulnted Operating Subsidiaries depends on fie primary customer for e substantiol portion of ity vevenies, and any
material foilure by those primary customers fo make Dpaymients for transmission services would adversely affect our revenses and. our
ability fo service our debi obligations and affect our ability to pay dividends,

ITCTransmission derives & substantial portion of its revenues from the transmission of electricity to Detroit Bdison’s local dismibution
facilities. Detroit Edison accounted for 78.5% of [TCTransmission’s tolal opetating revenues for the vear ended December 31, 2011 and is
expected w0 constitute the majority of ITCTransmission's revenuss for the foresseable future, Detroit Edison is rated BEB+/fstable and
Baal/stable by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody’s Investors Services, Inc., respectively. Similarly, Consumers Energy
accounted for 79.0% of METC’s total operating revenuss for the year ended December 31, 2011 and is expected to constitute the maiority of
METC’s revenues for the Toreseeable future. Consumers Energy is rated BBB-/stable and RaaZ/stable by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services
and WMaody’s Investars Service, Inc., respectively. Further, IP&L sccountad for 78.9% of ITC Midwest’s total operating revenues for the yoar
ended December 31, 2011 and is expected to constituie the majority of ITC Midwest's revenues for the foreseeable futnie. IP&1, is rated
BBB+/stable and A/negaiive by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody’s Investors Service, Tnc., respectively. These percentages of
total operating revenues of Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy and [P&L include an estimate for the 2011 revenue accrual and deferrals
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that were mcluded in our 201} operating revenues, but will not be billed to our customers until 2012.We have assumed that the revenues billed
to these customers in 2013 would be in the same proportion of the respective percentages of network and regional cost sharing revenues billed
to them in 2011, :

Any material failure by Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy or 1P&L to make payments for transmission services could adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations and our ability to service our debt obligations, and could impact the amount of dividends we pay
our stockholders.

A significant amount of the land on which our Regulated Operating Subsidiqries’ assefs are located is subject 10 easements, minerel
rights and other similar encumbrances. As & result, our Regulated Operating Subsidiavizs must comply with the provisions of variens
eusements, mineral vights and ather sinellar encumbrances, whick may adversely impact their ahility te complete consiraction projects in
adimely marnner.

METC does not own the majority of the land on which its electric transmission assets are located. Instead, under the provisions of an
Easerment Agreement with Consumers Energy, METC pays annual rent of £10.0 million to Consumers Energy in exchange for rights-of-way,
leases, fee interests. and lloenses which allow METC to use the land on which its transmission lines are located. Under the terms of the
Easement-Agreement, METC’s easement rights could be climinated if METC fails to meet certain requirements, such as paying contractual
rent-te Consumers Erergy in atimely manner. Additionally, a significant amoeunt of the land.on which ITCT, ransmission’s, ITC Midwest's and
ITC-Great Plains’ assets are located 15 subject to easements, mineral rights and other similar encumbrances. As vesult; they must comply with
the provisions of varjous easemenis, minersl rights and other similar encumbrances, which may adversely rmpact their ability o complete their
construction projects in a timely manner,

Onr Reguluted Cperating Subsidiavies contract with fhivd parties to provide services Jor cartair aspects of their businesses. If any of these
agreements are-terminated, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries wry fuce.o shoringe of labor or veplocenent contractors to provide the
services farmerly provided by these third pariies,

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries enter into various agreements and arrangements with third parties to provide services for the
operation of certain aspects of their businesses, which, if terminated could result in a shortage of a readily available workforce o provide these
services, ITC Midwest and IP&L have entered into the Operations Services Agreement For 345 kV Transmission Facilities (the “OSA™), under
which IP&L performs certain operations functions for ITC Midwest's 34,5 ¥V transmission system. The OSA’s term is from January 1, 2011
untit December 31, 2015, and by its ferms wili remain in foll force and effect from year to-year theresfter until terminated by either party upon
60t less than one year prior written notice to the other party. If the OSA is terminsted for any resson or at 2 time when ITC Midwest is
unprepared for such termination, ITC Midwest may face difficulty finding a qualified veplacement work force to provide such services, which
could have & material adverse effect on its ability to carry on s business and on its resulis-of operations.

Huzards associated with high-voltage eleciricity transmission may reswlt in suspension of our Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries’
operations or the imposition of ¢ivil or criminal penalties,

The operations of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are subject to the usual hazards associated with high-voltage electricify
transpiission, including explosions, fires, inclement weather, netural disasters, mechanical failure, unscheduled downtime, equipment
imerraptions, remediation, chemical spills, discharges or releases of toxic or hazardous substences or gases and other environmental risks. The
hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of property and equipment and environmental damage, and
may result in suspension of operations and-the fmposition of civil or criminal penalties. We maintain property and caswalty insurance, but we
are not fully msured against all potential hazards incident to our business, such as damage to noles, towers and Hnes or losses causad by
oufages,

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries ave subject to environmental vegulations and to lows that can give rise to substaniiad abilities
from environmental contamination.

The operations of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, which
tmpose limitations on the discharge of poliutants into the environment, establish standards for the management, ireaiment, storage,
transportation and disposal of hazardous materials and of solid and hazardous wastes, and impose sbligations 1o investigate and remediate
contarmnation in certain circumstances. Liabilities to investigate or remediate contamination, as well as other liabilities concerning hazardous
materials or contamination such as claims for personal injury or property damsge, may arise at many locations, including formerly owned or
operated properties and sites where wastes have been treated or disposed of, as well as 2! properties currently owned or operated by owr
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Such liabilities may arise even where the comtamination does not result from nencompliance with applicable
environmental laws. Under a number of environmental Jaws, such Habilities may also be Jomt and several, meaning that a parfy can be heid
responsibie for more than its share of the liability invelved, or even the entire share. Fnvironmental requirernents generally have become more
stringent in recent vears, and compliance with those requirements more expensive.
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Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have incirred expenses in comnection with envirommental compliance, and we anticipate that each
will continue to de son the future. Failure to comply with the extensive environmental laws and regulations applicable to each could result in
significant civil or eriminal penalties and remediation cests. Our Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries’ assets and operations also invelve the use
of materials classified as hazardous, toxic, or otherwise dangerous, Some of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” facilities and properties ars
located near environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands and habitats of endangered or threatened species. In addftion, certain properfies
in which our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries operate are, or are suspected of being, affected by environmental contamination, Compliance
with these laws and regulations, .and liabilities concerning. contamination or hazardous materials, may sdversely affect our costs and, therefore,
our business, financial condifion and results of operations.

In addition, claims have been made or threatened against eleotric utifities for bodily injury, disease or other damages allegedly related to
exposure 1o electromagnetic fidids associsted with electric transmission and distriburion lines. We cannot assure you that such claims will not
be asserted against us or that, if determinsd in 4 manner adverse to our interests, such claims would not have a‘material adverse effect on our
buginess, financial condition and results of operations,

Our Reguinted Opevating Subsidiavies are subject to variows vegulatory requivements, including reliability standards; contract flling
requivements; reporting, récordkeeping and accounting reguirements; and fransaction approvel reguirements, Violations of these
regiiiements, whether intentional or unintentiongl, may reswlt in penalfies that, under some civenmstances, cowld have ¢ material
adverse cffect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows,

The various regulatory requireménis to which we are subject inclide reliability standards established by the NERC, which acts as the
natton’s Flectric Reliability Organizetion approved by the FERC in aceordance with Section 215 of the FPA. These standards address
operation, planning and security of the bulk power system, including requirements with regpect to real-time transmission operations, emerpency
operations, vegetation management, critical infrastructure pretoction and personnel training. Failure to comply with these requirements can
result in monetary penalties as well as-non-monetary sanctions. Monetary penalties vary based on an assigned risk factor for each potential
violation, the severity of the violation and various other cifcumsiances, such as whether the violation was ntentiomal or conceslad, whether
there are repested violdtions, the degres of the violator’s-cooperation in investigating and remediating the violation and the presence of a
complizues prograin. Penalty amounts vange from $1,000 to a maximum of $1.0 million per day, depending on-the severity of the-violation.
Mon-monetary sanctions include potential limitations on the violator’s activities or operation and placing the violator on a watchlist for major
violators, Despife our best efforts to comply and the implementation- of a compliance program imended to ensure reliability, there can be no
assurance that viclations will not occur that would result in material penalties or sanetions. I any of cur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries were
te vickats the NERC relisbilify standards, ever usintentionalty, in any material way, any penaltics of sanclions imposed against us could have &
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are also subjeet fo requirements under Sections 203 and 205 of the FPA for approval of transactions;
reporting, recordkeeping and accounting requirements; and for filing contracts related to the provision of jurisdictional services. Under FERC
policy, failure to file jurisdictienal agreements on a timely basis may result-in foregomg the time wvalue of revenues collected under the
agreement, but not to the point where 2 loss would be incurred. The failure to-obtain timely approval of ansactions subject 1o FPA Section
243, or to comply with applicable reporting, recordkeeping.or accounting requirements under FPA Section 205, could subject us 1o penalties
that could have a material adverse effect on cur financial condition, reselts of operations and cash flows,

Acty gf war, terrovist uttacks and threats, including cyber attacks ov threats, or the escelation of military activity in response fo such
attacks or-otherwise may negatively affect our business, financidl condition and caskh flows.

Acts of war, terrorist attacks and threats, including cyher attacks or threats, or thesescalation of military ectivity in response to such attacks
or otherwise may negatively affect owr business, financial condition and cash flows in unpredictable ways, such as increased seeurity measures
and disruptions of markets. Strategic targets, such as energy related assets, including, for example, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’
wansmission facilities and Detroit Edison’s, Consumers Epergy’s and IP&L’s generation and distribution facilities, may be at risk of future
terrorist attacks or fhreats, including cyber attacks or threats. In additon to the mcreased costs associated with heightened security
requirements, such events may have an adverse effect on the economy in general. A lower level of economic activity could resilt in a decline in
energy ‘consumption, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and cash flows.

Risks Relating to Our Structure and Financial Leverage

FC Holdings is o holding company with no eperations, and nrless we veceive dividends or other payments from our subsidiaries, we may
be unable to pay dividends and fulfill our other cash obiigutions.
As ahelding company with ro business operations, [TC Holdings® material assets consist primarily of the stock and membership interests in
our Reguolated Operating Subsidiaries and our otber subsidiaries, deferred tax assets relating primarily to federal income tax NOLs and cash on
hand. Cur only sources of cash to pay dividends to our stockholders are dividends and other payments
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received by us from time to time from our Regulated Operaling Subsidiaries and our other subsidiaries and the proceeds raised from the sale of
our debt and equity securities. Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, however, is legally distingt from vs and has no cbligation,
coniingent or otherwise, 1o make funds available 1o us for the payment of dividends to ITC Holdings® stockholders or otherwise. The ability of
each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and our other subsidiaries to pay dividends and make other payments to us is subject to, among
other things, the availability of funds, after taking inte account capital expenditure recarirements, the terms of its indebredness, applicable state
laws and regulations of the FERC and the FPA. While we currently intend. to continue to pay quarterly dividends on our cormmon stock, we
have no obligation to do so. The payment of dividends is within the absolute discretion of our board. of directors and will depend on, among
other things, our results of operations, working capital reqiirements, capital expenditure requirements, financial condition, ceniractuzl
restrictions, antivipated cash needs and other factors that our board of directors decms relevant,

We are highly leveraged end our dependence on debt may lmit our ability to Fulfill onr debt obligations andior to obtain edditional
Financing.

We are highly leversged and our consoliddted mdebitedness consists of various outstandmg debl:seourities and borrowings under varicus
revolving credit agreements. This capital structure can have several ihportant consequences, including, but not limited to, the following:

= If future cash fiowe are insufficient, we may not be able to make principal or interest payments on our debt obli gations, which could
resull in'ihe occhirrence of an event of default under one or more of those debt instruments.

¢ Iffuture cash flows are insufficient, we may need to incur further indebtedness in order to make the capital expenditures and other
expenses or nvestments planned by us,

* Our indebtedness has the peneral effect of reducing our flexibility o react to changing business and ecoriomic conditions insofar as they
affect our financial condition aud, therefore, may pose substential risk to owr sharsholders. A substantial portion of the dividends and
payments in Heu of taxes we receive from ouwr Regulated Gperating Subsidiaries will be dedicated 1o fhe payvment of interest en our
indebtedness, thereby reducing the funds available for the paymentof dividends on our common stock.

- In the event that we are liguidated, our senior or subordinated creditors and the senior or subordinated ereditors of our subsidiaries will
be entitled to peyment in full prior to any distributions to the-holders of shares of our common stock,

© We cwrrently have debt instruments outstanding with relatively short Temaining maturities, Qur ability to secure additional financing
prior to or after these facilities mature, if peeded, may be substantially restricted by tie existing level of our indebtedness and the
regtrictions comtained in our'debt instruments. Additionally, the interest rates af which we miight secure additional financings may be
highier than our currently vutstanding debt instruments or higher than. forecasted at any point in time,

* Market conditions cotild affect our access to capital markets, resirict our ability to scoure financing tomake the capital expenditures and
other expenses or investments planned by us and could adversely affect our business, finencial condition, cash flows and resulis of
opefations,

- We may incur substantial indebtedness in the future. The incurrence of additional mdebtedness would increase the leverage-related rigks
deseribed here.

Cerigin provisions in our debt dnstvuments it aur financial Rexibiltiy.

Our debt instruments include senior notes, secured notes, first morigage bonds and revolving credit agresments centaining numerous
finzncial and operating covenants that place significant restrictions on, among other things, our ability to:
« incur additional indebtedness;
* engagein sale and lease-back transactions:
« creale liens or other encumbrances;
* enier into mergers, consolidations, liquidations or disselutions, or sell or otherwise dispose of 21l or substantially all of our assets;
+ create and acquire subsidiaries; and
« pay dividends or make distributions on our and ITCTransmission’s capital stock and WMETC s, ITC Midwest's, and [TC Great Plains’
member capital,
The revolving eredit agreements, [TC Holdings® senior notes, ITCTransmission’s first morigage bonds, ITC Midwest™s first morteage bonds

and METC’s senior secured notes reguire us {0 meet.cartain financial ratios, such as maintaining certain debt to capitalization ratios. Qur ability
to comply with these and other requirements and restrictions may be affected by changes in
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economic ar business conditions, results of operations or other events beyond our control. A faifure to comply with the ohiigations conrained in
any of our debt instruments could vesult in acceleration of the related debt and the acceleration of debt under other instruments evidencing
indebtedness that may contain cross-acceleration or cross-default provisions.

Adverse changes in our eredit ratings may negatively affect us.

Our ability to access capital markets is important to our ability to operate our business, Increased serutiny of the energy industry and the
impact of regulatfon, as well as changes in our financial performance and wifavorable conditions in the capital markeis could result in credit
agencies reexamining our credit ratings. A downgrade in our credit ratings could restrict or discontinue our ability to access capital markets at
attractive rates and increase cur borrowing costs. A rating downgrade could alse orease the interest we pay under our revolving credit
AFTCCMEnEs.

Frovisions in our 4rticles of Incorporniion and bylaws, Michigun corporate Taw and our debt agreements may impede efforts by owr
shareholdersio change the divection or menagement-of sur comparny.

Gur Articles of Incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that might enable our management to resist a proposed takeover. These
provisions could discourage, delay or prevent a change of conrol or an acquisition at a price that cur shareholders may find attractive. These
provisions alse may discourage proxy contests and make it more. difficult for our shareholders to eleet ditectors and ke other corporae
actions. The existence of these provisions could limit the price that investors are willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock,
These provisions include:

= arestriction limiting market participants from voting or ewning 3% or more of the otitstanding shares of our capital stock;

* arequirement that special meetings of our shareholders may be cafled enly by our board of directors, the chairmen of our board of
directors, our president or the holders of a majority of the shares of our outstanding common stock;

* advance notice requirements for shareholder proposals and nominations: and

* the authority of our board to issue, without sharehalder approval, common or preferred stock, including in comnection with our
Implementation of any shareholders rights plan, or “peison pifl.”

In nddition..our revolving eredit agreements provide that a change in & myjority of ITC Holdings” boarc of directors that is not approved by
the current ITC Holdings directors or acquiring beneficial ownership of 35% or more of ITC Holdings outstanding common shares wil]
constitute a defanlt under those agreements.

Provisions in our Avticles of {ncorporafion restrict mavket participants from vering or ewning 3% or move of the outstanding sharey of
our captial stock,

Certain of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have been pranted favorable rate treatment by the FERC based on their mndependence from
market participants. The FERC defines a “market participant” to-include any person or entity that, either directly orthrough an affiliate, sells or
brokers electricity, or provides ancillary services to an RTO, An affiliate, for these parposes, includes any person or emtity that directly or
mndirectly owns, conirols or holds with the power to- vote 5% or more.of the outstanding voting securities of & markes participant. To help
ensure that we and our subsidiaries will remain independent of market participants, our Articles of Incorporation impose certain restrictions on
the ownership and voting of shares of our capital stock. by market participants. In particular, the Articles of Incorporation provide that we are
restricted from issuing any shares of capital stock or recording any transfer of shares if the issuance or transfer would cause any market
participan, either individually or togeiher with members of its “group” (as-defined in $BC beneficial owmership rules), to beneficially own 5%
or more of any class or series of out capital stock. Additionally, if @ market participant, together with its group members, goquires beneficial
ownership of 5% or more of any series of the cutstanding shares of our capital stock, such market participant or any sharsholder who s a
member of a group including a market participant will not be able to vote-or direct or control the votes of shares representing 5% or more of
any series of our cutstanding capital stock. Finaily, 1o the extent a market participant, together with its group members, acquires beneficial
ownership of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of any series of our capital stock, our Articles of Incorporation allow our board of directors
to redeern any shares of our capital stock so that, after giving effect to the redemption, the market participant, together with Hs group members,
will cease to beneficially own 5% or more of that series of our cutstanding capital slock.

Rislis Related to the Exterpy Transaction

We may be unabie to satisfy the conditions ar sbiain the apprevals reguived io complete the Entergy Transacfion or suwek approvals may
contaln material restrictions or conditions.

The consummation of the Entergy Tremsaction is subject to numerous conditions, meluding (i) consummation of certain fransaciions and
financings contemplated by the merger agreement and the separation agreement {such as the separation of Entergy's transmission business from
its disgibution husiness), (i} the receipt of ITC Holdings sharchelder approval, and {iif) the receipt of certain regulatory approvais in & form
that will not impoese a burdensome condition on us or Entergy (as described in the merger agreement}. We can make no assurances that the
Entergy Transaction will be consummated on the terms or limeline currently contemplated, or at all, We have and will continue o expend
management's time and resources and incur expenses due to legal,
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advisory and financial services-fees related to the Entergy Transaction. Governmental agencies may not approve the Hntergy Transastion or
may impose conditions 1o the approval of the Entergy Transaction or require changes 1o the terms of the Hntergy Transaction, Anv such
conditions or changes could have the effect of delaying completion of the Entergy Transaction, imposing costs on or limiting the revenues of
the combined company following the FEntergy Transaction or otherwise reducing the anticipated benefits of the Entergy Transaction, Any
condition or ¢hange which results in a burdensome condition on Entergy’s transmission business and/or us under the merger agreement and
might cause Entergy and/or usto restructure or terminate the Enfergy Transaction.

If completed, the Entergy Transaction may not be successful or achieve its enticipated benefits.

We entered’into the Entergy Transaction with the expectation that it would tesult in various benefits to us and our shareholders. The success
of the Entergy Transaction will depend, In part, on the ability of the combined company to realize anticipated growth opportunitics. The
combined company's success in realizing these growth opportunities, and the iiming of this realization, depends in part on the successful
integration of our business: and operations with the newly merged transmission business and operations. After the Entergy Transaction, we will
have significantly more revenue, expenses, assets and employees than we did prior to the Entergy Transaction. We may not saccessfully or
cost-cffectively integrate the acquired transmission business and operations fnto our business and operations. Hven if the combined company is
able to integrate (he transmission businesses and operations successfully, this integration may not result in the reatization of the full benefits of
the growth opportunities that we currently expect from the Entergy Transaction within the anticipated time frame,-or at all.

The merger egreament containg provisions that may diseourage othier companies from frying to acquire us.

The merger agreement containg provisions that may discourage s third party from submitting & business combination proposal 1o us prior to
the closing ofithe Entergy Transaction. that might result in greater value (0 ITC Holdings shareholders than the Entergy Transaction. The
merger agreement generally prahibits us from soliciting any alternative acquisition proposal, although we may terminate the merger agreement
in order to accept an unsolicited aliernative fransaction proposal thet ovr buard of divectors determines is superior to the Entergy Transaction. In
addition, before our board may withdraw or modify its recommendation or wé may terminate the merger agreement to enter into a transaction
that owr board determines is superior to the Entergy Transaction, Entergy has the opportunity to negotiate with-us to modify the terms of the
Entergy Transaction in response fo.any competing acquisition proposals that may be made. i the merger agreement is terminated by us or
Entergy m certain Timited circumstances, we may be obligated to pay a termination fee to Entergy, which would represent an-additional cost for
a potential third party seeking a business combination with us.

Fuailure to complete the Eniergy Transaction could odversely affect the mariei price of ITC Holdings conmen stock as well as our
business, financial condifior-and resulls of pperations.

If the Entergy Transaction is not completed for any reason, the price of 1T Heldings commeon steck may decline to the exterit that the
market price of ITC Holdings common stock reflects positive market assumptions that the Entergy Transaction will be completed and the
retated benefits will be realized, significant expenses such as legal, advisory and financial services which generally must be paid regardless of
‘whether the Entergy Transaction is completed aid the requirement in the merger agreement that, under cerfain Yimited CIFCIUNSLANCES, we Tust
pay Eritergy & tenmination fee,

fuvestors holding shares of ITC Holdings common stock inemediniély priov to the completion of the Entergy Tranvaction will, in the
aggregete, have a significantly reduced ownership anid voring interest in us after the Entergy Trausaction apd will pxercive fess influence
Gver manggement

Investors holding shares of ITC Holdings common stock immediately prior to the compietion of the Entergy Transaction will, in the
aggregale, own a significantly smaller percentage of the combined company immediately after the completion of the Entergy Transaction.
immediately fcllowing the complétion of the Emtergy Transaction, it isexpected that Entergy shareholders will hold af least 30.1% of the I%C
Holdings common stock and existing ITC Holdings sharchelders will hold no more than 49.9% of ITC Holdings commeon stock. Consequently,
ITC Holdings shareholders, coliectively, will be able to exercise less influence over the management-and policies of the combined comparny
than they will be-able 1o exercise over the management and our policies immediately prior (o the completion of the Entergy Transaction.
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We are required to abide by potentially significunt restrictions which could limit vur ability to undertake certain corporate actions {such
as the issuence of 1TC Holilings common stock or the undertaking of a merger or vonsoiidotion) that otherwise could be adventageous,

The merger agreement and the separation agreement impose -certain ongoing restrictions on us to ensure that applicable stetutory
requirements under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and epplicable Treasury regulations are met so that the Entergy
Transaction qualifies as tax-free to Entergy and its sharcholders. As a result of these restictions, our ability 1o engage in certain irarisactions,
such as the redemption of ITC Holdings common stock or the issuance of our equity securities {subject to certain exceptions generelly relating
to compensationy may be' fimited until two years and one day following the closing of the Entergy Transaction {excinding the $700 miliion
recapitelization in the form of a special dividend and/or share repurchase to be completed in connection with the Entergy Transaction).

If we take any of an epumerated list of actions and cmissions that would cause the Entergy Transaction to become taxable, we generally
will be required to bear the cost of any resulting tax liability. If the Entergy Transaction became taxable, Entergy would be expected 1o
recognize a substantial amount of"income, which would result in a material amount of taxes, Any such taxes allocated 10 us would be expectad
to be material to us, and could cause our business, financial condition and operating results to suffer. These restrictions may reduce our ability
te entgage n certain-business trarisactions that otherwise might be advantageous o us,

FTEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS,
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” transmission Tacilities are located in Michigan's Lower Peninsula and portions of lowa, Minnesota,
1lkinois, Missouri and Kansas. Our MISO Regolated Operating Subsidiaries have agreements with other utilities for the joint ownership of
specific substations and {ransmission: lines. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,

ITCTransmission owns the assets of 2 transmission system and related asssts, including:
* approximately 2,860 cirenit miles of overhead and underground transmission lines rated at voltages of 120 KV to 345 kv,
» approximately 17,700 transmission towers and poles;
= stafion assets, such as transformers and cireuit breakers, at 169 stations and substations whick either intercomnect ITCTransmission’s
transmission facilities orcomnect ITCTrensmission’s facilities with generation or distribution facilisies owned by others;
* other fransmission equipment necessary to.safely operate the system (e.g., monitoring and metering equipment);
» warehouses and related equipment;
+ associated land held in fee, rights of way and casements:
 an approximately 188000 square-foot corporate heatquarters facility and operations control room in Movi, Michigan, including
furniture, fixtures and office equipment; and
* an approximately 40,000 square-foot facility in Ann Arbor, Mickigan that includes & back-up operations control room.
TTCTransmisston’s First Morigage Bonds are issued under ITCTransmission’s First Mortgage and Deed of Trust. As a result, the

bondholders have the benefit of a first mortgage lien on substantially all of ITC Transmission’s property.

METC owns the assets of a transmission system and related assets, including:
* approximately 5,500 circuit miles of overhead transmission lines rated at voltages of 120 kV o 345 KV,
= approximately 36,500 transmission towers and poles;
« station assets, such as transformers and circuit breakers, at 94 stations and subsiations which eifher intercommest MIETCls transmission
facilities or connect METC’s facilities with generation or-distribution faciiities owned by others:
+* other ransmission equipment necessary to safely operate the system {e.g., thonitoring and metering equipment); and
= warshouses and related equipment.

Amounts borrowed under METC’s revolving credit agreemens are secured by g first priority secwrity interest on all of METC's assets
through the issuance of senior secured notes, collateral series, under METC's first mortgage indenture and the second supplements! indenture
thereto,

METC does not own the majority of the land on which its assete are jocated, but under the provisions of its Easernent Agreement with
Consumers Energy, METC has an easement to use the land, rights-of-way, leases and licenses in the land on which its
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transmission lines ave located that are held or controlled by Consumers Energy. See “liem 1 Business — Operaling Confracts — METC
Amended and Restated Fasement Agreersent.”

ITC Midwest owns the assets of a transmission system and related asseis, including:
» approximately 7,400 miles of transmission lines rated at voltages of 34.5kV to. 345 kV:
* transmission towers and poles;
© statiop assets, such as fransformers and circuit breakers, at approximately 261 stafions and substations which either interconnect ITC
Midwest's transmission facilities or connect ITC Midwest’s facilitios with generation or distribution facilities owned by others;
« other transmission equipment necessary to safely operate the system (e.g., monitoring and metering equipment);
* warehouses and related equipment; and
= associated land held i fee, rights of way and easements.

ITC Midwest's First Mortgage Bonds are issued under [TC Midwest's First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, As a result, the bondhelders have
the benefit of a first mortgage lien on substantially all of ITC Midwest's property.
TTC Great Plains owns the assets of two electric transmission substations in Kansas:

* 138 kV Flat Ridge Substation
¢+ 230 KV Elm Creek Substation

As.of December 31, 2611, there were no liens or encumbrances on the assets of ITTC Great Plains,

The assets of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are suitable for electric transmission and zdequate for the electricity demand i our
service territory. We priofitize capital spending based in part on meeting reliability standards within the industry. This includes replacing and
upgrading existing assets as needed.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS,

We are involved in certain legdl procesdings before various courts, governmental agencies, and mediation panels concerning matters arising
in the ordinary coutse.of business. These proceedings include certain contract disputes, regulatory matters and pending judicial matters. We
cannot predict the findl dispesition of such proceedings. We regularly review legal matters and record provisions for claims that are considered
probable of loss. The resolutien of pending proceedings is not expected to have a material effect on our operations or consolidated Hnancial
staternents it the period in which they are resolved.

Referto Notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements for a description of pending Yitigation.
ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable.
PARTII
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

) ISSUER PURCHASES QF EQUITY SECURITIES.
Siock Price and Dividends

Cur commoen stock has fratted en the NYSE sinee July 26, 2085 underthe symbol “ITC”. Prior to that time, there was no public market.for
-our stock. As of February 17, 2012, there were approximaiely 350 shareholders of record of our common stock.

The foliowing tables set forth the high and low sales price per share of the common stock for each fall quarterly period in 2017 and 2014 |
asreported on the NY.SE and the cash dividends per share paid during the periods indicated,
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Year Ended December 31,2011 ‘High Low BDividends

Quarter ended December 31, 2011 $81.90 $70.60 $0.3525
Quarler ended September 30, 2011 §78:8% 364 .88 $0.3525.
Quarter ended June 30, 2011 87467 86746 $0.3350
Guarter ended March 31, 2011 $70.28 s61.16 $0.3350
Year Ended Decomber 31, 2016 High Loy Bividends

Quarter ended December 31, 2010 $63.17 £509.77 03350
Quarter ended September 30. 2010 $63.89 351,65 $0.3350
Quarter ended Fune 30, 2010 () BEG6S $21.80 $0.5200
Quarter ended March 31, 2010 $56.04 $30.75 $0.3200

(a) The low sales price per share for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 occurred on May 6, 2010, the day when security prices on the New York
Stock Exchange experienced an intraday decline of over 1,000 points within a few minutes before partially recovering. Excluding the sgles
price per share that occurred on May 6, 2010, the lowest sales price per share for the quarter-ended June 30, 2010 was $47.45.

The declaration and payment of dividends is. subject to the discrefion of ITC Holdings® board of directors and depends on various factors,
including our nsfincome, financial condition, cash requirerents, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by ITC Holdings' hoard of
directors. As a holding company with no business operations, ITC Holdings’ material assets consist primarily of the commen stock or
ownership interests in its subsidiaries, deferred tax assets relating primarily-to federal income tax, NOLs and cash. [TC Holdings® material cash
inflows are-only from dividends and other payments received:from tfime fo time from its subsidiaries and the proceeds raised from the sale of
debt and equity securities. FTC Holdings may not be-abls to access cash generated by its subsidiaties in order to pay dividends to sharchoiders.
The-ability of ITC ¥Holdings® subsidiaries to make dividend and other payments to ITC Holdings is subject to the availability of funds afier
taking inlo accouhl the sybsidiaries’ fimding requirements, the terms of the subsidiaries’ indebtedness, the regulations of the FERC under FPA,
and applicable state laws. The debt agreements 1o which we are parties contain numerous financial covenants that could limit ITC Holdings’
ability to pay dividends, as well as covenants.that probibit ITC Holdings from. paying dividends if we are in defalt under our revalving credit
facilities. Further, gach of our subsidiaries is legaliy distinet from. ITC Hotldings and has no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make funds
available to I'TC Holdings.

If and when ITC Holdings pays a dividend on its common steck, pursuant to our special bonus phans for exesutives and cerfain non-
exccutive employees, amounts squivalent to the dividend may be paid to the special bonus plan participants, # approved by the compensation
commitiee. We currently expect these amounts 1o be paid upon the declaration of dividends on ITC Holdings® common stock,

The bioard of directors intends to increase the dividend rate from time to time as necessary to mainiain an appropriaie dividend payout ratio,
subject 10 prevailing business conditions, zpplicable restrictions. on dividend payments, the availabifity of capital resonrces and our investment
opportunities.

Prior to the consummation of the Entergy Transaction, we expect to effectuate a $760 million recapitalization, currently anticipated to 1zake
the form of a one-time special dividend to ITC Holdings' pre-merger shareholders,

The ransfer agent for the common stock is Computershare Trust:Company, N.A., P.O. Box 43078 Providence, RI 02940-3078.

in addition, the information contained in the Equity Compensation table under “lem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management and Related Stoekholder Matters™ of this report is incorporated herein by reference,
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Stock Repurchases

The follewing table sets forth, the repurchases of commen stock for the quarter ended December 31, 2011

Total Number of Muximum Number ar

Shares Purchased as Approximate Hoilar

Part.of Publicly Value of Shares that May

Fotal Numberof Average Price Announced Plan or Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans
Shares Purchased{l) Baitf per Share Program{2) or Proprams{Z}
Period

October 2011 30,389 % Ti.05 _ —
November 2611 2,492 72.93 e e
December 2011 1,253 7575 e —
Total 34,134 3 73,14 — —

(1) Shares acquired were delivered to us by employees as payment of tax withholding obligations due to us epon the vesting of restricted
stovk.
{2} We do not have a publicly announced share repurchase plan,

25

Exchibit CB-H1a



TEPEM 6.  SBELECTED FINANCIAL DATA,

The seleciad historical financial data presented betow should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to
those statements and “Ttem 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”™ included elsewhers in

this Farm 10-K.

ITC Holdings and Subsidiaries {#)

Year Ended Decemires 31,

(in thousasds, except per share data) 2011 20140 2009 2008 2007
OPERATING REVENUES 5 757397 § 696,843 § 621,015 5 617897 § 426249
COPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and-maintenance (b) 129088 126,528 95,730 113,818 81.406
Ceneral and administrative (b) (&) {d) 82,750 78,120 69,231 81,296 62,089
Depreciation and amortization () 94981 6,076 85,949 94,769 67,928
Taxes other than ‘incomne taxes {f) :33__;430 48,195 43,905 41,18¢ 33.:3-40'
Other gperating {income} and-expense — net 8443 {257} {6673 {RO9Y {6ER)
Total operating expenses 359,645 339,522 204 148 330,254 244 875
OPERATINGINCOME 397752 357,321 326,867 287.673 182174
OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME
Interest-expense 145036 147,553 130,209 122254 81,883
Allowance for equity-funds used during construction (16.659) {13,412} {13,203) (11,610} (8,145}
Lossonéstinguishmentof debt - —_ 1,263 — 348
Other'income (2.8813 {2.340) {2,792} (3.415) {3457y
Other-expense 3,962 2.588 2,618 3.944 1,618
Total other expenses (income) 131,318 129,389 118,365 111,153 72,228
INCOMEBEFORE INCOME TAXES 266,434 227932 208472 176470 106,944
INCOME TAX PROVISION () 04,749 82,254 77,572 §7,2672 36,650
NET INCOME $ 171685 § 145678 130900 § 105,208 5 73206
Basic earnings per share $ 3.38 b 2.89 $ 2.62 3 222 £ 172
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.531 5 284 5 2.58 5 248 & 168
Dividends declared per share 3 1.375 3 1.310 § 1250 b L1990 i3 1130
IFC Heoldings ang Subsidiaries {a)
As of December 31,
{in thousnnds) 24%1 2010 i 2808 2067
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents b3 38.344 $ 03,109 % 74,853 § 58110 § 2,616
Working capital (dsfieit} (113,930) 69,338 147335 1.00% 3053705
Property, plant and equipment — npet 3.415.823 2872277 2,542,064 2,304,386 1,966,433
CGoodwill 950,163 ©50,163 950,163 951,319 G59.042
Total assets 4823366 4,307,873 4,029,716 3,714,565 3213297
Long-term debt;
ITC Holdings 1,450 596 1,459,178 1,458,757 1,327,741 1,687,193
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries 1:185,423 1,037,718 975041 920,512 550,231
Total long-term debt 2,645,622 2.496 896 2,434 308 2.248.253 2,247 424
Total stockholders' equity 1.258,892 1,117,433 1,011,523 929,063 563,075
YC Holdings and Subsidiaries (8)
Year Bnded December 31,
{kn thousands) 2011 2034 pAili 2048 2067
CASH FLOWS DATA:
Capital expenditures 5 356,93] $ 388,401 & 404,514 $  401.840 5 27176

&) ITC Midwest’s results of operations, cash flows and balances are insluded for the periods prasented subseguaptnibitioRsedaisition of the
f L P 4 G



eleciric transmission assels of IP&L. on December 20, 2007,
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{b} The reduction in expenses for 2009 were due, in part, to efforts to mitigate operation and maintenance expenses and general and
administrative expenses to offsel the impact of Tower network load on cash flows and any potenitial revenue acerual relating to 2009

(¢} During 2011 and 2009, we recognized $2.0 willion and $10.0 million, respactively of regulatory assets associated with the development
activities of ITC Great Plains as well as cerfain pre-construction costs for the Kansas VePlan and KETA projects. Upon initial
establishment of these regulatory assets in 2011 and 2009, $1.9 million and $8.0 million, respectively, of general and administrative
expenses were reversed of which $1.4 miltion and $5.9 million were incurred. in periods prior fo 2011 and 2009, respectively, No Initial
establishment of regulatory assets oceurred in 2010 that resulted in reversal of expenses.

(d} During 2011, we expensed external legal, advisory-and financial services fees of $7.0 million relating to the proposed Entergy Transaction
recerded within general and administrative expenses of which certain amounts are not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

(e) In 2009, the FERC accepted the depreciation studies filed by ITCTransmission and METC that revised. their deprecistion rates. In 2010,
the FERC accepied o depreciation study filed by ITC Midwest which revised its depreciation rates. These changss in-accounting estimates
resulied in lower composite depreciation rates for ITCTransmission, METC and ITC Midwest primarily due to the revision of asset
serviee lives and cost of removal values, The revised estimate of annus! depreciation expense was reflected in 2609 for ITC Transimission
and METC and in 2010 for ITC Midwest. See.discussion in Note 4 to the consalidated financial statements under “Depreciation Studies.”

(f) The increase in the income tax provision for 2008 compared ta 2007 is due in part to the implementation of the Michigan Business Tax,
which was in effect from 2008 through 2011 and was accounted for as an incore tax, compared to the Michigan Single Business Tax in
effect prior to 2008 that was accounted for asa tax other than income tax.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

Sufe Harbor Staternent Upder The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1095

Our reports, filings and other public announcements contain certain staternents that deseribe our management’s-beliefs concerning future
business conditions, plany and prospects, growth oppoitunities and the outlook for our business and the electric fransmission industry based
upon information. currently available. Such staternents are “forward-looking™ statements within the meaning of the Private Securifies Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Wherever possible, we have identified these Farward~-looking statements by words such as “will” “may,” “anticipates,”
“believes,” “intends,” “estimaies,” “expects,” “projects” and similar ghrases. These forward-looking statements are based upon. assumptions
our management believes are ressonable. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause our actual
results, perfermance and achigvements to differ materiaily from those expressed in, or implied by, these statements, including, among ofhers,
ihe risks and uncertainties listed in *Item LA Risk Factors.”

Because our forward-looking statements are based on estimates and assumpiions that are subject o significant business, economic and
cempetitive uncertainties, many of which are bevond cur control ar are subject to change, actual results could be materially different and any or
all of gur forward-looking statements may turn -out to be wrong. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made and can be affected
by assumptions we might make or by known or unknown risks and uncertaintics. Many factors mentioned in our discussion in this report will
be important in détermining furure results. Consegnently, we canmot assure you that our expectations or forecasts expressed in. sach forward-
looking statements will be achieved. Actual future resulis may vary materially. Bxcept as reguired by law, we undertake no phligation to
publicly upidate any of our forward-looking or other statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise,

Overview

Through our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, we operate high-voltage systems in Michigan’s Lower Peninsula and portions of Jowas,
Minnesota, Hinois, Missouri and Kansas that transmit electricity from generating stations io local distribution facilities connected to our
systems. Our business strategy is to operate, maintain and invest in transmission infrastructure in order to enhance system integrity and
reliability, 10 yeduce trensmission constrainis and to allow new generating resources to interconnest to our transmission systerns. We alse gre
pursuing development projects not within our existing systems, which are also intended to improve overzll grid reliability, reduce wansmission
constraints and facilitate inferconnections of new generating resources, as well as enbance competitive wholesale eleciricity markets.

As electric transmission utilities with rates regulated by the FERC, our Regulated Operating Subsidisries eamn revenues through @rif rates
charged for the use of their eleciric transmission systems by our customers, which include imvestor-owned utilities, municipalities,
cooperatives, power marketers and alternative energy suppliers. As independent transmission companies, our Regulated Operating Subsidiarizs
are subject to rate regulation only by the FERC. The rates charged by ouwr Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are established using cost-based
formula rate templates, as discussed in “Ttem 7 Management's Discussion and
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Anatysis of Financial Condition and Restlts of Operations — Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Up Mechanistm.”

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” primary operating responsibilities include maintaining, improving and expanding their fransmission
gystems fo meet their customers’ ongoing needs, scheduling outages on system elements fo.allow for maintenance snd construction,
mainiaining appropriaie system voltages and menitoring flows over transmission lines and other facilities to ensure physical limits are not
exceeded.

Significant recent matters that influenced our financial position and results of operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2311 ormay affect future results include:

» Our copital investment of §632.9 million at vur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries ( $93.0 milkon , $156.9 million , $269.1 million and
$113.9 miilion at ITCTransmission, METC, ITC Midwest and ITC Great Plains, respectively) for the vear ended December 31, 2011,
resulfing primarily from our focus on improving system reliability-and interconnecting new generating resources;

» Debt issuances and borrowings under our revolving credit agreements in 2011 and 2010 10 fund capital investment at our Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries, resulting i higher interest expense; _

« Final recognition of revenues for the ITCTransmission rate freeze revenue deferral in May 2071, as discussed i "ltem 7 Mapagement's
Discussion and . Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of Qperaticns — Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Up Mechanism —
ITCTransmission's Rate Freeze Revenue Dieferral.” There wes g 56.9 million reduction in network revenues in 2011 compared-to 2010
and 2009 relating to the collection of the revenue deferral for the period from only January through May 2011, whick resulted in 2
reduction 1o after-tax net income of approximataly $4.3 million in 2011 compared 1o 2010 and 2009, and

» The propesed transaction with Entergy in which Entergy will divest and merge its electric transmission business with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ITC Holdings as discussed in "ltem .7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Capital Project Updates and Other Recent Developments." In 2011, we expensed external legal, advisory and financial
services fees of $7.0-million and certain intemal Jabor costs of approximately $1.6 million related to the Entergy Transaction recorded
within general and admindsirative expenses. Certain amounts of the external costs are not expected to be deductible for income fax
purposes. The external and internal costs reiated to the Bntergy Transaction are not inchuded as components of revenue requirement as
they were incurred at ITC Holdings. The transaction fees hadia. significant effect on net incomte and carings per share-amounts for the
year ended Drecember 31, 2011 and are expected to continue to be significant uniil the transaction is consummated, Completion of the
transaction 15 anticipated to oceur in 2613.

These items are discussed in more detail throughout NManagemeni’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of
Crperations.

Cost-Based Formuta Rates with True-Up Mechanism

OGur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries calculate their revenue vequitements using cosi-based formula rate templates and are cffective
without the need to file rate cases with the FERC, although the rates are subject to legal chalienge at the FERC. Uinder these formulz rate
templates, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries recover expenses and earn # return on and recover investments in property, plant and
equipment on a current rather than a lagging basis. The formula rate templates ufilize forecasted expenses, property, plant and equipment,
pointto-poirt revenues, network load at our MISO Regulated Operating Stibsidiaries and other items for the upcomiing calendar vear to
establish projected revenue Tequirements for cach of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries that are used as the basis for billing for service on
their systems from Janvary 1 o December 31 of fhat year. Our cost-based formula rate templates include 2 trus-up mechanism, whereby our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaties compare their actual revenue requirements o their billed revenues for each year to determine ANy over- or
under-collection of revenue. The over- or under-collection typically results from differences between the projected revenue requirement used as
the basis for billing and actual revenue requirement as each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, or from differences between actudl znd
projected monthly peak joads at our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. In the event billed revenues in a given vear are more or less than
actual revenue requirements, which are calculated primarily using information from that year’s FERC Form No. 1, our Regulared Cperating
Subsidiaries will refund or collect additionsl revenues, with interest, within a two-year period such that customers pay only the amounts that
correspond fo actualrevenue requirements for that given period. This annual frue-up eridures thal our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries recover
their allowed costs and eamn thelr allowed returns,

ITCTransmivsion’s Rate Freege Revenue Deferral

ITCTransmission's rate freeze revenue deferral resulted from the difference between the revenue ITCTransmission would have collected
under its cost hased formula rate and the actual revenue ITCTransmission received for the period from Febroary 28, 2003 through
December 31, 2004, The revenue defcrral was amortized for ratemaking on 2 straight-line basis for five vears from June 2006 through

May 2011 and was included in ITCTransmission's revenue requirement for those periods. Revenues of §11.9
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miltion were recognized in 2010 and 2009 relating 1o the rate freeze revenue deferral and revenues of $5.0 million were recognized in J anuary
through May Z011. The $6.9 million reduction in revenues resulted in 2 reduction (o after-tax net income of approximately $4.3 million in 2011
compared t¢ 2010 and 2009.

Revenue Averuals — Effects of Monthly Peak Londs

For owMISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, monthly peak loads are used for billing network revenues, which currently is fhe largest
component of our operating revenues. One of the primary factors that impacts the revenue accrual/deferral at our MISO Regulated Operating
Subsidiaries is actual monthly peak leads experenced as compared o those forecasted In establishing the anrual network trapsmission rats,
Under their formula rates that contain & true-up mechanism, our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries acorue or defer revenues to the extent that
their actual Tevenue requirement for the reporting period is higher or lower, respectively, than the amounis billed relating o that reporting
period. Forexample, to the extent that amoums billed are less than the revenue requirement for 2 reporting period, a revenue acerual 18 recorded
for the difference. To the extent that amounts billed are more than the revenue requivement for a reporting period, a revenue deferral is recorded
for the difference. Although menthly pesk leads do not impact operating revenues recognized, network load affects cask flows from
transniission service. The monthly peak load of our MISO Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries is affected by many variables, but is generally
impacted by weather and economic conditions and is seasonally shaped with higher load in the summer months when cooling demand ig
higher.

The following table sets forth the monthly pedk loads during the last three calendar years.

Monthly Peak Load (in MW) (a)

6% 2H10 20U%
e ITC e
TEC Transmission METC Midwest ITC T ransmission MET Whdwest ITC Transmission METC Midwest

Fanuary 1a26 6,045 2577 7258 5047 2838 7.314 &:009 2,952
Febroary 7261 4,058 2,854 6,998 5,800 2,782 FR 5818 2,818
March 6546 bt 352 6624 5,3?6 2517 7.070 5548 2655
Aprit 6,483 5416 2,458 6,561 5,112 2425 6,761 3,412 1428
Niay 35,139 7.23¢ 23 G412 TOAG 3,052 5801 3,295 2A2Y
June o 11488 £,231 3,403 8722 7,128 3,267 10,392 8,063 3,385
Faly 33‘3'21 9,359 3621 17451 5.4AUK 2472 8751 6,523 2,843
Avigust 11,158 8,534 3614 OB 8422 3,399 9,823 7R 3,103
Soptoniiser 11,288 7,908 3456 a7 7,353 2,804 §.040 ERt 2596
ietoher 4,642 5475 2377 6,725 5474 2,447 6,456 3,258 2494
November TR 6,093 2518 6,930 8734 2674 5966 3978 2634
Decemmber 7206 6,109 2,752 7,824 6,524 2,628 7661 6,192 2856

Total 105,348 82202 15 324 11,337 78550 34 495 93,250 72697 33,224

{a) Our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are each part of a joint rate zone, The load dat presented is for ail transmission. owners in
the respective joint rate zone and is used for billing network revenues. Each of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries makes up the
most significant portion of the rates or revenus requireinent billed to network load within their respective joint Tate zone.

The foliowing table presenis the network transmission rates (per kW/month) for our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries that are
refevant to-our cash flows since January 1, 2009:

Metwork Tranamission Rate FPC T ramsmission METC ETC Midweut
January 1, 200%to December 31, 2000 B2.820 $2.522 54,162
Janvary 1, 2010 to Becember 31, 2010 $2.818 $2.390 $6.882
January 1, 2011 1o December 31, 2011 $2.495 22.331 56,694
January 1, 2012 to December 31, 20612 $2.188 $2.409 $6.797

FI'C Great Plams does not receive revenue based on a peak load ezch month and therefore does not have a seasonal effect op operating cash
fiows. The SPP tarif applicable to ITC Great Plaios is billed ratably each month based on its annual projected revenue requirement.

Revenne Beguivement Caleulution

Under their cost-based formula rate templates, each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries separately caleulates s revenue
3 } ¥
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requirement based on financta] information specific fo each company. The calculation of actual revenue reguirements for a historic period is
used to calcilate the amount of network revenues recoguized in that peried and to calculate the frue-up adjustment for that period. The
calculation of projected revenue requirements is used to cstablish the transmission rate used for billing purposes, and follows the same
methodology as the calenlation of actual revenue requirement. The following steps illustrate the calenlation of revenue requirement and the
rate-setting methodelogy under the formula rate template with a true-up mechanism used by our M1SO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, ITC
Great Plains follows 2 similar methodology and uses a FERC-approved retum of 12.16% on the common equity portion of its capital structure,

Step One — Establish Projected Rate Base and Calewlate Projected Allowed Return

Rate base 1s projected using the average of the projected month-end balances for the months beginping with December 31 of the current
year and ending with December 31 of the upcoming year and consists primarily of projected in-service property, plant and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, as well as other ftems.

Projected rate base is multiplicd by the projected weighted average cost of capital fo determine the projected allowed return on rate base,
The weighted average cost of capiial is caloulated using a projected 13 month average capital structure, the forecasted pre-tax cost of the debt
portion of the capital structure and o FERC-approved retum of 13.88%, 13.38%, and 12.38% for ITC Transmissi on, METC, and, ITC Midwest,
respectively, on the common equity:portion of the capital structure.

Step Pwo — Caleulate Projecred Gross Revenue Requiremen

The projected gross revenue requirement iz calculated beginning with the projected allowed return on rate base, as calectated in Step One
above, and adding projected recoverable operating expertses and an zliowance for income taxes.

Step Three — Calenlate Projected Revenue Requirement
R 7} )

After caleulating the projected gross revenue reguirement in Step Two ahove, the projected gross Tevenue requirement is adiusted for any
prior year trug-up adjustment discussed in Step Four and is reduced for certain revenues tepeived other than network revenues, such ag
projected point-to-point, regional cost sharing revenues and rental revenuesto amive at our projested revenue requirement.

Stap Four — Calewlate True-up Adiustment

The actual tansmission revenues bifled for 2010 were compared to 2010 actual net revenue requirement which is based primarily on
amounts from the completed FERC Form No. 1 for 2010, The true-up adjustment that results from the difference between the actual revenue
billed and actual revenue requirement for 2010 was added to the 2612 projected revenue requirement used to determine the 2012 network
rangrission rate. Interest is also applied to the true-up adfustment.
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Hiustration of Formula Rate Setting, Set forth below is & simplified illustration of the caleulation of ITC Transmission’s projected revenus
requirement as well as its-component of the joint zone network transmission rate for billing purposes under its formula rate setfing mechanism
for the period from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012, that was based primarily upon projections of ITCTransmission’s 2012 FERC
Form No. 1 data. Amourts below are approximations of the amounts used to establish ITCTransmission’s 2012 prajected revenue reguirement.

Line _ - Jtem : - Instructions - Amount
1 [Projected rate base
8 1,028,300,000
2 | Muitiply by projected 13 month weighted average cost of
capital {a)
10.40%
3 |Projected allowed return on rate base {Line I x Line 2)
by 106,959,251
4 {Projected recoverable operating expenses for 2012
5 60,700,080
5 | Projected taxes and depreciation and amertization for 2012
_ $ 125,906,000
6 [Projected grossrevenue requirements. for 2012 {Line 3 + Line 4 + Line §)
3 293,559,251
7 iLess projected revenue credits for 2012
$ (46,900,000).
£ | Plusqless) 2040 true-up adjustment: b3 (28,850,000}
% | Projected revenue requirement for 2012 (Line &6 + Line 7+ Line &)
§ 217,809,251
1 |Projected average monthly 2012 network load (in kW)
§,295.000
L} j Annual component of the joint zone network transmission rate (Line® divided by Line 10}
b3 26,358
12 |Monthly component of the joint zone network transmission rate (/AW |(Line 11 divided by
‘per month) 12 months)
5 2188
(2) The weighted average cost of capital for purposes of this illusiration is caloilated as follows:
Weigdited
Percentage of Average
ITCTransmission’s Costof
Total Capitalization Cosy of Capknd Capital
Debt 40.00% 5.18% {Pro-tax) = 2407%
Hquity 60.00% 13.88% (Aflertax)= 8.33%
100.00% 10:40%

Capital Investment and Operating Results Trends

We expeet a general trand of increases in revenues and earnings for our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries over the tonsg term. The primary
factor thet is expected to contimme to increase our actual revenus requirements in. future years is our snticipated capital investment i excess of
depreciation as a result of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” long-term capitil investment programs to improve reliability and intercomnect
new generating resources, as well as the Intergy Transaction. In addition, our capital investment efforts relating 1o development intliatives are
based on establishing an ongoling pipeline of projects that will posiion us for Jong=term growth. Investments in property, plant and equipment,
when placed in service upon complefion of a capital project, are added to the rate base of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Additionally,
construction work in progress balances for our KETA Projert and Kansas V-Plan Prodect are included in rate base prior 1o heing placed in
service, and are expected to result in significant revenues in 2012 comparedto 2011, '

Crr Regulated Operating Subsidiaries sirive for high reliability of their systems and to improve accedsibility to generation sources of
choice, including renewable sowrces, The Energy Policy Act of 2005 requires the FERC to implement mandatory electric transmission
relability standards 10 be enforced by an Eleotric Reliability Organization. Effective June 2007, the FERC approved mandatory adoption of
certain reliability standards and approved enforcement actions for violators, including fines of up 1o $1.0 million per day. The NERC waz
assigned the responsibility of developing and enforcing these mandatory reliability standards. We continually assess our transmission svstems
against standards established by the NERC, as wel! as the standards of applicable regional entities under the NEREXHEE BE-b Heen delegated



certain authority for the purpose of propesing and enforcing reliability standards. We believe we meet the applicable standerds in all material
respects, although further investment in our transmission systemg and an increase in maintenance activities will likely be needed to maintain
compliance, fmprove réliability and address any new standards that may bepromulgated.

On Gotober 7, 2010, the NERC issued a recommendation for transmission owners to inspect their transmission systems o arder to verify
their fucility ratings methodelogy is based on actual field conditions, Each of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries will vndertake a
brogram 10 assoss s system over the next iwo years as a response to the recommendation. There
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are likely 1 be costs assoctated with the assessment and potential system modifications to mitigate instances where zcfual ficld conditions
necessitate a facility rating that is unacceptable to the reliable operation of the transmission system. The costs for this mitigation will be
determined after the assessment is completed, and the appropriate mitigation is planned and may result in significant operating expenses and/or
capital investment. These operating expenses and capital investments would be recovered through higher revenue requirements under the cost.
based formula rates of our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries.

We also assess our transmission svstems against owr own planning criteria that are filed annually with the FERC. Basad on our plamming
studizs, we see needs to make capital investments to (1) rebuild existing property, plant and equipment; (2) upgrade the system tu address
demographic changes that have impacted transmission Joad and the- changing role that transmission plays in mieeting the needs of the wholesale
market, including accommaodating the siting of new generation or to increase import capacity 1o meetl changes in pesk electrical derard: 3
relieve congestion in the transmission systems; and (4) achieve state and federal policy goals, such as renewable generation portfolio standards.
The foltowing table shows ouf expected and actual capital investment for euch of the Regulnted Operating Subsidiaries:

Actwal-Capital Forecasted Capital
Five-Year Capital Investment Tor the Envestment for the
(In.milliony) Envestment Program Year Eoded YVear Ending
Operating Subsidiary 20122086 {m) Becember 31, 2011 (b} . December 31, 2012
ITCTranswiission & 3% 0§ 93.0 5185~ 210
METC 581 156.9 155180
ETC Midwest 1,128 269.1 295 — 325
ITC Great Plains () 343 1139 . B3 113
Development {d) 1,380 - —

Tatal 5 4181 i 6324 - $730 — 83D

(#) The current five-year capital investment program does not inelude anficipated expenditures related fo the Emtergy Transaction. The
investments in property, plant-and equipment would be expected to increase significantly upon closing.of that transaction.

{bj Capital investment amounts differ from cash expenditures for property, plant and eqiipment inchuded fiv our consolidated statements of
cash flows due in part to differences in construction costs incurred compared to cash paid.-during that period, as well as payments for
major equipment {nventory that are Included in cast expenditures but not included capital Investment until ransferred te construction
work in progress, among other factors.

(o} ITC Great Plaiis' investment program includes the KETA Project, Kansag V-Plan Project anil Hugo-to-Valliant Project.

(d) Inciudes developmentiinitiatives within the South and North Central Regions.

Investments in property, plant and equipment could vary dueto, among other things, the impact of aciual Toads, forecasted toads, regional
economic conditions, weather conditions, union sirikes, labor shortages, material and equipment prices and avallability, our ability to obtain
financing for such expenditures, if necessary, limitations on the amount of construction that can be undertaken on our systems at any one time,
regulatory approvals for reasons reélating to rate construct, envitonmentdl, siting, regional planning, cost recovery or olher issues or 2 a result
of legal proceedings and variances between estimated and actual costs of conmstruction confracts awarded. In addition, Investments in
transmission network upgrades for generator intercormection projects could change from prior estimates-significantly due to chenges in the
MISO queus for generation projects, the generator’s potential fafiure to meet the various criteria of Atlachment FF of the MISO tariff for the
project to qualify a5 a refundable network upgrade, and other factors beyond our control,

Capital Project Updates and Other Recent Developments
Frinmib Loop Project

In 2010, we received MISO approval of the Thumb Loop Project located in ITCTransmission’s region with a total expected capital
investment of $510 million, The Thumb Loop Project consists of & 140-mile, double-circuit 345 kV transniission Ime and related substations
that will serve as the backbone of the transmission system needed to accommodate future wind devetopment projects in the Michigan counties
of Tuscola, Huron, Sanilac and §t, Clair. Siting application approval was filed with the MPSC in Aungust 2010 and granted by the MPSC in
Febroary 2011. Significant capital investments for this project are sxpested to cccur beginning in 2012.
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IEC Greal Plaing.
KETA Project

The KET A Project Is a 225-mile transmission line that will run between Spearvilie, Kansas and Axtell, Nebraska, On Januery 19, 2010, the
FERC issued an order approving the novation agreements required by SPP for the designation of the right and obligation to build the Kansas
portion of this project to ITC Great Plains by Sunflower Electric Power Corporation and Midwest Energy, Inc. The portion of the transmission
line that TTC Grest Plains is responsible for constructing will run approximately 174 miles. ITC Great Plaing bas commenced construction for
the first phase of the 345 KV KETA Project, which will ran from Spearville, Kansas to Hays, Kansas. In June 2010, ITC Great Plains received
siting approval for the second phase of the preject, which wili ruw from Hays, Kansas to the Nebraska border and has secured the regulatory
approvals tequired to complete the second phase of the KETA Project. Through December 31, 2611 , ITC Great Plains had recorded
construction -work in progress of $96.9 million for KETA project. Wenow estimate that the cost for ITC Great Plains’ portion of the KETA
Project will be approximatety $175 million. '

Kansas V=Plan Project

The Kansas V-Plan Project is a 200-mile transmission line that will run between Spearvilie and Wichita, Kansas. In 2609, the KCC
authorized ITC Great Plains to build 2 portion of the segment from Spearville to Medicine Lodge, Kansas. Theportion of the wansmission line
that ITC Great Plains is responsible for constructing will run approximately 120 miles. The Kansas Corporation- Commission gpproved 1TC
Great Plaing' request for a transmission Hne siting permit on July 12, 2011, FTC Great Plains has obtained the remaining permits necessary 1o
bogin construction of the project. We estimate: that ITC Great Plains will invest approximately $300 million to construct its portions of the
project.

Regulatory Assets

As of December 31, 2011 , we have recorded approximately $I5.8 millien of regulatory assets for start-up amd development expenses
meowrred by ITC GreatPlaing, which include certain costs incurred for the KETA Project and the Kansas V-Plan Prajeet prior to construction.
In March 2011, we recognized the Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asset ¢f $2.0 million and eorresponding reduction to operating expenses,
which resulted in net income of $1.3 million . Subsequent to the initial recognition of the Kansas V-Plan Project regulatary asset in March
2011, weresorded an additional $1.1 million of eost incured for the Kansas V-Plan Project through December 3 1, 2011 divectly to regulatory
assets. Based on ITC Great Plains® application and the related FERC order, ITC Great Plains will be required to make an additional filing-with
the FERC under Section 205 of the FPA in order to recover these start-ip, development and pre-construction expenses.

Development Bonuses

During 2011 and 2010 , we recognized general and administrative expenses of $1.2 million and $1.9 million, respectively, for bonuses for
the sucesssful completion of certain regulatory milestones relating to the Kansas V-Plan Project and XETA Project, respeciivély, If is
reasonabiy possible that future-development-related bonuses would be authorized and awarded for these or other development prejects,

North Ceniral Region Development

In 2009, we formed Green Power Express and dnnounced the Green Power Express project, which consisted of transmission line segments
that would faciitate the movement of power from the Dakoias, Minnesota and Jowe to Midwest load centers that demand energy. After the
announcement of the (hreen Power Express project, MISC undertook RGOS 1o promote investments in new regicnal transmission
infrastructure and implemented its MV?P cost allocation methodology. MISO's RGOS and MVP processes provide a channel for the (ireen
Power Express project, or its underlying segments, o move forward through the planning approval process s MVPs. In December 201 i,
MISQ approved the first portfolio of MVPs identified through the RGOS which includes portions of four MVPs that we intend Yo build, own
and operate. The four MVPs arelocated in south central Minnesota, portions of Towa, southwest Wiscensie, and northeast Missourd.

Green Power Express has ceriain FERC-authorizeéd transmiséion investment incentives, including the esizhlishment of a regulatory assel for
start-up and development costs of Green Power Express and certaiit pre-construction costs for the project to be recovered. pursuant to a future
FERC filing. Further, Green Power Express has a FERC-approved formula rate with 2 return on equity of 12.38% 2nd 2 capital structure
targeting 60% equity and 40% debtl. The amount of any future capital expenditures by Green Power Express is surrently unknown.

The total development expenses through December 31, 2011 at Green Power Express that may be recoverable through regulaiory assets
ware approximately B5.5 million , which have been recorded to expenses in the periods in which they were imcurred. ¥ in & futire reporting
pesiod it becomes probable that futiye revenues will result from the authorization to recover these development expenses, we will recognize the
regulatory assets. Wo regulatory assers or construction work in progress for Green Power Lxpress have been recorded as of December 31, 2011
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Entergy Transaction

As of December 4, 2011, Entergy and ITC Holdings executed definitive agreements under which Entergy will divest and then merge its
electric transmission business with a wholly-owned subsidiary of 1TC Holdings. Entergy’s eleciric transmission business consists of
approximately 15,700 miles of interconnected transmission lines at voltages of 69 kV and above and associated substations zeross is utlity
servics territory in the Mid-South.

The Entergy Transaction would expand our network across the entive middle of the continenta] United States from the Great Lekes to the
Gulf Coast. It will approximately double our asset base, add sizable new markets to our operating and development portfolio, and diversify and
enhance growth prospects through an expanded footprint.

The terms of the transaction agrecments cal! for Entergy to divest ite-electric transmission business to a newly-formed entity, Mid South
TransCo LLC ("Mid South TransC6™), ard Mid South TransCo's subsidiaries, and diswibute the-equity interests in Mid South TransCe %
Entergy's sharehoiders in the form of @ tax-fres spin-off. Mid South TransCo will then merge with a newly-created merger subsidiary of ITC
Heldings in an sll-stock, Reverse Morris Trust ransaction, and will survive the merger 25 @ wholly owned subsidiary of TTC Holdings. Prier to
the merger, we expect to effectuate a recapitalization, currently anticipated to take the form of 2 one-time special dividend of $700 million to
ITC Holdings® pre-merger shareholders. The merper will resulr in shareholders of Entergy receiving approzimately 50.1% of the shares of pro
forma ITC Holdings in exchange for their shares of Mid South TransCo, with existing shareholders of [TC Holdings owning the remaining
approximately 49.9% of the combined company. In addition, Entergy will receive gross cash proceeds of $1.775 billion from indebtedness that
will be incurred by Mid South TransCo and its subsidiaries prior to the merger. This indehtedness will be assumed by us.

Completion of the Entergy Transaction is sxpected in 2013 subject to the satisfaction of cortain ciosing conditions, inciuding the necessary
approvals of Entergy’s refail regulators, the FERC and I'TC Holdings' shareholders. There can be no assurance the Entergy Transaction will be
consummated. See “Item 1A Risk Factors — We may be unable to satisfy the condifions or obtain the approvals reguired to complete the
Entergy Transaction or such approvils'may contain material restrictions orconditions.”

Significant Components of Results of Uperations
Revenues

We derive nearly all of our revenues from providing network transmission service, peini-to-point transmission service and other rélated
services over our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” transmission systems to Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy, IP&L and to other entities
such as alternative electricity suppliers, power inarketers and other wholesale customers that provide slectricity to end-use consumers and from
transaction-based capacity reservations op car fransmission sysiess, MISO ang SPP are respensibie for billing and collection of transmission
serviees. As the biiling agent for pur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, MISO and SPP collect fees for the use of our {ransinission EVSEOIS,
invoicing Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy, IP&L and other customers on a monthly basis.

Network Revenues are generated from network customers for their use of our eleciric transmission systems and consist of both hilled
nefwork revenues and accrued or deferred revenues as a result of owr accounting under owr cost-based formula rates that contain a true-up
mechanism. Refer to “Ttemn 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resujis of Operations — Critical Accounting
Policies — Revenue Recognition under Cost-Based Formila Rates with True-Up Mechanisms” for a discussion of revenue recognition reiating
to network revenues. The monthly network revenues billed to customers using the Transmission facilities of our MISO Regulated Operating
Subsidiaries are the result of 2 calculation which can be simplified into the following:

{}} multiply the network load measured-in ¥W achieved during the one hour of monthly peak usage for our transmission systems
by the-appropriate monthly tariff rate by 12 by the numbier of days v that momih; and
(2} divide the result by 365,

Our rates at ITC Great Plains are billed ratably ¢ach month based on its annual projected revenue requirement and therefore peak usage
does not. tmpactits billed network transmission revenues.

Poinrto-Point Revennes consist-of revenues generated from a type of transmission service for which the customer pays for fransmission
capacity reserved along a gpecified path between two poims on 2a bourly, daily, weekly or montlily basis, Pomt-to-point revenues also include
other components purguant fo schedules under the MISO and SPT wanamission tad . Point-to-point revenues are a reduction in net revenue
requirement for network revenuey celoulated under our cost-based formula raies.

Regional Cost Sharisg Revenues are genersted from transmission customers throughout RTO regions for their use of our MISO Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries” network upgrade projects that are eligible for regional cost sharing under provisions of the MISO tariff meluding MVP
projects such as the Thumb Loop Project. Additionally. the KETA Project and Kansas V-Plan Projeet at ITC (reat Plains are eligible for
recevery through & region-wide charge under provisions of the SPP tariff. Regional cost sharing revenues consist of both billed regional cost
sharing revenues and accrued or deferred revenues 28 & result of our
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accounting under our cost-based formula rates thet contain a true-up mechanism. The amount of the regional cost sharing revenue accruais
{deferrals} is estimated for each reporting period until such time as the regional cost sharing formula rate templates based on actual costs are
completed for each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries during the following vear.

Scheduling, Control and Dispatch Revenues are allocated to our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries by MISO as compensation for
the services performed in operating the transmission system. Such services include monitoring of reliability data, current and next day analysis,
Implementation of emergency procedures and odtage coordination and switching. Revenues that are allocated by MISO to our MISO Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries relating to these services are determined based on projected expenses incurred but are not subject to a frue-up
adjustment. In any given year, our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries may earn more or iess scheduling, control and dispatch revenues
than our actual expenses incurred for control room activities.,

Other Revenues consist of rental revenues, casement revenues, revenues relating to wilization of joimtly owned Jines under our
trangmission ownership and operating agreements and amounts from providing ancillary services to customers.

Operating Expenzes

Operation and Maintenance Expenses consist primarily of the costs of confractors to operate and maintzin our transmission systems and
cotts Tor our personnél involvedin operation and maintenance activities.

Operation expenses inciude activities related to control area operations, which involve balancing loads and generation and transmisston
system operations activities, including monitoring the status of our ransmission lines and stations, The expenses relating o METC s Easement
Agreoment are aiso recorded within eperation expensés.

Maintenance expenses -include preventive or planned maintenance, such as vegetation management, fower painting and equipment
inspections, as well as reactive-maintenance for equipment fallures.

General and Adminfstrative Expenses consist primarily of costs for personnel in our legdl, information technology, finance, regulatory
and human resources organizations, general office expenses-and fees for professional services, Professional services are principally composed
of outside legal, andit and information technelogy services. We capitalize to property, plant and equipment portions of certain general and
administrative expenses such 45 compensation, efficerrent, utilities and information technology.

Depreeiation and Amortization Expenses consist primarily of depreciation of property, plant and equipment using the sireight-line
method of accounting. Additionally, this consists of amortization of various reguiatory and intangible assets: We capitalize to property, plant
and equipment depreciation expense for vehicles and equipment used in our constriction activities,

Taxes other than Income Taxes consist primarily of property taxes and payroll taxes.

Other Operating Income and Expense — Net consists primarily of gains and losses associated with the sale of assets. Additionally, this
item consists of income recognized for tax gross-ups recejved from developers or generators for construction projects as described in Note 2 to
the consclidated financidl statements under “Generator Interconnection Profects.” The tax gross-up represents the difference between the tax
effects of the taxable ncome associated with the contribution compared to the present value of the tax depreciation deduction of the proparty
constructed using the taxable conmibution i aid of construction,

Other itemy ef income ar expense

Interest Expense consists primarily of interest on debt at ITC Holdings and our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Additionally, the
amortization of debt financing expenses is recorded 1o interest expense. An allowance for borrowed funds used during constraction ¢ included
in property, plant and equipment agcounts and is & reduction to inferest expense.

Allowance for Eguity Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC equity®) is recorded as an item of other income and is included in
property, plant and equipment accounts. The allowance represents a return on ecuity at our Regulated Operating Subsitharies used for
construction purposes it accordance with FERC regulations. The capitalization rate applied to the construstion work in progress balance is
based on the proportion of equity to total capita] (which currently inchudes equity and long-term debt) and the aliowed retum on equity for our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries.

Income tox provision

Income tax provision consists of federal and state incoms taxes.
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Results of Operations

¥ The following table summarizes historical operating results for the periods indicated:

Year Ended Percentage Year ended Percentage
Pecernber 31, fnerease Increase December 31, Incrense increase
(in thousands)y 2611 2410 {Decrense) {Decresse) 2089 {Brpcrease) {Decrease)
OPERATING REVENUES $ 757397 5 696843 5 a0,554 8. 7% § 621,015 $ 75828 12:2%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 120,288 126,524 2,760 22% 95,730 30,798 3L
General and admindstrative 82,750 TRAZO 4,670 6.0% 69,231 8,889 12.8%
Deprectation and amortization G 981 86,976 8,005 4.2% 83,949 1,027 1.2%
Taxes-other than income taxss 53430 48,195 5,233 10.9% 43,903 4290 9.8%
Gther operating.(income) and
LRPENSES it (8443 {257) {547} 184,2% {667y 370 {55°5%
Total operating expenses 359,645 335,522 20,123 59% 294,148 45 374 15.4%
OPERATING INCOME 397752 357321 40,431 11.3% 326,887 30454 9.3%,
OTHER EXPENSES {(INCOME)
Interest expense 146,938 142,553 4,385 3% 130,209 12344 9.5%
Allowance for-synity funds used
during construction {16,699} (134123 {3,287 24.5% {13203} (2093 1.6%
Loss on extingnishment of deby — — —_ T wa 1,263 {1263y (100.00%
Other meome (2,881 (2.340) (541 23.3% {2,792} 452 {16.2)%
Other-expense 3962 2588 1374 53.1% 208 (3303 {11.3)%
Totel other expenses {income) 131,318 129,386 1,929 1.5% _118.385 10,994 9.3%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAXES 266434 227932 38,502 f6.9% 208472 19.46{ 33%
INCOME TAX PROVISION 84,740 82254 12,495 15.2% 17572 4,682 6.8%
NETINCOME ¥ 171685 8 T45.678 5 2a0n7 17.9% % 1385 G40 & 14778 13.3%

Operating Revennes
Year ended December 31, 201 ] compared io year ended December 31, 2010

The following table sets forth the components of and changes in operating revenues:

Percentage
2011 2630 inerease Inerease

{in thewsands) Asmeunt Perceniage Amount Perceniage {Decrease) {Decreage)
Network revenues % 637,807 84.2% ¥ 39507 88.4% ho 42,736 7.2%,
Regional cost sharing revenues 87,304 11.5% 55,638 8.0% 31,668 56.9 %
Pointito-point 15,003 2.1% 26,065 3.7% (10,1603 390
Scheduling, contral and disparch 11,583 1.5% 14.525 2.1% (2,942} (20.3)%
Other 4,800 0.7% 5.546 0.8% {746) {13.5)%
Total 5 757,397 160.8% 5§ 006,843 I00.0% 8 60,554 8.7 %

Network revenues increased due primarily to higher net revenue requirements at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries during the vear
ended December 31, 2817 as compared to the same peried in 2010, Higher nef revenue requirements were due primarily (o higher raie base
associated with higher balances of property, plant and eguipment in-service and higher recoverable expenses due to higher operating expenses,
partially offset by the final monthly recognition in May 2011 of the ITCTransmission rate freeve revenue deferral deseribed above under "liem
7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financlal Condilion and Results of Operations — Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Lip
Mechanism - ITCTransmission's Rate Freeze Revenue Deferral.”

Regional cost sharing revenues increased due primerily to additional capital projects that have been identified by MISG as eligible for
regioral cost sharing and placing these projects into service. We expect to continue fo receive regional cost shering revenues and the amounts
could increase in the near future, including revenues associated with projects that have been or are sxpecied 1o be approved for regional cost
sharng.

Point-to-point revenues decreased due primarily to a decline in the number of pomi~to-pomt reservations. Exhibit CB-Hia
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Scheduling, control and dispatch revenues decreased due primarily to a change in MISO's revenue distribution methodology for these types
of revenues in 2017 compared to 2010, The new method was impleraented in 2011 to better align the revenues relating to these services with
the projected expenses,

Operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 include the network revenue aceruals (deferralsy and regional cost sharing
revenue accruals {deferrals) as calculated below:

Tertal
EYC Great Ket Revewue
.ine Ttem TG ransmission METC ITC Midwest Plains Dreferrals
(in thonsapds)
1 Hitimatetlnet rovenue requiremerit
(netwoik tevenues recognized) {a) g 2455717 $ 188.57Y $ 203,083 kY 2,230
2 Network revenues billed (b) _ 267,842 198,110 212,718 TI8
Network revenue accruals (deferrals) _
(fine ¥ —1ine 2} (33,925) £9.5333 {9,695} 1,512
4 Regional cost sharing revenue acoruals
{deferrals){c) (1637 (1.237y 4,088 {3,327
5 Tatal et revenue deferrals-(line 3 +-line
45 - £ 255623 § (107705 $  (5607) % {LEIO) - 0§ (43740

(a) The calculation of net revenue requirement for our Regulated Operating Subsidizries s deseribed in “ltem 7 Managementis Discussion
and Analysis of Finacizl Condition and Results of Operations — Cost-Based. Formuia Rates with True-Up Mechanism — Net Revenue
Requirement Calculation.” The amoeunt is estimated for each reporting period untll such time as FERC Form No. 17s ase completed for our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. '

{b) Networlk revenues bilied af our MISO Regulsted Operating Subsidiaries are calculated based on the joint zone monthly network peak load
maltipited by their effective monthiy network rates for 2011 of $2.495 per kW/month, $2.331 per KWimonth and $6:694 per kW/month
applicable to ITCTransmission, METC and ITC Midwest, respectively, adjusted for the actual number of days m the month less amounts
recovered or refunded associated with our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries 2009 true-up adiustments. The rates for 20171 melude
amounts for the collection and refund of the 2009 revenue.aceruals and deferrals and relaied acerued interest and the revenues bilied in
2011 associated with the 2009 revenue acerials and deferrals are not included in these amounts. Qur rates at ITC Great Plains are billed
ratably each month based on its annual projected net revenue reguivement.

(¢) Regional cost sharing revenues are subject to a separate true-up mechanism whereby our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries accrue or defer
revenues for any over- or under-recovery. The related revenue zcernals or deferrals associated with regional cost sharing revenues are
inchzded in the regional cost sharing revenue amounts,

Year ended: December 31, 2010 compared to vear ended December 31, 2000

The following table vets forth the components of and changes in operating revenues:

Percentage
2018 2089 Incrense increase

{In thousands) Aot Percentage Amtount Percentage {Decrease) {Drecreast)
Natwaork-ravenues $ 80547 £5:4% 5 347279 88:1% § 7792 BT %
Regional cost sharing revenues 55,638 8.0% 39710 &.4% T 13,928 a1 %
Peint-to-point 26,0683 3.7% 17.087 2.8% 8,976 5235 %
Scheduling, control and dispateh 14,525 2.1% 14,578 2.3% (533 {0.4)%
Other 5,546 0:8% 2361 0.4% 3,185 134.9 %
Total 5 696,843 100.0% & 621,018 100.0% § 75828 122 %

Network revenues increased due primarily to higher net revenue requirements at our Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries daring the vear
ended December 31, 2010 as compared o the same period in 2009 . Higher net revenue requirements were due primarily to higher rate hases
associated with higher balances of property, plant and equipment in-gervice and higher recoverable expenses due primarily to higher operation
and maintenance expenses, partially offset by higher regional cost.sharing and poini-te-point revenues,

Regional cost sharing revenues inoreased due primarily to additional capital projects that have been idens Hed by MISO and SPP as eligible
for regional cost sharing.

Point-to peint revenues increased due primarily to an increase in scheduled transmission flow on our fransmission systems,
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Other revenues increased due primarily to revenue recognized at METC for utilization of its jointly owned lines under its transmission
ownership and operating agreements,

Operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 include the network vevenue accruals {deferrals) and regional cost sharing
revenue accruals {deferrals) as calculated below:

Totaf
Net Revepue
FIC Greag
Line B Ttem ITCTransmission METC IFC Midwest Plains Deferraly
{En thensands}
I Estimated net revenue requirement
{network revenues recogmzed) (2) $ 238,818 $ 171259 % 183,005 $ 1,859
2 Network revenues billed (b) 267 441 173,718 183.027 1,070
3 Network veverie acernals {deferrals)
{Boel —line 2y {28,623) 245D 68 §26
4 Regional cost sharing revenue accruals
{deferrals) (¢) {740 {7086y 1,464 {745}
5 “Fotal net revenue accruals (deferrals) '
© o fline ¥aTine 4) 5 {29363 8 {93537y % 1,532 % 84 (372843

(d) The calewlation. of net revenue requirernest for our Regulated Operating ‘Subsidiarizs is described in “Tiern 7 Management®s-Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Conditon and Results of Gperations — Cost-Based Formule Rates with True-Up Mechanism ~- Net Revenue
Reguirement Calculation.” The amountis estimated for each reporiing period until such fime as FERC Form No, 17s arc completed for our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries.

(b) Network revenues billed at our MISU Regulated Operating Subsidiaries were caloulated. based on fhe Jjohnt zone monthly network peak
foad multiplied by our effective monthly network rates for 2010 . The rates for 2010 include amounts for the coliection of fhe 2008
revenue aceryals and the revenues billed in 2010 associsted with the 200§ revenue actrusls are not included in these smounts, Cher vates at
{TL: Great Plains are billed ratably each month on its annual projected net revenue requirement.

(c) Regional cost sharing revenues are subject to a true-up mechanism whereby our Regelated Operating Subsidiafies scerue or defer
revenues for zny over- or under-recovery.

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance expenses
Yewr ended December 31, 2011 compared io year ended December 31, 2010

Operation and maintenance expenses increased by $4.8 million due to NERC compliance activities associated with survéying transmission
overhizad.lings, by $3.0 miliicn due to higher vehicles and equipment expenses related to higher fuel costs ag well ag the age and number of
vehicies in the fleet, by $2.6 million due to Higher operating and training expenses, and by $2.5 millicn dus to higher costs of helicopter
patrolling for infrared aud visual inspections of the system and transmission lines. These increases were partially offset by $4.5 million due to
lower vegetation management requitements, $%.0 million due to lower substation facility maintenance expenses, and $3:0 miliion due to
reduced structure maintenance primarily caused by reduced tower painting requirement in 2017

Year ended Dacember 31, 2610 compared to.year ended December 31, 2009

Operation and maintenance expenses ncreased by $15.1 million due to higher vegetation managemént expenses, by $6,7 million due to
higher equipment and structure maintenance, by $4.7 :million due 1o higher tower painting requirements and $4.4 million due to higher
substation facility maintenence expenses. The lower eperation and maintenance expenses in 2000 were due in part to efforts to mitigate
operation and maintenance expenses and general and administrative expenses 1o offset the impact of lower network load an cash flows and any
potential revenue accrual relating to 2009.

General and administrative expenses
Year ended Decamber 31, 2611 compared 10 vear ended December 21, 2018

General and administrative expenses increased by $7.2 million due to higher professional advisory and consulting services primarily related
to external legal, advisory and financial services fees related fo the Entergy Transaction and by $2.1 millien due to higher general business
expenses primarily due to increased information techmology suppart. These incresses were partially offset by $3.6 million of lower
compensation-related expenses and by the reduction of expenses in the first quarter of 2011 of $1.9 million {of which $1.4 million were
incurred in periods prior to 2011} in connection with the recagnition of the Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asset.
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Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2000

General and administrative expenses increased by $8.0 milliar dueto the reduction of expenses in 2009 in connection with the recognition
of regulatery assets relating to development activities of ITC Great Plains as well as certain pre-consiruction costs for the KETA Project. In
addition, general and administrative expenses increased by $11.0 milflion due to higher compensation and benefit expenses due in part to
personnel addifions, stock compensation expense and the developmeni bonuses for certain projects at {TC Great Plains. These increases were
partially offser by lower professional advisory and consulting services of $4.9 million as well as lower generzl business expenses of $4.0
million.

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared 1o vear ended December 31, 2070

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased due primarily fo a higher depreciable base resulting from property, plant and equipment
additions. '

Year ended December 31, 2015 compared to vear ended December 31, 2009

Depreciation and amortization expenses at owr Regulated Operating Subsidiaries increased due to & higher depreciable rate base resulting
from property, plant and equipment additions. This increase was partially offset by the effects of the ITC Midwest depreciation study, which
revised ITC Midwest's depreciation rates usedl 1o calculate depreciation expense for the 2010 calendar vear and-resubted In a reduction of
depreciation expense of §5.1 million as described in Note 4 1o the consolidated financial statements.

Taxes other than income iaxes
Year ended December 31, 2011 comparad to vear ended December 31, 2010

Taxes other than income taxes increased due to higher property tax expenses primarily due to oor MISO Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries’
2016 capital additions, which are included in the assessments for 2011 personal property taxes.

Year ended December 51, 2000 compared to year ended December 31. 2009

Tazes other than income taxes increased due to higher property tax expenses primarily due to-our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’
2009 capital additions, which sre included in the assessments for 2010 personal property faxes.

Cthier expenses (ihcome)
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared io year ended December 31, 20H)

Iriterest-expense mcreased due primarily to an ncrease in borrowing levels under cur revolving credit agreements.
Year ended Decensber 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2008

Interest expense increased due primarily to additional interest expense associated with ITC Holdings” 5200 million debt issuance in
Diecember 2009, This increase was partially offset by the effects of lower borrowing levéls and intersst rates under ouwr revolving credit
agreemenis,

AFUDC equity incredsed due to increased property, plant and equipment expenditures and the resulting higher construction work in
progress balances during 2018 compared to 2009,

Income Tax Provision
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to vear anded December 31, 2010

Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are 35.6% and 36.1% | respectively. Our effective tax rate differs
from our 35% statutory federal income tay rate due primarily 1o state income taxes as well s the thx effects of AFTDC equity which reduced
the effective tax rate, The amount of income tax expense relating 1o AFUDC aquity is recognized asa regulatory asset and not included.in the
income tax grovision. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries include axes payable relaiing to AFUDC equity in thelr actual revenue
requirements. We recorded a state income tax provision of $3.8 million {net of federal deductibility) during the year ended December 31, 2011
. compared to a state income tax provision of $5.9 million (net of foderal deductibility} for the year ended Drecember 31, 2010 . Included in the
state income tax provision recorded during the year ended December 31, 2011 ig the offect of the Michigan tax law change as discussed in Note
10, which reduced the income tax provision by $4.6 million.

Yeur ended December 31, 2000 compared io year ended December 31, 2009

Cur effsctive tax rate for the years ended Docember 31, 2010 and 2009 are 36.1% and 37.2% respectively. Our effective rate differs from
our 35% statuory federal income tax rate due primarily o state income tax provision of $5.9 million (net of federal deductibility). recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2010 and $8.0 million {net of federz deductibility) recorded during
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the year ended December 31, 2009, partially offset by the tax effects of AFUDC equity which reduces the effective tax rate. The amount of
income tax expense relating to AFIUDC equity is recognized.as a regulatory ‘asset and not included in the income tax provision, Our Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries inglude taxes payable relaling to AFUDC equity in their actual net revenue reguirements. Additionally, the income tax
provision for the year ended December 31, 2010 bas been reduced by 30.7 million for the settlement of an uncertain tax position resulting from
the deductibility of transaction costs incurred in connestion with the METC acquisition.

Liquidity and Capital Resouices

We expect to fund our future capital requirements with cash from operations, our existing cash and cash equivalents and amounts available
ander our revolving credit agreements (the terms of which are deseribed in Note 8 o fhe consolidated financial statements}. In zddition, we
ay from time to time secure debt and equity funding.in the capital markets, although we can provide no assurance that we will be able to
obtain financing on favorable terms or at all, We expect that our capital requirements will arise principally from our need to:

* Fund capital expenditures at owr Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and, following the close of the Entergy Transaction, capital
expenditures at the subsidiaries of Mid South TransCo. Owr plans with regard to property, plant and equipment investmenis are
described in defail above under “Hem 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationg ——
Capital Investment and Operating Resuifs Trends.”

» Fund business development expenses and related capital expenditures. We are pursuing development activities for fransmission projects

+ which will continue 1o result in the incurrence of development expenses ard could result in significant capital expenditures,

» Fund woerking capital reguirernents,

» Fund our debt service requirements, which are described in detai! befow under “Item 7 Managemeni’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Contractual Obligations,” We expect our interest payments {o increase each vedr as a
result of the adilitional debt we expect to incur to fund our-capital expendifures.

= Fonddividends to holders-of our common stock,

¢ Fund:coniributions to owr retirement plans, as described in Note 11 o the'consalidated financial statements, We expect te copfribute up
to §11.6 million to these plans in 2012, The impact of the growth-in the number of participants in our retirement benefit plans and
changes in the requirements of the Pension Protection Act may require contributions to our retirement plans to be higher than we have
experienced in the past.

In additich to the expected capital requirements above, any adverse determination relating to the contingencies deseribed in Note 16 to the
consclidated finanecial statements would result in additional capital requirements.

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources to meet our currently anticipated short-term needs. We rely on both internal and
external sources of liquidity o provide working capital and to fund capital investments, We expect to continué to utilize our revolving credit
agreements and our cash and cash equivatents as needod to meet our short-term cash requirements. During 201 1, we eatered info new revolving
credit agreements at ITC Holdings, ITC Great Plains, ITCTransmission and METC in the smount of £200.0 nmiflion , $150.0 miilion., $100.0
million and $100.0 million , respectively, and an additional revolving credit agreement at ITTC Midwest for $75.0 million as desceribed in Note §
to-the consolidated financial statements. . As of December 31, 2011 , we had consolidated indebtedness under our revolving credit agreements of
$201.1 millton , with total. unused capacity under the agreements of $464.5 million .

For our tong-term capital requirements, including the funding of the currently anticipaied $700 million special dividend i connestion with
the Entergy Transaction, we expect that we wili need to obtain additions] delt financing. Certain of our eapital projects could be delayed in the
event-we experience difficulties in accessing capital. We expect to be able to obtain such additionel financing as needed in amounts and upon
terms that will be reasonably satisfactory to-us,

Credit Rafings

Credit ratings by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies are an important component of our Houidity profile. Credit ratings relate to
our ability to issue debt securities and the cost t© horrow money, and shoold not be viewed as an indication of futere sock performance or 2
recommendation to buy, sell, or hold securities. Ratings are subject to revigion or withdraveal at any time and each rating should be evsluated
independently of any other rating. Our current credit ratings are displaved in the following table. An explanation of these ratings may be
obtained from the respective rating ageney.
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Standard and Poor’s Maoody's Investor

Issuer Issuance Ratings Services (a) Service, Inc. ()
ITC Holdings Sentor Unsecured Notes BEB Baa?
IECTFransmission First Mortgage Bonds A Al
METC Senior Secured Notes A Al
ITC Midwest First Mortgage Bonds A Al
ITC Great Plains Unsecured Credit-FPacility BBE+ Baal

{2} On December 3, 2011, Standard and Poor's Financial Services upgraded the credit ratings of ITC Holdings, ITCTransmission, METC, ITC
Midwest and ITC Great Plains debt. All of the ratings have a stable outiook.

(b} Moody's Investor Service, Inc. updated their credit opinions on April 20, 2011 and made no changes to fhe credit ratings. All of the
ratings have a stableoutiook.

Covenants

Our debt instruments inciude senior notes;, secured notes, first morigage bonds and revolving credit agreements corfaining numerous
financial and operating covenants, which are summarized in Note 8 to the consolidated finencial stafeiments. We are curvenily in compliance
with all debt covenants und in the event of a downgrade in our credit ratings, nons of the covenants would be directly tmpacied.

Cash Flows
Thefoliowing table summarizes cash flows forthe periods indicated:

Vear Ended December 31,

{x thousands) pithe) 2610 2869
CASHFLOWS TROMOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Netincome & 1716838 145,678 § 130,900
Adjustments to reconcile netincome to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 94,981 86,976 ' 85,949
Regognition of and refund-and coflection of révenuve accrudls and deferrals —
including acerued interest 56.944 121,315 10912
Deferred income tax expense 30,797 76,746 75,001
Tz benefit for excess tax deductions of share-based compensation (28,114) (3303 {129}
Other 54,623 (7.067) 34,698}
Net cash provided by operating activities AR0916 43333 267,935
CASHTFLOWE FROM.INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures-forproperty, plant and equipment {(556.937) (388401 {404.514)
Other (3,264) (4603 {4,448)
Net-cashused ininvesting activities {360.193) {388,841) {408.962)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net issusnee/repayment of long-term debt {including revolving credit agreements) 147660 62:034 185,802
Issuance of common stock 18,993 8,908 3,575
Drnvidends on commion stock (70,3533 {660417 {62,408}
Refundable deposits from and repavments to generators for transmission nerwork
upgrades — net 28,792 {18,295} 35,051
Tax benefit for excess tax deductions of share-based compensation 28,114 320 129
Cher {10.682) {1,142 {4,379
Net cash provided by (used i) financing activities 142,514 {14,216} 187,770
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {36,765) 20,256 16,743
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of period 95109 74,853 58,110
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of period $ 58344 95,109 $ 74.853
41
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Year ended December 31, 2017 compared to vear ended December 31, 2010

Net cash provided by operating activities decressed
$42:4 million in 2011 comparad to 2010. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities was due primarily 0. higher income taxes paid
of $25.3 million and $6.3 miltion of additional interest payments (net of interest capitalized) during 2011 compared tc 2010. Additionally, there
was a decrease-of $27.8 million due to recopnizing reductions of federal and state income tax labilities related to tax benefits for exoess tax
deductions of share-based compensation recognized in 20171 that are reflected as financing cash inflows. These decreases were partially offset
by an increase in cash received from operating revenuss of $9.3 million.

Year ended December 37, 2010 compared to year ended Decomber 31, 2009

Net cash previded by operating activities increased $155.4 miliion in 2010 over 2000. The increase in cash provided by operating activities
was due primarily to an increase in cash received from.operating revenues of $173.9 million due to the collection of $83.8 miflion of the 2008
formula rate revenue accruals and related acerued interest, as well as the additional revenues collected as a result of higher monthly peak loads
in 2010 compared to whit had been forecasted in devcloping the network transmission rates for our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries.
These increases were partially offset by $10.5 million of eddifional interest payinents (net of interest capitalized) due primarily to higher
outstanding balances of leng-term debtas well as higher income taxes puid of $6.9 million during 2010 compared to 2000,

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared vo vear ended Devember 31, 2010

Net cash used in investing activities increased $171.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010. The increasc in cash used in investing activities
was due primarily to higher mvestments in property, plant and equipment during 2071 as we executed cur capital investment plan described
above under “— Overview - Capifal Investment and Operating Results Trends.”

Year ended December 31, ?6‘.}' & compured to year ended December 31, 26509

Net cash used-in.investing activities decreased $20.1 million in 2010 over 2009. The deerease in cash used in investing activities was due
primarily to-lower payments-during 2010 for amounts acerued for property, plant and equipment compared to payments for such amounts
during 2008,

Cask Flows From Financing Activities
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to vear ended December 31,2000

Net cash from financing activities increased $156.7 miltion in 2011 compared to 2010. The increase in cash provided by financing activities
was due primarily to-the net ingrease of $173.6 prillion in amounts outstanding under our revolving credit agreements, an incroase of $47.1
million i net proceeds associated with refundable deposits for transmission network upgrades as well as an increase of $27.8 million due to the
recognition of federal and state income tax Hability reductions for the excess tax deduction of share-hased compensation during 2011 compared
to 2010. This increase was partially offset by no.dssuancesof long-term debt in 2017 as compered 1o proceeds of $40.0 mitlion from the clesing
of ITC Midwest's 4.60% First Morigage Bongs, Series I, and proceeds-of $50.0 million received from the {ssvance of METC's 5.64% Senior
Secured Notes during 2010, In.addition, the increase was partially offset by an increase in dividends paid during 2611 compared to 2010 of
$4.3 million.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared 1o year ended Devember 31, 2609

Net cash from financing activities decreased $172.0 million in 2010 compared.to 2009, The decrease in cash from financing actvities was
due primarily to a reduction in net proceeds associated with refundable deposits for transmission network upgrades of $53.3 million during
2010 as compared to 2009. In additoen, the issuance of the $200.0 million received in December 2009 from the issnanee of ITC Holdings
5.50% Senior Notes, due January 15, 2020, and the proceeds from the issuance of the $35.0 million ITC Midwest 4.60% First Mortgage Bonds,
Serics D (“Series D Bonds™), due Decemiber 17, 2024, exceeded the proceeds of $40.0 million from the dlosing of the Series ¥ Bonds and
proceeds of $50.0 million received from the issuance of METC's 5.64% Senior Secured Notes during 2010, These decreases were partially
offset by a net increase of $19.9 million in amounts outstanding under our revelving credit agreements.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table details our contractual obfigations as of Decerber 31, 2011 ;

L.ess Than 1-3 45 More Than
Total i Year Years Years 8 Yours
{in thousands)
Long-term debtr
ITC Holdings Senior Notes & 1,462,000 % — by 317,000 % 305,000 ) £40.000
ITCTransmission First Mortzage Bonds 383,000 — 185,000 —_— 200,000
ITCTransmission revolving credit agreement 18,000 —_ — 18.000 —
METC Senior Secured Notes 275000 — 225,006 — 50000
METC revolving credit agréement 37.600 — — 37,600 —
FPC Miidwest First Morfgage Bonds 325,000 — e 4,600 285.000
TFC Midwest 2008 revolving credit
agreement 40,000 — 40,000 — —
ITC Midwrest 2071 sevolving credit
agreement 52,200 e 32200 e —
ITC Great Plains revolving-credit agreement 53,260 - 53.260 - e
Interest payments:
ITC Holdings Senior Notes 751,316 85,683 218.730 17,699 329,204
ITC Transmission First Morngage Bonds 197176 20,108 40,084 23,750 3234
MIETC Senier Secured Notes 129,473 16,198 44,608 5,640 63,027
TEC Midwest First:Mortgage Bonds 365318 19,606 58.816 39,147 247714%
Operating loases 1,467 480 918 &7 2
Purchase dhiigations 73,3472 F2099 1,243 —_ —
METC Easement Agreement 389,843 10,041 30,123 20,082 326,597
Tots] obligations & 4555995 - F 224215 F 1266082 0§ 6DGUES 8 2.457.81%

Interest payments included above relste only to our fixed-rate long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2011 We also expect to pay
interest and comumitment-fees under our variable-vate revolving credit agreements that have not been inciuded above due to varying amounts of
borrowings and interest rates under the Tacilities. In 2014, we paid $2.2 million of interbst and commitment fees under our revolving credit

agrecnients.

Purchase obilgations represent commitments for materials, services and equipment that had not been recaived as of Deceriber 3 1,2811,
primarily for construction and - maiatenance projects for which we have ait executed cantract. The majority of the items relate to materials and
equipment that have long production lead times.

The Easement Agreement provides METC with an easement for transimission purposes.and rights-of-way, leasehold interests, fee interests
and licenses associated with the fand over which the ransmission lines cross. The cost for use of the rights-of-way is $10.0 million per-vear.
The term of the Easement Agreement runs through December 31, 2050 and is subject to 10-automatic 50-year renewals thereafter unless METC
gives notice of nonrenewd! of 4t'least one vear in advance. Payments to Consumers Energy under the Easement Agreement are charged to
operation and maintenance expense.

In-November 2011, ITC Midwest committed to issue $108.0 million of 3.50% First Mortgage Bonds, Series E, due January 2027 (“Series B

Bonds™). ITC Midwest held 2 lending commitment from the lenders as of December 31, 2011 and closed on the $100.0 million of Series B
Bonds on January 19, 2012. The Series E Bonds arc net included in the long-term debt obiigations and interest payments presented above,

Critical Aceounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting prineiples generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP™). The preparation of these consolidated {Tnancid] statements requires the application of appropriate techmical accounting
rules and guidance, as well as the use of estimates. The application of these policies necessarily involves judgments regarding furure events,

These estimates and judgments, in and of themseives, could materially impact the consclidated financia! staiements and disclosures hased
o varying assumiptions, s future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted, and even the begt estimates rowtinely require adfustment.

In
had
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The following is & list of 2ccounting policies that are most significant to the portrayal of our financial condition and resulss of operations
and/or that require management’s most difficolt, subjective or complex judgments,

Regulation

Newmly all of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ business is subject {0 regulation by the FERC. As a result, we apply accounting
principles in accordance with the standards set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) for accounting for the effects of
certain types of regulation. Use of this accounting guidance results in differences in the application of GAAP between regiitated and non-
regulated businesses and requires the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities for certain transzetions that would have been treaied as
CXPEnse or revenue in non-regalated bhusinesses. Future regulatory changes or changes In the competitive environment could result in
discontinuing the application of the guidance for accounting for the effects of certain types of regulations. If we were to discontinue the
application of this guidance on our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ operations, we may be requiref to record Josses of $174.3 miliion
relating 1o the regulatory assets at December 31, 2011 that are described in Nete 5 to the consolidated financial statements. We also may be
required to record losses of $46.9 million relating to infangible assets at December 31, 2011 that are deseribed in Note 6 16 the consolidated
financial statements. Additionally, we may be required to record gains of $181.4 million relating to regalatory Habilities at December 31, 2011 ,
primarity for asset remsoval costs that have been accrued in advance of incwring these costs.

We believe that currently available facts support the continued applicability of the standards for aceounting for the effects of cerlain types of
regulation and that all regulatory assets and liabilities are recoverable or refundable under our current rate environment.

Revenue Recognition under Cost-Based Formula Rates with Frue-Up Mechanism

Beginning January 1. 2007 for ITCTransmission-and METC, Jonuary 1, 2008 for ITC Midwest and Augost 18, 2000 for ITC Great Plaing,
our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries recover expenses and earn a return on and tecover investments in property, plant and equipment on a
current rather than a lagging basis under their forward-looking cost-based formula rates with a triue-up mechanism,

Under their formula rates, our Regulated Cperating Sibsidiaries use forecasted sxpenses, property, plant and equipment, point-to-point
revenues and other items for the upeoming calendar vear to estabiish their projected revenue requiremnent.and their component of the billed
network rates for service on their systems from January 1 o December 31 of that year. The cosi-based formula rate templiates include a trus-up
mechanism, whereby our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries compare their actual revenue requirements to thejr billed revenues for each year in
order to-subsequenily colleet or refund any under-recavery or aver-recovery of revenues, as-appropriate. The under- or over-collection typically
results from differences between the projecied vevenue reqiirernent used as the basis for billing and actual revenue requirement at each of our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, and from differences between actzal and projected monthly peak loads at our MISC Regulated Operaiing
subsidiaries.

The true-up mechanism under our formula rates meet the requirements in the Accounting Standards-Codification for accounting for rate-
regulated wutilities and the effects of certain alternative revenue programs. Accordingly, revenue is recognized during each reporting period
based on actual revenue requirements caleulated using the costbased formula rate. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries scorue or defer
revenues to the sxtent that their actual revenue requirement for the reporting period is higher or lower, respectively, than the ameounts billed
relating to that reporting period. The trie-up amount is anformatically reflected in customer bills within two years under the provisions. of the
formula rates.

I¥CTransmission’s Rate Freeze Revenrre Deferval

ITCTransmission's rate freeze revenue deferral resulted from the difference between the revenus ITCTransmission would have collected
under its cost based formula rate and the actual revenue ITCTransmission received for the period from Febraary 28, 2003 through
December 31, 2004. The revenue deferral was amortized for ratemaking on a straight-line basis for five years from June 2006 through
May 2011 and was included in ITCTransrission's revenus requirement for those periods. Revenues of'$1 1.9 million were recognized in 2050
and- 2009 relating to the rate freeze revenue deferral and revenues of $5.0 million were revognized in Janvary through May 2011, The 56.9
million reduction in revenues resufted in a reduction to afier-tax nef income of approximately $4.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010 and 2009,

Valuation of Gooadwill

We have goodwill resulting from our seguisitions of ITCTransmission and METO and 1T Midwest™s acquisition of the IP&L transmission
assets. In accordance with the standards set forth by the FASE for goodwill, we are required to perform an impairment test annually or
whenever events or circumstances mdicate that the value of goodwill may be impaired. For goodwill impairment testing, we have the option fo
first assess qualitative factors o determine whether the cxistence of events or sircumstances teads to o determination that it Is more likely than
not that the fair value of & reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or ciroumstances, we determine
it 18 not more likely than not that the fair value of 3 reporting unit is less than 18 carrying amount, then perfarming the two-siep impairment test
per the FASB guidance is unnecessary. The qualitative
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factors evaluated nclude macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial performance, our
figtorical share price as well as other industry specific considerations such as our regulatory environment and rate struciure. However, if we
conclude otherwise, then we are required to perform the first step of the two-step impairment test by caleulating the fair value of the reporting
unit and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the reporting unit. To the extent estimated market-basad valuation multiples
and/or discounted cash flows are revised downward, we may be required o write down all or a portion of goodwill, which would adversely
impact earnings. As of December 31, 2011 , consofidated goodwill totaled $950.2 million and we defermined tha no impairment existed, nor
do we beliove there is 2 material risk of it being impaired in the near term at FECTransmission, METC or ITC Midwest as of our goodwill
mpairment testing date of Octaber 1, 2011,

Contingent Obligations

We are subject to.a number of federal and state laws.and regelations, as-well as other factors and conditions that potentially subject us to
environmental, litigation, income tax and other risks. Weperiodically evaluate our exposurs to such risks and record reserves for those matters
where a loss is considered probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with GAAP. The adequacy of reserves can be significantly affectad
by external events or cdnditions that can be unpredictable; thus, the uitimate outcome of such matters could materially affect our consolidated
financial statements. These events or conditions include, without Limitation, the following:

+ Changes in existing state or federal regulation by governmental authorities. having jurisdiction over air quality, water quality, conirol of
toxic substances, hazardons and solid wastes, and other environmental matiers.

« Changes in existing federal income tax laws or Internal Revenue Service repulations.

* Identification and evatuation of potential lawsuits or complaints in which we may be or have been named as a defendant.

* Resolution or progression of existing matters through the legislative process, the ceurts, the Internal Revenue Service, or the
Environmental Protection Agency.

Valuation of Share-Based Payments

Our accountiny for share-based payments requires us o determine the fair value of awards of ITC Heldings' common stock. We use the
value of ITC Holdings” common stock at the date of grant inithe calculation of the fair value of our share-hased awards. The fair value of stock
aptions held by our employees is determined using & Black-Scholes option valuation method, which is 2 valuation technique that 15 acceptable
for share-based payment accounting. Key assumptions in-determining fiir value include volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend vield and
expected Hves. In the event different assumptions were used, a different fair value would be derived that could cause the rélated expense to be
materially higher or lower,

Pension and Postretirement Costs

We sponsor certain post-employment benefits {o our employees, which include retivement plans and certain postretirement health care, dental
and. life insurance benefits. Our perindic costs and obligations associated with these post-employment plans are developed from actuarial
valuations derived from a number of assumptions including rates of refurn on plan assets, the discount vate, .the rate of increase in health care
costs, the armount and tining of plan sponsor contributions and demographic faciors such as retirements; mortality and tumnover, among cthers.
We evaluaie these assumptions annually and update them periodically to reflect owr actual experience. Three eritical assumpiions in
determiming our periodic. costs and obligations are discount rate, expected long-term return on plan assets and the rate of increases in health
care costs. The discount rate reprosents the market rate for synthesized AA rated zero coupon bends with durations corresponding o the
expected durations of the benefit obligations and is used to caleulate the present value of the expected fuiture cash flows for benefit obligations
under -our post employment plans. For our rate of return on plan assets, we consider the ewrrent and expected asset allocations, as well as
historical and expected long-term rates of retwn on these types of plan assets, in determining the expecied long-termm return on plan assets,
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans s described in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no-off-balance shest avangements that have or are reasonably Ukely to have a material effect on our financial condition.
Hecent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM TA.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISE.
Commodity Price Risk

We have commodity price risk at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries arising from market price fluctuations for materials sach as copper,
aluminum, steel, ofl and gas and other goods used in construction end maintenance acfivities. Higher costs of these materizgls are passed on to
us by the contractors for these activities. These items affect only cash flows, as the amounts are included as compornents of net revenue
requirement and any higher costs are included in rates under their cosi-based formels rates.

Interest Rate Risk
Fixed Rafe Long-Term Debt

Based o the borrowing rates currently available for bank loans with similar terme and average maturities, the fair value of gur consolidated
longterm debt, exeluding revolving eredit agresments, was $2,;862.6 million at December 31, 2011 . The total book value of cur consolidated
long-term debt, excluding revolving credit apreements, was $2,444.0 million at December 31,2011 . We performed an analysis calculating the
impact of changes in interest rates on the fair value of long-term debt, excluding revolving credit agreements, at December 31, 2011 . An
mcrease in interest rates of 10% (from 7.0% to 7.7%, for example) at December 31, 2011 would decrease the fair value of debt by $69.4
million, and 2 decrease in interest rates of 10% at Decenvber 31, 2011 would incressethe fair value of debt by $74.2 million at that date,

Revolving Credit Agreements

At December31, 2011 , we had a consclidated total of $201.1 million outstanding under our revolving credit agreements, which are
variable rate loans and thersfore fair value approximates bodk value. A 10% increase or decrease in borrowing rates under the revolving eredit
agresments compared to the weighted average rates in effect st December 31, 2011 would ingresse or decrease the total interest expense by
$0.3 millicn, respectively, for an annual period on.a constant hiorrowing level of $201.1 million .

Figrivative Instriiments and Hedging Activities

We use derivative financial instruments, including intérest rate swap contracts, to manage our exposure 1o fluctuations iy interest rates. The
use-of these financial. instruments mitigates exposure fo these risks and the veriability of our operating results. We are not a party to leveraged
derivatives and do not enter into derivative financizl insruments for trading or speculative purposes. The interest rate swaps manage interest
rate risk assoeiated with the forecasted future issuance of fixed-rate debt related to-the expected refinancing of the $267.0 miliion ITC Hoidings
5.25% Senior Netes, due July 15, 2613, prior to its maturity,

Credit Risk

Gur credit risk is primarily with Detrolt Edison, Consumers Energy and IP&L, which were responsible for 30.8% , 26.0% and 25.3% ,
respectively, or $233.4 million , $196.6 million and $191.7 miflion , respectively, of our consolidated operating revenues for 2011 . These
percentages assume a portion of the 2011 revenne accruals and deferrals inchuded in our 2011 operating revenues, which will be billed or
refunded to our customers in 2013, winild be paid by Demeit Edison, Consumers Energy and IP&L in the future based on the regpective
percentage of network and regional cost sharing revenues billed to them in 2011, Under Detroit Edison’s and Consumers Bnergy’s curreni rate
structure, Detroit Edison and Consumers Brpergy include in their retail rates the actiusl cost of fransmission services provided by
ITCTransmission and METC; respectively, in their billings 10 their customers, effectively passing through to end-use consumers the total cost
of {ransmrigsion service, IP&L currently inchudes in their retail rates an allowance for fransmission services provided by ITC Midwest in their
billings to their customers. However, any financial difficuities experienced by Detroit Bdison, Cansumers Bnergy or IP&L may affect their
ability to make payments for transmission service fo ITCTransmission, METC and ITC Midwest, which could negatively impact our busihess.
MIBO, as our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” billing agent, bills Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy, IP&L and other customers.on 2
monthly basis and collects fees for the use of our transmission systems. SEP, the billing agent for ITC Great Plaing, began to bill ITC Great
Plains® 2009 network revenues in January 2010, refroaciive to August 18, 2609, MISO and SPP have implemented strict credit policies far its
members” customars, whick include customers vsing our fransmission systems. In general, if these customers do not maintain their investment
grade credit rating or have a history of late payments, MISO and SPP may require them to provide MISO and the SPP with a letter of credit or
cash deposit equal 1o the highest monthly invoiced amount over the previous twelve months,
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANP SUPPLEMENTARY DATA,

The following finansial statements and schedules are included herein:

Pane

’ ot
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 48
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 49
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 36
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of Decernber 312011 and 2018 20
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 3L 2011 2010 and 2000 30

Congolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31 2011

2610 and 2009 50
Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 50
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements al
Schedule 1 — Condensed Financial lnformation of Regisirant 71
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTFING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal contro! over
financial reporiing is designed to provide reasenable, not absolute, asserance as to the telizbility of our finangial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generslly accepted zecounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting, no matter how
well designed, has inherent Emitations. Therefore, internal control over financial reporting determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and may not prevent or detect all misstatements.

Under management’s superviston, an evaluation of the design and effectivencss of our internal control over Snameial reporing was
conducted based on the framework in Internal Control ~ Integrated Framework issued by the Committes of Spenseritvg Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Our assessment ircluded extensive documenting, evaluating and tesling of the design and operating
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Based on this evalyation, management concluded that our fiternal control over
financial reporting was cffective as of December 31, 2011 .

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as auditors of our consolidated financial statements, has jssued
an atiestation report.on the effectiveness of owr internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 . Deloitte & Touche LLP’s
report, which expresses an ungualified opinion on the effectiveness of cur internal control over financial reporting, is included herein,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ITC Holdings Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of ITC Holdings Corp. and subsidiaries {the “Company™
‘as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations, chenges in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
tncome, and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended Decerber 31, 2011 . Our audits also included the finzncial statement
schedule listed in the Index at ftem 135, These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the respensibility of the Company’s
marnsgement. Jur responsibilify is to express an opinion on the financip? statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of thie Public Company Aveounting Gversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonzble assuraice ahout whether the financial statements are fres of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating-the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis. for our opinion.

In-our opinion, such comsolidated financial stalements preserit faifly, in all material. respects, the financial position of ITC Haldings Corp.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , and the vesilts of their operations and their cash flows for each of the {hree years in the
peried ended December 31, 2011 | in conformity with accounting principles genesally accepted in the United States of America, Also, in our
opinign, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation fo the besic consolidated financial statements taken a5a whole, present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein,

We have also audited, in accordance with fhe standards of the Piblic Company Acecounting Oversight Board {United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December ¥1, 2017 , based on the griteria estzblished in Jnrernal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Commrittee of Sponsaring Organizations 6f the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 22,
2012 expressed an-unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal contrl over financial reporting,

/s DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 22, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Dirsctors and Stockholders of
I'TC Holdings Corp.:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of ITE Holdings Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31,
2011 , based on criteria established in [nternal Control — Iniegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial veporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal contrel over firancial reporting, indluded in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with. the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
stantards require that we plan and perform the sudit w cbtain reasonable assurance sbout whether effective internal control aver financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our qudit included obtaining an understanding of internal contro! over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, aird performing such other procedures as we considersd necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basisfor our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is & process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financizl officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management. and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes In accordance with gererally accepted mesounting principles. A company’s internal contrel over
financial reporting includes those policies and procecures that {I)-pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately
and fairly refiect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets-of the companyr {2y provide reasonable assurance that Tansactionz.are recorded
as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, -and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autherizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s asseis
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Hecause of the inherent lmitations of intemal contro! aver fimancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemenis due to ervor or fraud may not be prevented or defected on a timely basis. Alse,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject 1o the risk that the
controls may become inatequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with fhe policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In-our apimion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting s of December 31, 2011
» based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commiittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commiission,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Aceounting Overstght Board (Unifed States), the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedvle as of and for the yesr ended Deceriber 31, 2011 of the Company.and our
report dated February 22, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those finzncial statements and financial statement schedule,

is/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Detroit, Michigan
Febroary 22, 2012

ITC BOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31,
(in thousands, except share daka) 2013 2816
ABRETE

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 3 58,344 § 85,109
Accounts recelvable 76,805 80417
Inventory 34,855 42 286
Dieferred income taxes 20,636 -

Regulatory assets — revenue acernals, ineiuding accrued interest $5.438ibit CB-H1a 28,637



Qther 4.159 5,203

Total current assets 201.528 251,742
Property, plantand equipment (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of §1,193,164
and $1,128.669, respectivaly) 3413823 o 2.872277
Other assets
Goodwill 950,163 950,163
Intangible assets.{net of accumulated amortization of 513,276 and $12,176, respectively) 46,885 49,085
Other regulatory assers 161,987 138,132
Deferred financing fees (net of accumulated amortization of $14,594 and $11,750. respectivelyl 20,989 19,949
Other 25047 25,608
Total other agsets . 1,206,015 1,183,854
TOTAL ASSETS by 4,823 366 $ 4307873

LIABILITIES AND STOCEHOQLDERS EQUITY
Current Habilities

Accounts pavable § 136934 g 66,953
Acorued payroll 18,013 18,600
Accrusil interest 43,642 47995
Accried taxes 25,627 10,441
Regulatory Habilities — revenue defervals, including accrued interest ) 46,570 17:658
Refundable deposits from generators.for transmission network upgrades 38,805 10,492
Other 5,867 6,569
Total current liabiHties . 315,467 182,404
Acervet-pension-and postretirement Habilities 44,923 35813
Deferred income taxes 373,268 314,979
Regulatory liabilities — revenue défervals, including accrued interest 50917 43,202
Reguiztory Habilities — acerued asset removal costs 83,934 90,987
Refuadable deposity from generatovs for transmission network wpgrades, 14370 14,518
Oiher 36373 11,646
Lounpterm debt 2A45022 2,496.8%6

Commitments and contingent Habilifies (Notes-4 and 16)
STOCKHOLDERS EQLITY )
Common stock, without par valoe, 100,000,000 shares authorized, S 1,323,368 and 50,715,805

shares issued and cutstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 943,444 236,808
Refained carnings 230,816 220437
Accemalated ether comprehensive (Joss) incoms {15,368) 1,188

Total stockholders™ equity . 1,258,802 1.137.433
TOTALTIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY ¥ 4,823,366 B 4,307 873

See noteste consclidated financial stateménts.
IFC HOLDINGS CORP, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Deeember 31,
{In thousands, except per share fdera) 2011 2019 2089
OGPERATING REVENUES % 757,397 5 696,843 5 621018
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and malntenance 120,288 126,528 05,750
General and administrative £2.790 78,128 69,231
Drepreciation and amortization 04,981 86,976 83,046
Taxes other than income taxes 53,430 48,195 43,905
Orther operating (income) and expense — net (8443 {267 (66T

Total operating expenses 350,645 36,522 254,148

3
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OTHER EXPENSES (INCOME)

Interest expense 146:936 142,553 130,209
Allowance for eguity funds used during construction {16.699) (134123 (13,203
Losson-extingmshment of debt e —_ 1,263
Orther income (2.881% (2,340) (2,7923
Other expense 3,962 2,588 2,818
Total other expenses (incoms) 131,318 128,380 118,395
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 266,434 237,832 208472
INCOME TAX PROVISION G4 740 _ 82,254 77,572
NET INCOME S 171.685 £ 145674 & 134,000
Basic earnings per common share {Note §) g 336 3 2.89 $ 262
Dilwied earnings per common share (Note 9) & 3.31 $ 2.84 % 2.58
Dividends declared per common share 3 1.375 $ 1.318 3 1.250
See notes to.consolidated financial statements.
FYC HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPRENENSIVE INCOME
Accumulatesd
Other Foial
Lommon Stock . Eetnined Comprehensive Srockholders’ Comprebeansive
Shares Amons Earnings Income {Loss} Heuity ineone
{In thousands, except share aned per share data)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008 49654518 S B4BE2 5 B1268 3 @87 5§ w906
Net income — - 130,500 - 130,900 § 130,900
Repurchise and retirement.of commeon stock 7003 4N . _ & _
Dividends doclared on common stock {51,250 per
shure} — e {62,421 e [62,421) —
Stock option exercisecs 223,975 2,522 . . Exiieit CB-H1a _



Shaves issued under the Binploves Swok Parghase

Plan 28,681 1,053 — o 1,053 e
Issuance of restricted stock 120 264 . — . . .
Forfeiture of restricred stock (16,394) . 25 . 29 L
Vesting of déferred stack units 517 . . . . .
Share-based compensation, net of forfsitures . 5977 . o 9577 -
Amortization ofvinterest vate lock cash Tlow hedges.

net of tax of $34 - o — 6 G4 64
Tax benefit for excess tax deductions of share-based

compensaiion - 12% s e 129 e
Other — 23% o _ 71y .
Comprehensive ineome g 130,964

st

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 50084061 3 BEX512 § 149776 S 765y S LOLLSZ
Netincome — - 145,678 — 145,675 § 145,678
Repuschase and renrement of vommon siock L.057) (619 . . 1) .
Dividends declared on.common stogk ($1.314 per ‘ '
share) — e (66,048) - {66,048 —
Stock-option exéreises 48264 784 . _ 7786 o
Shares issued under the Emplovee Stock Purchase
Bian 24840 1,122 — e 1,127 i
Issuance of restricted stock 152 737 - " _ .
Forfeirare of restiicted siock (14,404) . 21 ” 3 o
Vestingof deferred stock units 5364 _ . - N -
Share-bused compensation, net of forfeitures . 14843 L _ 14843 .
Amortization of interest vave Ioele casb Tiow hedges, '

nefoaltax of $34 e - — 64 64 a4
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps relating o

interestrate cash'flow hedges, net of tax of $1,211 — — — 1,589 1,889 1889
Tax benetit forexcess tax deduetons of share-bused '

compensation — 320 —— — B e
Other — 286 — - 286 —
{Comprehensive income 4 147 631

A e

BALANCE, BECEMBER 31, 2010 S0,71S805 % 886508 5 229437 § LIRS 5 111743
BTt A, .
Netincome e — 171,685 — 171685 5 T71.685
Repurchase and retirement of common stock BOTTS) (6,401) . o (5,401 .
Puvidends deciared on common siock (31.375 per
share) e e (70,363 — (70363} —
Stock option exercises: 543,775 19,666 - . 17.666 L
Shaves issued under the Fmployee Stock Purchase .
Plan 23007 a7 — — 1,327 —
Issuance of restricted stock 147 950 . - . o -
Forfeliure i restricted sidck (38012 - 27 - 57 .
Vesting-of deferred stock units 5485 e . . . .
Share-baséd tompensition, net of forfeitures . 15 534 . - 15334 .
Amortization of interest tate lock cush fow hedges,

net-of tax of §1 —_ e e 87 97 97
Unrealized loss on mnterest sate swaps relating io.

intersst vate cash Tow hedges, not 6ffax of$30,705, — — e (14,653} {16,653 {16,633)
Tax benefit for excess tax deductions of share-bused

compensation s 28,114 — - 28,144 —
Other - 596 - - 596 —
Cennprebensive income g 155,120
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 51323368 5 S43ddd % 330818 § (15.365) 5 1256802

Sez notes fo consolidated financial stafements.
IS HOLBINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2011 kg e

{kn thousands) 2009




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See notes to.conselidated financtal statements.

30

Netincome $ 171,685 $ 145578 § 130800
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: :
Pepreciation and amortization expense 54,981 86,976 83,949
Recognition, refund and collection of revenue acoruals and deferrals — including
accrued inferest 56,944 121.315 10,812
Deferred income tax sxpénse 30,797 76,746 75,867
Allewance for equity funds uted during construction {16,699} {13412) {13,203
Recognition of ITC Great Plains regulatory assets {2,011} e (8,191
Other 15,372 14,311 13.949
Changes in-assets and Habilities, exclusive of changes shown separately:
AccountsTecervable 2434 {9479 (129863
Inventory 7,431 {5,452} (14,369}
Other current assets 1,134 {2.04%) 963
Accounts pavable 12,573 2,210 (6,007
Accrued payroll {10963 4,893 2,003
Accrued interest 17 3626 1.320
Accrued taxes 34,279 {2,071 3:073
Tax benefit for exvess tax deduetions of share-based compensation (28,114) (320) {1287
Other-current Habitities {245 2750 {2:049)
Cither riop-current assets and Iabilities, net 385 (2,409} 1,179
Net cash provided by operating activities 380,016 423,333 267,935
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expendituresifor propeity, plani-and equipment {556,931 (388.401) {404,514}
Pracseds from sale of securities 3.839 14,576 1,182
Puréhases of securities {8436) (14,5873 (5.300)
Other _ 1,033 {4497 {3213
Net cash used in ifiiésting activities (560,195} 138B86T) (408:962)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of long-term debt - 90,000 333,670
Repayment of longsterm debt: — . {166,000)
. Borrowings under revolyviny éredit agreements 1,063,215 473,627 623,966
Repayments of revolving credit agreements (917,555} {503.593) (671.834)
Issuance of commmon stock 18,993 -§,508 1,575
Dividends on conumen stock {70,363} (66,0413 {62,408}
Refundable deposits from generators for tranemission network upgrades 35,768 21,61% 40,275
Repayment of refundable deposits from generators for transmission network upgrades (5,976) (39.913) (5,228}
Tax benefil for excess tax-deductions of share-based compensation 28,114 330 124
Other {10.682) {1.1423 (4,379
Net cash provided by (used i) finanding activities 142514 (14,2163 157,770
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {36,765} 20,256 16,743
(»%SH ANDCASHEQUIVALENTS — Beginning.of period 05,109 74,853 58.110
CASH ANE CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of pericd b 58,344 3 95,109 3 74,853
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ITC HOLDINGS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONBOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAIL

iTC Holdings Corp. ("ITC Heldings,” and together with its subsidiaries, “we,” “our” or “us™) and itz subsidiaries ave engaped in the
transmission of electricity in the United States. Through our operating subsidiaries, ITCTransmission, METC, ITC Midwest and ITC Great
Plains (togetber, our "Regulated Operating Subsidiaries™), we operate high-voltage systems in Michigan®s Lower Peninsulz and portions of
lowa, Minnesota, lilinois, Missouri and Kansas fhat transmit electricity from genérating stations to tocal distribution faciliies connected to- our
systems. Our business strategy is t0 operate, maintain and invest in transmission infrasoructure in order to enhance system integrity and.
reltability, to reduce fransmission constraints and 1o dllow new generating resources 1o infercomnect 1o our transmission systems. We also are
pursuing development projects neot within our existing systems, which are intended 1o improve overall grid relizbility, lower eleciricity
congestion and facilitate interconnections of new generating resources, as well.asto enhance competifive wholesale electricity markets.

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are independert electric transmission utilities, with rates regulated by the FERC and established on a
cost-of-service model. 'PCTransmission’s service area is located in southeastem Michigan and METC’s service area-covers approximately
two-thirds of Michigan's Lower Peninsula and is contiguous with ITCTransmission’s service area, I1TC Midwest’s servics ared 1% Jocated in
partions of Iowa, Mimesota, Hlinois and Missouri and ITC Great Plains currently owns assets located in Kansas. The Midwest Independent
Transmission System Operator, Ime. (*MISO™) bille and collects revenues from [TCTransmission, 'METC, and 1TC Midwest (“MISO
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries™ customers. The Southwest Power Pool, Hne. {(“SPP”) bills and coltects revenue from ITC Great Plaing
customers,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the major accounting policies followed in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™), 15 presented below:

Principles of Conselidation — 1TC Heoldings consolidates its majority owned subsidiaries. We eliminate 51l intercompany balances
and trapsactions. '

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires us te 1use estimates
and dssumptions that impact the reparted amounts of assets, labilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets
and tabilities. Actual resulis may differ from our estimates.

Hegulation — Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries are subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the FERE, which issues orders
pertaining to rates, recovery of certain costs, including the costs of transmission assets and regulatory assats, condifions of service,
accounting, financing authorization and operating-related matiers, The uiility operations of our Regulated Operaling Subsidiaries mest
tire accounting stendards set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASE"} for the accounting effects of certain types.of
regulation. These accounting standards recognize the cost based rate setting process, witch results in differences in the application of
GAAP between regulated and non-regulated businesses. These standards require the recording of regulatory assets and labilities for
transactions that would have been recorded es revenue and exsense in non-regulated businesses. Regulatory assets represent costs that
will be included as & component of future tariff rates and regulatory lisbilities represent amounts provided in the current tariff rates that
are iritended to recover costs expecied Lo be incurred in the future or amounts to be refunded to customers.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — We consider alt unrestricted Kighly-tiquid temporary investments with an original maturity of three
months or less at the date of purchase'to be cash equivalents.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiowy — The following table presents certain supplementary cash flows information for the years
ended December 21, 2051, 2010 and 20609 ¢

YearEnded Becember 31,

{In thousands) 21 2410 2609
Supplementary cash flows mformation:
Inferest paid (net of nterest capitalized) § 142301 0§ 135771 0§ 125354
Income taxes paid 54,127 8,844 1.871
Supplementary non-cash investing and financing activiiies:
Additions to property. plant and equiprent {a) 3102001 % 44496 85 23,169
Allowance for equity funds used during construetion 16,699 13,412 13,243

(a) Amounts consist of current liabilities for construction. labor and materials that have not been included in investing activities. These
amounts have not been paid for as of December 31, 2811, 2010 or 2009 , respectively, but have been or will be incloded as a casgh
outflow from investing activities for expenditures for property, plant and equipiment when paid.
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Excess tax benefits are recognized as an addition to common stock per the share-hased compensation guidance. Cash retained as a
resull of those excess tax benefits ave presented in the staiement of cash flows as cash inflows from financing activities and cash
outflows from operafing acivities. Any write-off of deferred tax assets that resulted from book expense exceeding tax deductions
associated with recognized compensation cost will be recognized as income tax expense unless there are exocess tax benefits from
previous awards remaining in paid-in capital towhich it ¢an be offser.

Accounts Receivable — We recognize losses for uncollectible acoounts based on specific identification of any such ems. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2010, we did not have an accounts receivable reserve,

Inventories -—— Materials and supplies inventories are valued at average cost, Additionally, the costs of warehousing activities are
recorded here and included in the cost of materials when reguisitioned.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization expense on propesty, plant and equipment was $85.8 million |
$77.8 million and §76.8 million for 2011 , 2010.and 2009 , respectively.

Property, plant and equipment in service at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries is stated at its original cost when first devoted to
utility service. The gross book value of assets retired less salvage proceeds:is charged to accumulated deprecizion. The provision for
depreclation of transmission assets is a significant component of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ cost of service ander FERC-
approved raies. Deprecigtion is computed over the estimated useful lives of the assefs osing the straight:line methed for financial
reporting purposes and sccelerated methods for income tax reporting purposes. The composite depreciation rate for owr Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries included in our consolidated statements of eperations was 2.4% . 2.4% and 2.6% for 2611 , 2010 and 2000 ,
respectively. ITC Midwest implemented new depreciation rates effective for the vear ended December 31, 2010 . Refer 1o Note 4 for
additional discussion of these depreciation rate changes. The composite depreciation rates include depreciztion primarily on transmission
station equipment, towers, poles and overhead and underground lines that have a useful life ranging from 48 to 60 years. The portion of
depreciation expense related to asset removal costs is added to regulatory liabilifies and removal costs incurred are deducted from
regulatory lishilities. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries capitalize to property, plant and eguipment an allowance for the cost of
equity and borrowings used duriag constrection (“AFUDC™) in accordance with FERC regulations. AFURC represenis: the composite
cost incurred to fund the construction of assets, including interest expense and a Teturn on equity capital devoted to construction of
assets. The AFUDC debf of $4.7 million . $3.9 million and $3.9 million for 2011 , 2010 and 2009 . respectively, was a reduction te
interest expense. Certain projects at I'TC Great Plains have been granted an incentive to include construction work in progress balances
in rate base, and we do ot aserue AFUDUC on those projecis.

For scquisitions of property, plant and equipment greater than the net book value {other than asset acquisitions accounted for under
the purchase-metbod of accounting that result in goodwill), the acquisition premiuth is recorded to property, plant and equipment and
amortized over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method for financial reporiing purposes and
accelerated methods for income fax reporting purposes.

Property, plant and equipment includes capital eguipment inventory stated at original cost consisting of jsems that are expected to be
used exclusively for capital projects.

We capitalize the costs associated with computer software we develop or obtain for use in our business, which is inciuded in
property, plant and equipment. We amortize computer software costs on a straight-line basis over the expected period-of benefit once the
mnstalled software is ready for ity intended use.

Property, plant and-equipment at I¥C Holdings and non-regulated subsidiaries is stated at its acquired cost. Proceeds from salvage
less the-net book value of assets disposed of is recognized as a gain or loss on disposal. Depreciation is cormputed based on the acquired
cost less expected residual value and is Tecognized over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line method for financial
reporting purposes and accelerated methods for income tax reposting purposes.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets — Other than goodwill, our long-lived assels are reviewed for impairment whenever svents or
chatrges in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovershle. If the carrying amount of the asset excesds
ihe expected undiscounted future cash flows generated by the asset, an impairment loss is recognized resulting In the asset being written
down to iis estimated fair value,

Goodwill and Intangible Assers — We comply with the standards set forth by the FASE for goodwill and ofher intangible assets,
Under these standards, goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives are not subject to amortization. However, goodwill and other
intangibles are subject to fair value-based rules for measuring impairment, and resulting write-downs, if any, are to be reflected in
operating expense. These accounting standards require that goodwill be reviewed at least annually for impairment and whepever facts or
circumstances indicate that the carrving amounts may not be recoverable, We have goodwill recorded relating fo the acquisitions of each
our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. We completed our annua! goodwill impairment test by performing a qualitative anaiysis
for each of our MISO Regulated Qperating Subsidiaries as of Cetober 1, 2011 and determined that no impairment exists. There were no
gvenis subsequent to October 1, 2011 that indicated impairment of ow goodwill. Cur imtangible assets have finite lives and are
amortized over their useful lives, refer to Note 6 .

Deferred Financing Fees and Discount or Premium on Debt — The costs related 1o fhe iesuance of tong-term debt are recorded to
deferred financing fees and are amortized over the life of the debt issue. The debt discount or premium related to the issuance of long-

e debi is recorded to long-term debt and amertized over the life of the debt issue. We recorded to mferest expense the amortization of
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deferred financing fees and the amortization of cur debt discounts for 2011 . 2010 and 2009 of $3.8 million . $3.1 million and §3.3
million , respectively.

Asser Retirement Obligations — We comply with the standards set forth by the FASB for asset retirement obligations. As defined in
the standards, a conditional asset retirement obligation refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retivement activity in which the
timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may of may not be within our control. We have identified
conditional asset retirement obligations primarily associated with the removal of equipment containing polychlorinated biphenyls
(“PCBs™) and asbestos. We record a lability at fair value for a legal asset retivement chligation in-the period In which it is incurred.
When a new legal obligation is recorded, we capitalize the costs of the Lability by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-
lived asset. We accrete the liability to its present value each period and depreciaie the capitalized cost over the useful. Hfe of the related
assel. At the end of the asset’s useful life, we settle the obligation for its recorded amount or incur a gain or loss. The standards for asset
retirement obligation applied to our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries require us to recognize regulatory assets or liabilities for the
timing. differences between when we recover legal asset retirement obligations in rates and when we would recognize thase costs under
the standards. There have not been any significant changes to our asset refirement obli gations in 2011, Our asse: retivement obfigations
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 of $3.6 millicn and $3.3 million , respectively, arc included in other Habilitics.

Fingneial Instruments — We comply with the standards sef forth by the FASB for derivatives and hedging in sccounting for
financial instruments. For derivative instraments that have been designated and qualify =s hedges of the exposure to variability in
expected future cash flows, the gain or loss on the-derivative is initially reported as 2 component of other comprehensive income {logs)
and reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations when the undetlying hedged wansaction affects net income. Any hedge
neffectiveness is recognized in net income immediately at the‘time the gain or loss on the derivative instruments is caleriated. Refer to
Note & for additional discussion regarding derivative instruments.

Contingent Obligations — We are subject to a number of federal and state laws and regulations, as well as other factors and
conditions that potentially subject us to environmental, ltigation and other risks. We periodically evaluate cur exposure to sugh risks and
record-reserves-for those matters where o loss is considersd probable atd-reasonably estimable in accordance with GAATP. The adequacy
af reserves can be significantly aftfected by external events or condifions that can be unpredictable; thus, the ultimate outcome of such
matters could materially affect our consolidated financial statements.

Generator Interconnection Projects - Certain capital investment at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries relates to investments we
make under generator iterconnection agreements. The generator interconnection agreements typically consist of both transmission
network upgrades, which have been deemed by FERC to benefit the transmission system as. 2 whole, as well as diregt connection
facilities, which are needed to interconnect the generating facility to the transmission system and primarily benefir the generating
facility. Gur Investment in transmission network upgrade facilities are recorded to property, plantand equipment. For divect connection
facilities, we collect a contribution in aid of construction from the penerator for the cost of the facilities and offser the contribution
against the plant invesiment recorded to property, plant and equipment.

We teceive deposits or letters of credit from the generator for the network upgrade facilitios in advance of constraction. When the
generator meets ceriain eriteria -of Attachment. FF of the MISO (ariff, such ag having a long-term sales agreement at the commercizal
operation date for the generating capavity of the facility, we refund the cash deposits or release letter of credit that was provided. 1P the
generator does not meet these. criteria, the deposit is retained or other security drawn upon, and is recorded as an offset against the plant
Imvestment recorded to property, plant and cquipment. When the cash or other security received 1snot refunded under the criieria of
Attachment FF, the receipt of cash becomes taxable income for us for which we bill the generator 4 tax gross-up. The tax gross-up
represents the difference between the tax effects of the taxable income associated with the contribution compared to the present-value of
the tax depreciation deduction of the property consfricted using the taxable contribuiion in aid of construction. The deferred TEVENIES
associated with the tax gross-up are recorded to other long-terny fiabilities when collected, and amorfized over the tax depreciation life of
the assef to other operating income and expense-nat.

Revenues — Revemues from the transmission of electricity are recognized as services are provided based on FERC-approved cost-
based formula raie templates. 'We record & reserve for revenue subject to refund when. such refund is probable md can be reasenably
estimated. The reserve isrecorded as a reduction to operating revenues.

The cost-hased formula rate templates at our Regulated Operating Subsidiarfes include a frue-up mechanfsm, whereby they compare
their acinal revenue requirements fo their billed revenues for each vear to determine any over- or under-collection of revenue
requirements and record a revenue accrual or deferral for the difference. Refer to Note 4 under “Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-
Up Mechanisn:” for a discussion of our revenue accounting under our cost-hased formula rate templates,

Share-Based Payment — We have an Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of 1TC
Holdings Corp. and iis subsidiaries (the “2003 Plan™) and & Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan {the
“LTIP”) pursuant to which we grant various share-based awards, mcleding options and restrivied stock and deferved stock units.
Compensafion expense for employees and divestors is recorded for siock options, restricted stook awards and deferred stock units that
are expected to vest based on their fair value at grant date,-and is amortized over the expected vesting period. We recognize expense for
our stock options, which have graded vesting schedules, on a straight-line basis over the entire vesting period and not for each separately
vesting portion of the award. The grant date is the dete at which our cammitment to jssue share based asvards o fhe einplovees or &
director arises, which is generally the later of the board approval date, the date of hire of the employee or the date of the employee’s
compensation agreement which contains the commitment to issue the award. . Exhibit CB-H1a



We alse have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP™) which is a compensatory plan. Compensation expense is recorded based
on the fair value of the purchase options at the grant date, which correspends o the first day of each purchase pericd, and is amortized
over the purchase period.

Caomprehensive Income (Loss) — Commprehensive income (loss) is the change in common stockholders® equity during a period
arising from transactions and events from non-owner sources, including net income and any gain or loss recognized for the effective
portion of our interest rate swaps.

Tncomes Taxes — Deferred income taxes are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of evenis that have been recognized
in the fidancial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and Habilities are determined based on the differences between the financial
statements and tax bases of various assets and Habilitiss using the tax rates expected to be i effect for the year in which the differences
arg expected fo Teverse:

The accounting standards for uncertainty in income taxes prescribe a recognifion threshold and 2 measurement attribute for tax
positions taken, or expected 1 be taken, in a tax return that may not be sustainable,

We file income tax returns with the Internal Revenue Service and with various state and city jurisdictions. We are no longer subject
to 1.5, federal tax examinations for tax vears 2007 and sarlier. The Internal Revenue Service gompleted its examination of our 2006
federal tax returns in January 2010, The Internal Revenue Service examination &d not result in any maierial adjustinents to our
conscliflated finencial statements: State and city jurisdictions that remain subject to examination range-from tax-years 2007 o 2010, In
the event we arc assessed inferest or penalties by any income tax jurisdictions, interest would be recorded as interest expense and
penalties would be recarded as other expense.

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Fresentation of Comprehensive Income

The guidance set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBE™ for the preseniation of comprehensive income in financial
statements was revised to require entities-to report components of comprehensive income in either 2 continuous stazement af comprehensive
incame ortwo separate but conseeutive statements. This revision is effective for our annual and interim consolidated financial statements for
fiscal vears-beginning after Decenber 15, 2011.

-Goodwill Impairment Testing

The FASE amended the guidance for testing goodwill for impairment. Under the reviged guidance, entities testing goodwill for fmpairment
have. the option of performing & qualitative assessment before caleulating the fair value of the reporiing unit. 1T entities deterimine, on the basis
of qualitafive factors, that the fair value of the reporting unit is more Lkely than not less than the carrying amount, fhe two-step Impairment test
would be required. This revision is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011 with-early adoption allowed. We eatly adopted the amended guidance, and the impact did not have an effect on cur results
of eperations, cash flows or financial condition. Refer to Note 2 for additional information,

Balance Sheet (Hisefting Reguirements

The FASE created new disclosure requirements regarding, the nature of an entity s rights of offset and related arrangemenis associated with
its financial instruments and derivative instruments. The guidance requires entities to disclose, at & minimum, the follewing information in
tabular formeat, separately for assets and Habilities: (a) the gross amounts of those recognized assets and those recognized liabilities; (B) the
amounts offset to determine the et amounts presented in the statement of financial position; (o) the net amouts presenied in the statement of
financial position; (&) the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement; and () #he net amount after
deducting the amounts in {d) from the amounts in {c). The disclosure requirements are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013, and interim periods therein, with retrospective application required. The new disclosure requirements are not expected to
have a meterial effect, if any, on our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition,

4. REGULATORY MATTERS
ITC Gregt Plains:

On August 18, 2008, ITC Great Plains acguired two electric transmission substations end became an independent transmission cempany in
SPP. SPP began to bill IPC Great Plains’ 2009 network revenues i Janmary 2018, retroactive 1o August 18, 2009, ITC Grea: Plains has
committed to construct certain transmission projects in the 8PP region. including the Kamsas Electric Transmission Authority (“KETA™)
Project {also known ag the Spearville — Knoll — Axtell Project) and a segment of the Kansas V-Plan.

In 2009, ITC Great Plains filed an application for 2 formula rate under Section 205 of the Federal Power Act, The FERC conditionaily
aceepted the proposed formula rate tariff sheets, subject 1o refund, and set them for hearing and settlement procedures, In addition, the FERC
approved certain fransmission investmeént incentives, including the establishment of regulatory assets for start-up and development costs of 1TC
Great Plains and certain pre-construction costs specific to the KETA Project and the Kansas V-Plan to be recovered pursuant o future FERC
filings. During the first quarter of 2010, the FERC dccepted ITC Great Plains’ cost-based formula rate tariff shests, which include an annual
true-up mechanism, and their corresponding implementation protocsls,

As of December 31, 2011, we have recorded a total of $13.8 million of regulatory assets for start-up and development 'ex‘ﬁ%emses meurred by
ITC Great Plains, which include certain costs inenrred for the KETA Project and the Kansas V-Plap Project prior UGBy, Druring the



first quarter of 2011, we received certain regulatory approvals relating to the Kansas V-Plan which resulted in the recognition of the Kansas V-
Plan regulatory asset of $2.0 million and comesponding reduction 1o operating expenses, which resulted in net mcome of $1.3 miliion .
Subsequent to the initial vecognition of the Kansas V-Plan regulatory asset in March 2011, we tecorded an additional §1.1 million of cost
incurred for the Kansas V-Plan Project through December 31, 2011 directly to regulatory assets. Based on ITC Great Plaing' application and the
related FERC order, ITC: Great Plains will be required to méke an additicnal filing with the FERC under Section 205 of the Federal Power Act
ins order to recover these starr-up, development and pre-construction expenses in future rates.

Green Power Express

Ir 2009, we formed Green Power Express and announced the Green Power Fxpress project, which consisted of transmission Hne segments
that would facilitate the movement of power from the Dakotas, Minnesota and lowa to Midwest foad centers that demand energy. Green Power
Express has certain FERC-authorized transmiséion investment incentives, including the establishment of a regulatory asset for start-up and
development costs of Green Power Express and certain pre-construction costs for the project to be resovered pursuant to-a future FERC filing.
Further, Green Fower Express has a FERC-approved formula rate with 2 return on equity of 12.38% and a capital structure: targeting 60%
equity and 40% debt. The amount-of any future capital expenditures by Green Power Bxpress is currenily unknown,

The total development expenses through December 31, 2011 at Green Power Express that may be recoversble through regulatory assets
were approximately $5.5 million , which have been recorded 10 expenses in the periods in which they were incurred. If in a future reporting
period it becomes probable that fature'revenuey will result from the authorization to recover these development expenses, we will recognize the
regalatory assets. No regulatory assets or construetion work in progress for Green Power Express have been recorded as of December 31, 2011

Cost-Based Formula Bates with Traslp Mechanism

The trapsmission rates at our Regulated ‘Operating Subsidiaries are set anmually, using the FERC-approved formula rates and the rates
remain in effect fora one ~year period. By comipleting their formula rate templates oni an annnal basis, cur Repulated Operating Subsidiaries are
able to adjust their transmission rates to.reflect changing operational date and financial performance, incliuding the amount of network load on
therr transmission systems (for ow MISQ Regulated Operating Subsidiaries), operating expenses and additions to property, plant and
equipment when placed in service, among other items. The FERC-approved formula rates donot require further action or FERC filings forthe
caiculated joint zone rates to'go into effect; although the rates are subject to logal challengs at the FERC, Ouwr Regulated Cyperating Sybsidisries
will coniinue to use formula rates to calculate their respective
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enitual revenue requirements unless the FERC determines the rates to be unjust and unreasonable or anothermechanism is determined by the
FERC to bejust and reasonable.

Our cost-based formula rate templates include a truc-up mechanism, whereby our Regilated Operating Bubsidiaries comnpare their actual
revenue requirements to their bilied revenues for each year to determine any over- or under-collection. of revenue requirgments. The over- or
under-collection typically results from differences between the projected revenue requirement used to establish the billing rate znd actual
revenue requirement at each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, or from differences between actual and projected monthly peak loads at
our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries. Revenue is recognized for services provided during each reporting period based on actual revenue
requirements calculated using the forimila rate templates. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries acerae or defer reverrues o the extent that the
actual revenue Tequirement for the reporting period is higher or lower, respeetively, than the amounts bifled relating to that reparting period.
The amount of accrued or deferred revenues is reflected in customer bilis within two years under the provisions of the formula rate femplates.

The regutatory assets are recorded on the balance sheat in regulatory assets — revenue acerual, including accrued interest and other non-
current assets. The current and non-current regulatory Hebilities are recorded #n regulatory labilities — revenue daferral, including acorued
interest. The changes in regulatory assets and liabilities (nef) associated with our Reguiated Operating Subsidiaries® formula rate revenue

acernals and deferrals, including acorued interest, were as.follows during the vear ended December 3 1,201t

(in thopsandg) T ransmission METC ITC Midwest ITC Great-Flaing Total
Balance as of Degember 31,2010 & {33:054) 3 17,236 B 21388 & 626 $ {28}2’?63’-
Net refunds {collections) of 2000 revenue

deferrals and aceruals. including intergst 3,814 7,718 {21,679 {628} (10,7753
Mt revenue deferralsfor the vear ended ' '

December 31, 2011 {23,562} 0750 {5,607y (1,810 {43,7493
Nt accrued inferest payable for the vear

ended December 31,2011 (1.467) {6272 {206} {633 {2.420)
‘Balanceas of December 31, 2011 5 {56,269} g (200910 % (v.lody & (177 8 (852200

Regulatory assets and liabilities associated with our Regulated Operating: Subsidiaries” formula rate révenue accruals and deferrals are
regorded In our consolidated statement of financial position as fellows:

(E1 thousands) FTC Y ransmission METC ITC Midwest I'PC Great Plains Total
Current assets 8 863 3 2 $ 5,020 $ 754 & 6,639
Non-cutrent assets — other e 4,113 1,524 5,637
Churrentliabilities (31;028) {9,348} {5.549} {654) (46,5793
Nonsturrent ligbilities (26,104) {11.504) (9,74%) (3,501 (50.817)
Balance as of Decernber 51, 20611 & {58,269) F 200910y % (bl6e4) % (L&77)  § {85.270)

ITC Midwist’s Rite Discount
As part of the orders by the-fowa Utility Board (*IUB”) and the Minnesota Public Service Commission ("MPUC™) approving ITC

Bidwast's-asset acquisition, ITC Midwest agreed to provide a rate discount of $4.3 millon per year to its customers for eight vears, beginning
in the first year customers experience an increase in transmission charges following the consummation of the ITC Midwest asset acquisition.
Beginning in 2009 and extending threugh 2016, ITC Midwest's net revenue requirenzent was or will be reduced by $4.1 milfion for each vear.
The rate discount is recognized &s a reduction in revenues when we provide the service and charge the reduced rate that includes the rate

discount,
FPCTransmission Bate Freeze Revenue Deferral

[TCTransmission's rate freeze revenue deferral resulied from the difference between the revenue ITCTransmission would have collected
under its cost based formala rate and the actual revenue ITCTransmission received for the period from Febroary 28, 2003 through
December 31, 2004. The revenue deferral was amortized for ratemaking on a strajght-line basis for five vears from June 2006 through
May 2011 and was included in ITCTransmission's revenue reguirsment for those periods. Revenues of $11.9 million were recognized in 2010
and 200% relating to the rate freeze revenue deferral and revenues of $5.0 millien were recogrized in January through May 2011, The 54.9
million reduction in revenues resulted iy a reduction to afier-tax net income of approximately $4.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010 and 2009,

52
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Depreciation Stadies
ITC Midwess

Effective January 1, 2010, the FERC anthorized the implementation of the depreciation study filed by TTC Midwest which revised its
depreciation rates, This change in accounting estimaie resulted i lower composite depreciation rates for ITC Midwest primarily due 1o the
revision of asset servies lives and cost of removal values.

For ratemaking purposes, the impact of [TC Midwest's revised depreciation rates was inifiaily reflected in ITC Midwest’s 2010 revenue
requirernent. The revised depreciation rates resuited in a reduction of depreciation expense of $6.:4 million and $5.1 million for fiie years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively, as compared to the amount of depreciation expense that would have been recegnized under the
previous depreciation rates utibized by ITC Midwest, Becaise of the nclusion of depreciations expense as 3 componeni of net revenue
requirement under ITC Midwest’s cost-based formula rate, the offsetting effect on revenies and expenses fromy the change in depreciation rates
had an immaterial effect on net income and earnings per share amounts for the vear ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 .

FFCTranswmission and METC

Effective fanuary 1, 2009, the FERC accepied depreciation studies filed by ITCTransmission and METC, respectively, which revised their
depreciation rates, This change in accotnting estimate results in lower composite depreciation rates for ITCTransmission and METC primarily
due to the revision of asset service lives and cost of removal vahues.

Far ratemaking purposes, the FERC accepted our filing such that the impact of the revised depreciation rates was reflected in
ITCTransmission’s and METC’s 2009 revenue reguirement. The revised depreciation rates resulted in a reduction of depreciation expense of
52273 mitlion., $21.% million and $19.5 million for the years ended Decerber 31, 2011 . 2010 and 2009 » Tespectively, as compared to the
amount of depreciafion expense that would have been recognized under the previous depreciation rates utilized by ITCTransmission and
METC. Because of the inclusion of depreciation expense as'a component of net revemie requirernent under their cost-based formula rates, the
offretiing effect on revenues and expenses from the change in depreciation rates had an immaterfal effect. on net income and earnings pershare
amounts for the years ended December 31, 2011 ,-2010 and 2009

2. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIARTLITIES
Reguiatory Assefs

The fol’iowiﬁg'tabié sammarizes the regulatory asset balances at December 31, 26171 and 2010 -

{in thousands) 2013 24160

Regulsiory Assets:
Revenue aceruals:

Current {including acorued interest of $70 and $266 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) §  &639 0§ 284637
Non-current (including accrued interest of $34 and $22 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respedtively) 5,637 3,047
Other: .
ITCTransmission ADIT Deferral (net of accumulated amortization. of $26,766 and $23,736 as of Becember 33,836 36866
31, 2811 and 2010, respectively)
METC ADIT Beferral {net of sccumulatéd:amortization.of $11,793 and $9,435 asof December 34, 2611 and 30,663 3%.021
2010, respectively)
METC Regalatory Deferrals {net of accumulaied amortization of $3,857 and $3.086 as of December 31, 2011 11,571 12,342
and 2010, respectively)
Income taxes recoverable retated to AFUDC equity ' 38,222 28,687
ITC Great Plains Stwrt-up and Development 8,946 8,783
KETA Project 1,779 1,748
Kansds V-Plan 3121 ——
Pensions and postretirement 24711 16,705
income taxes recoverable related to implementation of the Michigan Corporate Incowme Tax 7.630 —
Other 1,308 —
Total $ 174,263 & 170,73
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Revenue Acerials

Refer to discussion of revenue accruals in Note 4 under “Cost-Based Formula Rates with True-Up Mechanism.” Our Regulated Operating
Subsidiaries donot earn a retun on the balance of the revenue accruals, but do acerue interest carrying costs which are subject to rate recovery
along with the principal amount of the revenue acemal,

FTCTransmission ADIT Deferral

The carrying amount of the ITCTransmission ADIT Deferral is the remaining unamortized balance of the portion of ITCTransmission’s
purchase price in excess of the fair value of net assets scquired approved for inchusion in furure rares by the FERC. ITCTransmission earns 2
return on the remaining unamortized balance of the I'TCTransmission ADIT Deferral that is included in rate bage. The original amount recorded
for this regulatory asset of 560.6 million is being recognized in rates and amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years. ITCTransmission
recorded amortization expense.of $3.0 million annually during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , which is included in depreciation and amortization and
recovered through ITCTransmission's cost-based formulz rate template.

METC ADEY Defervals

The carrying amount of the METC ADIT Deferral is the remaining unamortized balance of the-portion of METC s purchase price in excess
of the fair value of net assets acquired from Consamers Energy approved for inclusion in fuiure rates by the FERC. The original amount
recorded for the reguiatory asset Tor METC ADIT Deferrals of $42.5 million is recognized. in rates and amortized over 18 years beginning
January 1, 2607, METC cams a return on the remaining unamortized balance of the regulatory asset Tor METC ADIT Deferrals that is included
in rate base. METC recorded amortization éxpense of $2.4 million annually during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively, which is included in
depreciation and amortization and recovered through METC's cost-based formula rate template.

METC Regulatory Deferrals

METC has deferred, as avegulatory asset, depreciation and related interest expense associated with new transmission assets placed in service
from January 1. 2001 throngh Becember 31, 2005 that were included on METC's batance sheet at the time MTH dequired METC from
Consumers Energy (the “METC Regulstory Deferrals™). The origingl amount recorded for the regulatory eeset for METC Regulatory Deferrals
of §154 million is recognized in rates and amortized over 20 vears beginning January 1, 2007, METC earns & return on the remaining
unamortized balance of the regulatory asset for METC Regulatory Deferrals that is included in rate base. METC recorded amortization expense
of"$0.8 million during 2011, 2016 and 2609 | respectively, which is included i depreciation and amortization and recovered through METC's
cost=hased formula raié-wemplate.

Inceme Tuxes Recoverable Reluted to AFUDC Equity

Accounting standards for income taxes provide that a regulatory assel be recorded if it is probable that a future increase in taxes payable
relating to the hook depreciation of AFUDC equity tlat has been capitalized to wroperty, plant and equipment will be recovered from customers
through future rates. Because AFUDC cquity is a component of proparty, plant and equipment that is mciuded in rate base when the plant is
placed in service, and the related deferred tax liabilities are not 2 reduction to.rate base, we effecti vely-carn  refurn on this regulatory asset,

¢ Great Plaing Stavi-up and Developrent

The start-up-and development reguiatory asset consists of certain costs incurred by ITC Great Plains from inception through the effective
date of the ITC Great Plains” cost-based formula rate, including costs which bad been incurred to develop and acquire transmission assets in the
SPP region. These costs relate primarily fo obtaining various state, SPP and FERC approvals necessary for ITC Grear Plains to own
transmission assets and build new facilities in the SPP region, efforts to establish the ITC Great Plaing® cost-based {ormuia rate, te
establishment of ITC Great Plains as a public utility in Kansas and Oklahoma, as well as obtaining the necessary approvals and authorizations
for the state regulators in Kansas and Oklahoma.

The startup and development regulatory asset acerues carrying charges al 2 rate equivalent to ITC Great Plains® wei ghied average cost of
capitel, adjusted annedlly based on ITC Great Plains’ sctual weihted average cost of capital calculated in ITC Great Plaing’ formula raic
template for that year. The carrying charges began to accrue in March 2009 and wil] continue until such time that the reguiaiory asset is
included in rate base. The equity component of these carrying charges including applicable taxes, totaling $3.6 million as of December 31,
2011, is not recorded for GAAP accounting and teporting as the equity refum does not meel the recognition criteria of incurred costs eligible
for deferral under GAAP. Recovery of the start-up and development regulatery asset requires FERC authorization upon ITC Great Plams
making an additional filing under Section 205 of the FPA 1o demonstraic that the costs to be recovered are just and reasonabie. If FERC
authorization 18 received, ITC Great Plains will include the unamortized batance of the start-up and development regulatory assets in its rate
base and will begin amortizing it over a 19 ~year period upon the in-service date of the XETA. Project, the Kansas VoPlan or when the total in-
serviee grosg property, plent and equipment at ITC Great Plains excesds $100 million » whichever ocours first. The amortization expense will
be recovered through ITC Great Plains’ cost-based formula rate template beginning in the period in which amortization begins.
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KEETA Projact

The KHETA Project regulatory asset includes certain costs incurred associated with regulatory activities in Kansas and Oklashoma and with
participants in SPP to obtain the necessary approvals and authorization before proceeding further with plans, as well as engineering studies,
routing studies and education and outreach to stakeholders on ITC Great Plaing® efforts to bring these projects to the PP region, and other
costs dncarred specific to the KETA Project prior to. construction, The KETA Project regilatory asset accrues carrving charges at 4 rate
equivatent 1o ITC Great Plains’ weighted average cost of capital, adjusted annualiy based on ITC Great Plains’ actual weighted average cost of
capital caleulated in its formule rate template for that year. The carrying charges began to agerue in March 2009 as authorized by the FERC
Order and will eontinue until such time that the regulatory asset js included in rate base. The suity component of these camrying charges
including applicable taxes, totaling $0.5 miilion as of December 31, 2611 , is not recorded for GAAP accounting and reporting as the equity
return does not meet the recognition criteriz of incurred costs eligible for deferral under GAAP. Recovery of the KETA Project regulatory asset
requires FERC authorization upon ITC Great Plains making an additional filing under Section 205 of the FPA 1o demonstrate that the COSES {0
be recovered are just and reasonable. If FERC suthorization is recefved, ITC Great Plains will include the unamortized halance of the KETA
Project Regulatory Asset in its rate base and begin amortizing t over a 10 -year period upon the in-serviee date of the KETA Project, The
amortization expense will be recovered through ITC Greal Plains” cosi-based formule rate template beginning in the period in which
amartization beging.

Kansas V-Pign Project

The Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asset includés certain costs incurred agsociated with regulatory activities in Kansas and with
participants in 8PP to obtain the neoessary approvals and authorization before proceeding further with plans, as well 2s engineering studies,
routing studies and eduvation and-outreach to stakeholders on ITC Great Plains' efforts to bring these projects to the SPP region, and pther costs
incurred specific to the Kansas V-Plan Project prior to construction. The Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asset accrues carrying charges at 2
rate equivaient to TT(*Great Plains' weighted average cost of capital, adjusted annually based on T7C Great Plaing® actual weighted average cost
of capital caleulated.in our formula vate tempiate for that year. The carTying charges began to acorne in Marel 2000 as authorized by the FERC
Order and will continue il such time that the rezulatory asset is included in rate base. The equity component of these carrying. charges
including epplicable taxes, totaling $0.5 million as of December 31, 2011 | is not recorded for GAAD accounting and reporting as:the equity
return dees not mest the recogaition criteria of a incwrred costs eligible for deferral under GAAP. Recovery of the Kansas V-Plan Proiect
regulatory asset requires FERC authorization upon ITC Great Plains making an additional filing under Bection 2035 of the FP4 to demonstrate
that the costs to be recovered are just and reasonable. If FERC authorization 15 received, ITC Great Plains will include the unamortized balance
of the Kansas V-Plan Project regulatory asset in its rate base and begin amortizing it over & 10 -year period upon the in-servige date of the
Kansas V-Plan Project. The amortization expense will be recovered through ITC Great Plaing' cost-based formula rate template beginning 1n
thie-period in which amortization begins.

Penitons and Postretivement

Accounting standerds for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans for rate-regulated entities require that amounts that
otherwise would have been charged and or credited to accoumulated other comprehensive income are recorded 4s 2 regulatory asset or liability.
As the unrecognized ameounts recofded to this regulatory asset are recognized, expenses will be recovered from customers in future rates under
our cost based formula rates. Qur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries do not earn a return on the balance of the Pension and Postrefirement
regulatory assel.

Income Taxes Receverable Related to Implementation of the Michigan Corporate Income Tax

On Blay 25, 2011, the Michigan Business Tax {“MBT") was repealed and replaced with the Michigan Cotperate income Tax { “CIT™,
effective January 1, 2612, Under the CIT, we will be taxed at a rate of 6.0% on federal taxable income that is attributed to our operations in ihe
state-of Michigan, subject to certain adjustments. In addition to the traditional income tax, the MBT had also included a modified gross receipts
fax which aliowed for deductions and credits for certain activities, none of which are part of the CIT. The change in Michigan tax law required
us to remove deferred income tax balances recognized nnder the MBT and establish new deferred income tax halances under the CIT in the
second guarter of 2011, and the net result was incremental deferred state income tax labilities at both I'TCTransmission and METC, Under our
cost-based Tormula rates with true-up mechanism, the future taxes receivable as a result of the tax law change is expected to be collected from
customers through future rates and has resulted in the recognition of a regulatory asset. Recovery of the Mickigan CIT regulatory asset requires
FERC authorization upon ITC Holdings making an additional filing under Section 205 of the FPA 1o demonstrate that the costs to he recovered
are just and reasonable. ITCTransmission and METC do not earn = rehurn on the balance of the OFT reguiatory asset.
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Reguiatory Linbilities

The following table summarizes the regulatory liabilities balances at December 31, 2011 and 2010

(i thousands) 1013 2010
Repulatory Liabilities:
Acerued asset removal costs $ 83,834 § 90,987
Revenue deferrals (2):
Current (including accrued interest of $2,159 and $876 as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectively) 46,579 17,658
Non-current {including ascrued interest of $828 and $630 as of Deceriber 31,2011 and 2010, respectively) 56,017 43,202
Total § 181430 ¥ 151,847

(a) Refer to discussion of revenue defersals in Note 4 under “Cost-Based Formula Rates with Tree-lip Mechanism,” Our Regulatéd Operating
Scbsidiaries accrue interest on the true-up amounts which will be refunded through rates along with the principal amount of revénue
deferrals in fiture periods.

Accrued Asset Removal Costs

The carrying emount of the accrued asset removal costs Tepresents the cumulative amount collected from customers 1o cover the estimated
future costs to remove propery, plant.and eguipment at Tetirement. The portion of depreciation expense Included in our depreciation rates
related to asset removal costs is added to this regulatory Hability ané removal expenditures incurred are charged to this regulatory liability, In
addition, the regulatory liability is also adjusted for timing differences betweer when we recover legal asset retirement obligations in our rates
andd when we would recognize these costs under the standards sef forth by the FASB. Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries include this item,
exeluding the cost component related to the recognition of our asset refirement obligations under the-standards set forth by the FASR, within
aecumiulated depreciation for rate-making purposes, which is.a reduction to rate base,

6. GOOBWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 , we had goodwill balances recorded at ITCT ransmission, METC wnd ITC Midwest of $173.4 milfion ,
$4338 million and $323.0 million , respegtively, which resulted from the [TCTransmission acquisition, the METC acquisition and ITC
Midwest®s asset acquisition, respectively,

Intangible Assets

Pursuant to the METC scquisition in October 2006, we have identified intangible assets with finite lives derived from the portion of
regulatory -assets recorded on METC’s historical FERC financial statements that “were not recorded on METC's historical Cia AP financial
statements assocated with the METC Regulatory Deferrals and the METC ADIT Deferrals. The carrying amount of the intangible asset for
METC Regulatory Deferrals at Decensber 31, 2011 and 2010.is $29.7 milkion and $31.7 million., respectively, and is-amortized over 20 vears
beginning January 1, 2007. The carrying amount of the intangible asset for METC -ADIT. Deferrals at December 31, 2011 and 2010 15 $13.6
miion and $14.6 million , respectivély, and is amortized ever 18 vears beginning January 1, 2007, which also corresponds to the amortization
period established in the METC rate case setilement. METC edms-an equity retum on the remaining unamortized balance of both the iman gible
asset for METC Regulatory Deferrals and the intangible nsset for METC ADIT Deferrals and recovers the amortization expense through
METC's cost-based formula rate template.

ITC Great Plains has recorded intangible assets for payments made to cerain transmission owners o acquire rights which are required
under the SPP tariff to designate ITC Great Plains to build, own and operate projects within the SPP region, including the KETA Project and
the Kanses V-Plan. The carrying amount of these intangible assets is $3.6 million and $3.7 miition {net of aceumulated amortization of $0.2
million and $0.1 million } as of Decermber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Druring the years ended December 31, 2011 . 2010 and 2009 , we recognized §3.1 million , $3.1 million and $3.0 million . raspectively, of
amorfization expense of our mntangible asseis. We expect the annual amortizetion of our intangible assets that have been recorded ag of
December 31, 2011 to be as follows:
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(in thousands)

2012

2013

2014

2018

201¢

2017 and thereafier
Total

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properey, plant and eguipment — net.consisted-of the Tollowing at December 31, 2011 and 2010 -

{In. thousanids)
Property, plant and equipment
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries:
Property, plant-and equipment in service

3,160
3,100
3,100
3,100
3,100

1611

2010

$ 4098211

3 3722537

Construction work in progress 418,056 197,985
Capital squipment inv entor}« 08,881 '62,- 168
Other 12,490 12,432
ITC Holdings and ather 15349 6,424
Total 4,608,987 4,001,946
Less aecumulated depreciation and amortization {1,193, 1643 L1129,669)
Propesty, plant and equipment — net b 3415823 8 2872277

Additiens to property, plant and equipient in service and construction work in progress during 2011 and 2010 were due. primarily for
projects to upgrade or teplace existing trapSmission plant to improve the yelishility of our transmission systoms in addition to generator

interconmections end our ongoing deveélopment projects,
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5. LONG-TERM BEBT
The following amounts were cutstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010

{In thonsands) 031 2014
ITC Holdings 5.25% Senior Notes due Jaly 15, 2013 (net-of discowt of $183 and 8307, respectively) 266.817 % 266,698
ITC Holdings 6.04% Senjor Notes, Serles A, due September 26, 2014 50,000 50,000
ITC Heoldings 5.875% Senior Notes due September 30, 2016 (net of discount of $16 and 819,
respectively) 254,984 254,681
TTC Holdings 6.23% Senior Notes, Series B, due September 20, 2017 50,000 50.000
ITC Holdings 6.375% Seiior Notes due Sepiember 30, 2036 (ne! of discount of $189 and 3197,
respectively) 254811 254,803
ITC Holdings 6.05% Senfor Notes due January 31, 2018 {net of discount of $960 and $1,1 18,
respectively) 384.046 383,882
ITG Holdings 5.50% Senior Notes dug January ‘15, 2020 inét of discount of $1,058 and $1.186,
respectively) 198647 198,814
ITC Holdings Revolving Credit Agreement due May 17, 2016 _ —
ITCTransmisston-4.45% First Morigage Bonds. Serics A due Taly 15, 2013 (nét of dl&-bﬂillli of §$18 and
$30,respectively)- 184,082 184:870
ITCTransmission 6§.125% First Meortgage Bonds, Series C,. due March 31, 2036 (net of difs::olmf of 389
and $93; rt:&,pectively} 99,911 99.907
ITCTranemisslon 5:75% Flrst Mortzage Bonds, Serfes D, due April 1, 2018 (ot of discount-of §72 and
583, respectivaly) E 05,928, 69,917
TECrensmission Révolving Credit Agreement due May 17, 2816, 18,000 e
FFCTransmission/METC Revolving Credit Agresment due Marsh 29, 2012 — 13,800
METC 5.75% Senior Secured Notes due Decernber 10, 2015 175,604 175,000
METC6.:63% SeniorSecured Notes dus December 18, 2014 50,006 50,000
METC 5.64% Sentor Secured Notes due May 6, 2040 50,000 50.000
METC Revolving Credit Agreement due May 17,2016 37,600 —
THC Midwest 6,15% First Mortgage Bonds, Series 4, due January 31, 2038 (net of discount of $438 and
5476, respeotively) 174,542 174,524
ITC Midwest 7.12% First Mortgage Bonds, SeriesB, due Decermber.22; 2017 40000 40,400
ITC Midwest 7.27% First Mortgage Bonds, Series €, doe December 22, 2020 35,000 35.000
ITC Midwest 4.60% First Mortgage Bonds, Sertes D, due December 17, 2074, 75,080 TE 060
ITC Midwest 2008 Revolving Credit Agresment due January 29, 2013 40,000 39;5%.
IFC Midwest 201 L. Revelving Credit Agreement due Febmary 11,2013 52,200 -
ITC Great Plains Revolving Credit Agreement due February 16, 2015 53,260 _—
Total Tong-termr debi 2,643,022 $  2.496.898
The annual maturities of tong-ternr debt as of December 31, 2011 are.as foliows:
{in thoussnds)
2012 g -
2073 544,200
2014 100,000
2015 228,260
2016 310000
2017 and thereafter 1,465,000
Total $ 2648060
ITC Holdings

The ITC Hokdings Senior Notes are issued under [TC Holdings’ indenture. A1l issuances of ITC Holdings Senior Notes are unsecured.
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T C ransmission

The ITCTransmisston First Mortgage Bonds are issued under ITC T ransmission®s First Martgage and Deed of Trast, and therefore have the
benefit of a first mortgage Hen on substantially alt of ITCTransmission’s property.

METC .
On May 6, 2016, METC issued $30.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 5,64% Senior Secured Notes, due May 6, 2040 (the “METC
Senior Secured Notes™). The METC Senior Secured Notes are secured by a first mortgage lien on substantially all of METC’s real property and

tangible personal property. The procesds were used primarily to repay amounts outstanding wnder the ITCTransmission/METC Revolving
Credit Agreement, to partially fund capital expenditures and for general corporate purposes,

ITC Migwest

On December 17, 2009, ITC Midwest issued $35.0 million of the total face amount of §75.0 million of its 4.60% First Mortgage Bonds,
Beries 1), due December 17, 2024 (*Series. b Bonds™), ITC Midwest closed on the adiitional 540.0 million of Sertes I Bonds in Pebruary
2010. The proceeds were used to zepay a portion of the amounts outstandin g under the ITC Midwest Revolving Credit Agreement. Al ¢f ITC
Midwest’s First Mortgage Bonds are issued under its First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, and therefore have the benefit of 2 first mortgage len
on substapfially all of ITC Midwest?s property.

In November 2011, ITC Midwest commifted fo issue $100.0 odihon of 3.50% First-Mortgage Bonds, Series B, due January 2027 (“Series B
Bonds”). 1TC Midwest held a lending commitment from the lenders as of Decemiber 31, 2011 and closed on the $100.0 million of Series £
Bonds on January 19, 2012. The proceeds from the issuance will be used to refinance existing indebtedness, partially fund capital expendifures
and for general corporate purposes. All of ITC Midwest's First Mortgage Bonds are issued under its First Martgage and Deed of Trust, and
therefore have the benefit of a first mortgage lfen on substantially all of ITC Midwest's property,

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use derivative finencial instruments; including interest rate swap coniracts, to mEnage our exposure 1o fluctuations in interest rates. The
use of these financial instruments mitigates cxposure to these risks and the variability of our operating results. We are not a party to leveraged
derivatives and do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The interest rate swaps listed below
manage interest rate tisk assoclated with the forecasted future issuance of fixed-rate debt related to the expected refinancing of the maturing
$267.0 million ITC Holdings 5.25% Senior Notes due July 15, 2013:

Trterest Rate Swaps Neotiowal Amount Fixed Rate Original Terin Eifective Dute

(Ameunty o millions)

50.0 3.60% 10 vears July 2013

Septemiber 2010 swap -1

March 2011 swaps 50.0 4.45% 10 vears July 2013
May 2611 swap 25.0 4.00% 10 vears Tuly 2013
Avgust 2017 swaps 500 3.80% 14 years July 2013

Total $ . 178 "

The interest ate swaps call for TTC Holdings to receive interest quarterly ot a variable rate £qual to LIBOR and to pay interest semi-
annally at various fixed vates effsctive for the 10 -year period beginning July 18, 2013 after the agreements have been terminated. The
agreements: include a mandatory early termination provision and will be:ferminated no later than the effective date of the interest raie swaps of
July 15, 2013, The interest rate swaps have been deternyined to be highly effective at offsetting chanpges in the fair value of the forecasted
interest cash flows associated with the expected debt izsnance atyibutable to changes in benchmark interest rates fom the frade date oF the
interest rate swaps to the issuance date of the debt obligation. As of December 31, 2011 , there has been no material ineffectiveness recorded in
the consolidated statement of eperations. The interest rate swaps quakify for hedge accounting treatment, whereby any pre-tax gain or loss
recognized from the trade dete to the effeciive date for the effective portion of the hedge is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. These amounts will be accumulated and amortized as a component of interest expense aver the life of the forecasted debt. Ax of
Decemnber 31, 2011 , the fair value of the derivative instruments was a Hability of' $24.3 million recorded to other non-current labilisies, None
of the interest rate swaps contain.credit-risk-related contingent features. Refer to Note 12 for additional fair value information.
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Revolving Tredit Agreements

On May 17, 2011, ITC Holdings, ITCTransmission and METC entered inie new unsecured, unguaraniced revolving credit agreements,
which replaced their existing revolving credit agreements that were scheduled to meature on March 29, 2012. On February 11, 2011, ITC
Midwest entered into a new unsecursd, unpuaranteed revolving credit agreement in addition 1o its existing revolving credit agreement, dated
Jaruary 29, 2008. On February 16, 2011, ITC reat Plaing entered into an unseoured, unguaranteed revolving credit agreoment. Af
December 31,2011 , ITC Holdings and its Regulated Operating Subsidiaries had the following revolving credit facilities available:

Weighted-
Average
Iuterest Rate
Tetal on
Available Outstanding Ernnsed Quistinding Commitment Original

(Amounts in-millions) Capacity Balanee {a) Capacity Balance Fee Rate (b Term Dateof Maturity
Revolving Credit Agresments:

ITC Holdings 5 20080 % — & 2080 n/a {c} 0.25% 3 years May 2018

FICT ransmission 1060 18:0 . B2G 1.4%% (di 0.125% 5 vesrs May 2016

METC 100.6 376 02.4 1.4% (e} 9.125% 3 years May 2016

ITCMidwest - 2008 410 40,0 1.0 0.3% (£3] 8.06% Svears Jarary 2013

ITC Midwest - 2011 750 52.2 228 1.5% {a} 0.125% 2 years Febrmary 2013

TTC Grear Plaing 150.0 533 96.7 2:1% {hy 0.30% 4 years February 2015
Total $ 606.0 3 201.1 § 4649

(a) Included within long-term debt.

(b) Caloulation based on the average daily unused commitments, subject to adiustment based.on the borrower's credit rating.

(¢} Loan bears interest at a rate-equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 1.75% or at a base rate, which is defined as the higher of the
prime rate, 9.50% above the federal funds rate or 1% above the one menth LIBOR, plus an applicable margin of 0.75%, subject to
adinstments based on 1TC Holdings' credit rating.

{d} Loan bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margis of 1.15% or at a hase rate, which is defined as the Highet of the
prime rate, 0.50% above the federal funds rate or 1% ubove the one month LIBOR, plus an applicable margin of 0.15%, subject to
adjustments based on ITCTransmission's credit rafing,

(¢} Loan bears interest at z.rate-equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 1.15% or at.a bage rate; which is defined as the higher of the
prime rate, 0.50% above the federal funds raie or 1% ahove the one month LIBOR, plus an applicable margin of 0.13%, subject io
adiusiments based on METC's credit rating. _

(f) Loan bears interest at a rate equal 2o LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 0.30% or ata base rate, which is defined as the higher of the
prime tate, or B50% ahove the federal funds rate, subicct to adjustments based on TTC Midwest's credit rating,

(g) Loan bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 1.25% or at a’base rate, which is defined as the higher of prime
rate, 0.50% sbove over the federal funds rafe or 1% above the one month LIBOR, plus an applicable margin of 0.25%, subject 1o
adfustments based on ITC Midwest®s.credit rating,

{h) Loan bears interest at 2 rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin of'1.75%, or at a base rate, which is defined as the higherof prime
rate, (.50% above the federal funds rate or 1% above the one month LIBOR, plus an applicgble margin of"0.75%, subject to adjustments
based on [TT Greai Plains’ creditrating,

Covennnis

Gur debt mstruments contain numerous finzncial and operating covenants that place significant restrictions on certain transactions, such as
meurring additional indebtedness, engaging in sale and Jease-back transactions, creating liens or other encumbrances, entering into mergers,
consolidations, Hgquidations or dissolutions, creafing or acquiring subsidiaries, selling or otherwise disposing of all or substantially all of our
agsety and paying dividends. In addition, the covenants require us to meet cerialy financial ratios, such as maintaining certain funds from
operations ratios, debt to capiialization ratios and maintaining certain interast coverage ratios in addition © non-GAAP covenants. We are
currently in compliance with all debt covenants.
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

We report both basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of both caleulations for the years ended Decernber 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 is:presenied in the following table:

Year Esided December 31,

{in thousands, except share, per share data and percentages) 2011 o 26164 2069
MNumerator: .
Net imcome % 171,685 % 145,678 3 130,900
Lessydividends declared — common shares, restricted shares and _
deéferred stock unis {a) {70505y {66:0173 (62.392)
Undistributed earnings 101380 79661 68508
Percentage aliocated 1o common shares (b} U8.3% 0%.3% 98.69%,
Undistributed earnings — common shares 99 657 78307 67,540
Adddividends declared — commnion shares 69200 B5,926 #1517
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per common share % 168857 5 143,233 [y 170066
Denominator: " )
Denominator for basic earnings per common shaie — weighted-average
sommon shares 50,280.905 49,526 580 49,195,470
Incremental shares for stock options and employee stock purchase plan 788,018 871.45% $80,963
Denominator for diluted earnings per common share - adjusted
weighted-aversge shares and assumed conversion 51.078,825 30,398,035 50.077.433
Petr commmon sharenetincome:
Basic $ 336§ 289 % 2.62
Diluted : $ 331 % 284 8 2.58
(7} Includesdividends paid i the form of shares for deferred stock units.
{b) Weighted-average common shares cutstanding 54,289,905 49,526, 580 49,196,470
Weighted-average restricted shares and deferred stock units {participating
securities) 854 717 842,108 703,716
Total 51.144:622 50,368,688 49,902,186
Percentagesallocated to commeoen shares 98.3% 98.3% 98.6%

Our restrivted stock and deferred stock units contain rights to receive nonforfeitable dividends and thus, are participaiing seourities
requiring the two-class method of computing earnings per share.

At December 31, 2011 | 2610 and 2009 | we had 2,100,056 | 2,436,742 and 2,673,121 outstanding stock options, respectively, Stock
options are inciuded in the diluted earnings per share caleilation using the treasury stock method, unless the effect of inctuding the stock
cpticns would be anti-dilweive, For the year ended Drecember 31, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 » 213,917 | 225,740 and 814,914 anti-diutive stock
oplicens were excluded from fhe diluted earnings per share calenlations, respectively:

10, INCOME TAXES

Qur effective tax rate varied from the statutory federsl income tax rate due to differences between the book and tax treatment of various
transactions ss follows:

(b theusands) 2011 2019 2009
Income tax expense at 35% statuiory rate § 93,253 & 6 % TE.965
State income taxes (net of federal benefit) 4,760 4,208 7.230
AFUDC eguily 3,202) {3,998} {4.336)
Other - net 2,023 2,268 1.713
Income tax provision 3 Qd. 749 & 82,254 g 77,572
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Components of the income tax provision were as follows:

o chosand sl 2813 2010 2809
Current Income fax expense NN £3,952 $ 5,508 g 571
Deferred income tax expense 33,266 6,980 74,001
Henefits of operating loss carryforward 2,169 69,757 1,000
Change i Michigan tax law {4,638} — o
Total incometax provision 5 04,749 3 82,254 Y 77,572

Deferred tax assets and labilities ave yecognized for the estimated future tax effact-of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets
or habilities and the reported amounts tn the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and lLiabilities are classified as current or non-current
according to the classification of the related assets or Habilities. Deferred tax assets and Jizhilities ot related fo assets or liahilities are classified
aceording to the expetted reversal date of the temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities} consisted of the following at Tecember 31:

(in thopsands) 2071 2010
Property, plant:and equipment 5 (302,647 3% {274,661}
Federal income taxes NOLs 1,131 2,347
Michigan Business Tax deductions — 21,697
METCregulatory deferral {a} (15,507 (16,947
Acquisition adjustments ~ ADIT deferrals (2) (14,535} (16,434}
Goodwill (87,331 {(73.017)
Revénveaccfudld/deferrals — net (including accrued interest) (2) : 33424 9,522
Pension.and postretiremenit Habilitiss 16,671 14,030
State incomé tax NOLs(net of federal benefity 10,582 2E152
Sharg-baséd comypiensation 11,546 13,153
Other — nat ' (4, 786) (13,1973
Net deferred tax Habilities $ {352,632y  § . (31537%%
(ross deferredsincome tax Jiabilities % (4350403 .§  (#14.606)
Gross deferred income tax assets 83,308 99,241
Met deferred tax Habilities 3 {352.632y § {313,375}

{2} Described in Note's .

We have estimated federal income tax NOLs of §3.3 million as of Deoember 31, 2011, all of which we expect to use prior to their
expiration. Our federal income tax NOLs would expire beginning in 2019,

We also have estimated state income tax NOLs as of December 31, 2011, all of which we expect t0 use prior-fo their expiration. Our state
meome tax NOLs would expire beginning in 2G27. We have recarded estimated state income tax NOL deferred tax assets of $10.6 millian as of
December 31, 2011, We have additional state income tax NOLs of $2.9 million fax effected, net of federal benefit, that have not been
recognized in the consolideted financial statements relating to tax deductions for share-based compensation. The accounting standards for
share-based compensation reqaire that the tax deductions that exceed book value be recognized if that deduction reduces taxes payable as a
result of a realized cash benefit from the deduction.

Michigan Corporate Income Tax

Gn May 25, 2011, the Michigan Business Tax was repealed and repisced with the Michigan Corporate Income Tax, effective January 1,
2012. Under the CIT, corporations such as ITC Holdings will be taxed at a rate of 6.0% on federal taxible income apportioned to Michigan,
subject to certain adjustments. In additien to the traditional incometax, the MBT had also included a modified gross receipts fax which allowed
for deductions and credits for certain activities, none of which are part of the CIT. The change In Michigen tax law required us o remove
deferred meome tax balances recognized under the MBT and establish new deferred income tax balances under the CIT in the second guarter of
2G11. The change i Michigan tax law resulied in a reduction of income tax provision of $4.6 million during 2011, Additionally, we recorded
regulatory assets for this change in tax law as described in Note 5 .
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i1, RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ASSETS HELD IN TRUSY
Retirement Fian Benefits

We bave a qualified retirement plan for eligible emplovees, comprised of a traditionat final average pay plan and a cash balance plan. The
traditional final average pay plan isnoncentributory, covers select employees, and provides retirement benefits hased on the employees” years
of benefit service, average final compensation and age uf refirement. The cash balance pian i¢ also noncentributory, covers substantialy all
employees, and provides refirement benefits based on eligible compensation and interest eredits, Witile we are obligated to fund the retirement
plan by contributing the minimum amount required by the Bmployee Retirement Income Security Acl of'1974, as amended, it i$ our practice to
contribute the maximum allowable amount as defined by section 404 of the Internal Revenue Cods, Wa made contributions of $3.6 milion |
$6.1 million and $3.2 miliion to the retirement plan in 2011 , 201¢ and 2609 | respectively, aitheugh we had no minimum funding
requirements. We expect to contribute up to'$7.0 million to the defined benefit retirement plan relating to the 2011 plan vear in 2012,

We have also established two supplemental nonguelified, noncontributory, retirement benefit plans for selected management employees.
The plans provide for benefits that supplement those provided by our other retirement plans. The. dbligations under these supplemental
nonqualified plans are included in the pension benefit obligation caleulations below. The investments in trust for the supplemental nonqualified
retiverent plans of $16.1 million and $16.8 million at December 31, 201! and 2010 , respectively, arenot included in the pension pian asset
amounts presented below, but are included in other assets on our consolidated statement of financial position. For the vears ended
December 31, 2041 , 2010 and 200% , we contribuied $3.1 million , $0.5 million and $4.0 milfon . Tespectively, to thesz supplemental
nonquatified, noncontributory, retirement benefit plans. We account for the asseis comtributed under the supplemental nongualified,
noncentributory, vetirement henefit plan and held i a trust as trading securities for certain investmerits in debt and equily securities per the
FASB guidance. Accordingly, realized and unrealized gains or losses on the investments are recorded as investment Hcome or loss, We
recognized gains of $2.2 million., $0.9 million and $0.7 million in other mcome during 2071 . 2010 and 2009 . respectively, associated with
realized-and unrealized gains and losses on the investments held in trust associated with our supplemental nonqualified retirement plans.

The plan assets consisted of the following assets by category:

Asset Caterory W11 2016
Fixed income securities 33.1% 47 2%,
Equity securities 46 9% 521.8%

Total . H00% - 100.0%

Net pension cost for 2611 , 2010 and 2009 ineludes the foliowing components:

{in thousands) 24513 2010 2069

Service cost 3 3,583 $ 2,868 ¥ 2,674

Interest cost 2,458 2,222 1,691

Expectedretuzn on plan assets (1,896} {1,388} {987}

Amortization of prior service cost (42) 42y (42}

Amortization s unrecogmized loss 2607 1,722 2,250
Net pension. cast $ G712 § 3,382 $ 5.586
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The following table reconciles the obligations, assets and funded status of the pension plans as well as the amounts recognized as acerued
pension liability in the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31 , 2011 and 2010

{in thousands) 2011 . 20140
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Beginning projected benafit obligation § {45,104) g (35,734}
Service cost {3,585) {2.868)
Tnterest cost {2,458) {2.222)
Actuarialvet loss : {5.861) {4856}
Benefits paid 930 576
Ending projected benefit obligation % {56:06%) 3 {45,104}
Change in Plang? Assets:
Beginning plan-assets at-fair vatue & 24,647 g 16.503
Actual returm on plan assets 950 2,637
Employer contributions 3618 G088
Benefits paid {030 {376}
Ending plan agsets 2t fair value $ 28,276 & 24,647
Funded status, underfunded h {27,793y % (20,457}
Ending accumulatedbenefit obligation $ (465785 & (33:830)
Amounts recarced as:
Funded Status: :
Agcrued pension liabilities $ {27,793% S {23,165}
Pension assets —uther assets — other — ' A
Total $ {27,793} 5 (20.4573
Unrecognized Amounts in-Other Regulatory Assets:
Netactuarial loss 5 17.487 b 13,288
Prigr service credit {101 (147
Total 3 17,386 % 13,146

The unrecognized amounts that otherwise would have heen charged and or credited to accumulated other.comprehensive income associated

with the guidance for employers’ accounting for pensions are vecorded as a regulatory asset on our consolidated statements of financial position
as discussed in Note 5 .

The amounts recorded as a regulatory asset represent a net periodic benefit cost to be recognized in our operating income in fture periods.

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the -benefit obligation for 2011, 2014 and 2009 are lisied below:

2031 2810 206%
Discotntrate 4.50 - 3.00% 350% 6.00%
Atinial rate of salary Increases 540 - 6.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Actuarial assumptions used to determine the benefit cost for 2011, 2010 snd 2609 are listed below:

2013 2010 2009
Discount rate 517 -5.67% 6.00%: 5.05%
Annual rate of salary increases S04~ 6.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected Jong-tenm rate of retum on plan assets 7.25% 7.50% 7.25%
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At December 31, 2011 | the projected benefit payments for the.defined benefit refiremeant plan calculated using the same assumptions as
those used t calculate the benefit obiigation deseribed above are listed below:

{In thousands)

2012 % 1,402
2013 1,693
2014 3,132
2015 3,250
2016 3,050
2017 through 2021 17,393

Investment Objectives end Fuir Valne Measurement

The general investment objectives of the qualified retirement benefit plan includes maximizing the retum within reasonable and prodent
levels of risk and controlling administrative and management costs. The targeted asset allocation is weighted equally between equity and fixed
income invesments. Mivestment decisions are made by our retirement benefits board as delegated by our board of directors. Equity investiients
may include various types of US. and internationsl equify securities, such as large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks. Fixed income
nvestments may inclhude cash and short-term instruments, U8, Govemnment securitics, corporate bonds, mortgages and other fixed moome
investments. No investments are prohibited for usein the retirement plan, incinding Gerivatives, but our exposure to derivatives currently is not
material. Weintend that the Jong-ferm capital growth of the refirement plan, together with employer contributions, will provide for the payment
of the bernefit obligations.

Wedetermine our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets based on the cusrent targetallocations of the retirement plan investments
and considering historical retums on comparable fixed income investments and equity-investments.

The measurement. of fair value is based on. o threestier hierarchy, which priovitizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers
inctader Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as guoted prices in activermarksts; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in
active miarkets that are either-directly or indirectly observabie; and Level 3, defined as unobservanle imputs m which litfle or no market dats
exists, therefore requiring an entity t¢ develop its own assumpiions,

The fair value measurement of the retirement plan as of December 31, 2011 , was as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Uiing

Guoted Pricss in Gignificant Significant
Active Markets For Othar Observabie Unobservable
{iw thousands} Tdentica! Assets Fnputy Inputs
{Level 1 {Level 2} Heveld;

Financial assety measured on-avecuring basis:

Pooled separate accounts — U8, equity securitios % o % 11,000 $ —

Pooled separate accounts — international equity securities — 2270 —

Pooied separate accounts — fixed income securities s 13,483 o

Guaranteed deposit fund i 1523 —
Total 3 - S 28,276 3 o

The fair value measurement of the retirement plan as of December 31, 2010, was as follows:

Fatr Valve Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Guoted Prices in Significant Sigmificant
Antive Markets for Oither Observable Unobservabie
{in thowsands} Edentical Assets Tty Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3}

Financial assefs measured on 2 recurring basis:

Pooled separate accounts —— U8, equity securities k3 — $ 106502 % -

Pooled separate accountis - international equity securities — 2.500 —_

Pooled separate accounts — fixed income securifies — G000 .

Guaranteed deposit fund — 1,640 o
Total $ — k) 24,647 5 —
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Oher Postrefirement Benefits

We provide certain postretirement health care, dental, and Jife insurance benefits Tor employees who may become eligible for these benefits.
We contributed $3.4 million , $3.1 million and $2.5 milfion to the postretirement benefit plan in 2611, 2010 and 2009 . rospectively. We
expect 1o contribute ap to $4.0 million to the plan in 2012,

The plan assets consisted of the following assets by categony:

Agset Category 2013 itk
Fixed income securities., 56.4% 33.2%
Equity securities 43.6% 46.8%

Total 100.0% T00.0%

Cur measurement of the acoumuiated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 and 2010 does:not reflect the potential
receipt of any subsidies under the Medicare Preseription Drug, Improvement and, Modernization Act of 2003.

Net postretirement cost for 2011, 2010 and 2009 includes the following components:

(ke thonsands} 2013 2010 2poy
Service cost % 3431 E 2,300 ¢ 1841
Interest cost 1,285 984 921
Ewpected return on plan assets (737 (#4697 (228}
Argortization of-prior service cost 313 313 314
Amaoriization éf.lﬂireco'gnized Toss - v 220 — 1o
Net postretirement cost $ 4512 $ 3,637 $ 3,014

The following able reconcies the oblizations, assets and funded status of the plans as well a5 the amounts recognized as acorued
postretivement lability i the.consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2011 and 2010

(In thvousands) 2011 2080
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Beginning accumulated postretirement obligation

% (22,4093} $ {17,757

Service cost {3,431} (2,809

Interest cost {1,285} {984}

Actuarizl netloss (3,925 (1,189}

Benefits paid 371 330

Ending accumnilated postretirement obligation £ {30.679) g {22,4093
Change in Plan's Assets:

Beginning plen assets at fair value g 9,763 g 5,830

Actudl] return on plan assets 364 250

Employer contributions 3422 3,083

Employer provided retiree premiums 371 330

Benefits pald {371 (338}
Ending plan assets at fair value 5 13,549 % 8,763

Fanded status, underfunded $ {17,150 $ {12 646)
Amounts recorded as:
Punded Status:

Accrued postretirement liabilities ) {17,130 3 {12,646}
Total ) {17.130% & {12 48
Unrecognized Amounts in Other Regulatory Agseis:

Net actuarial loss 3 7200 $ 3,121

Prior service credit 15 438
Total 3 7325 % 3,559

The unrecognized amounts that otherwise would have been charged and or credited to accumulated other comprehensive income associated

with the guidance for employers” accounting for pensions are recorded as & reguletory assel on our consolidated
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statements of financial position. The amounts recorded as a regulatory asset represeni a net. periodic beneflt cost to be recognized in our
operating income in future pericds,

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the benefit obli gation for 2011, 2010 and 2009 are 25 follows:

2811 path 26 2869
Biscount rate 5.00% 5.60% &6.00%
Annual rate of salary increases 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Rate to which the cost frend rate is assumed to decline 5.00% 5.60% 5.00%
Yearthat the rate reaches the ulfimate trend rate 2017 2016 2015
Arnmual rate of increase in dental benefit costs 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the bensfit cost for 2011, 2010 and 2909 are as follows:

2011 2010 260%
Discount rate 3.49% H:00% 595%
Annuel rate of salary increases 5.00% 5.00% 3.00%
Heglth carc .cost frend rate sssumed for next year &.00% o {0% 10.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline 3.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Yearthat therate reaches the vitimate trend rafe 2017 2018 HITS

At December 31, 2011, the projected benefit payments for the posiretirement benefit plan calculated using the same assumptions as those
used to caleulate the benefit obligations listed above are Hsted below:

(in thousanids)

2012 & 283
2013 411
2014 590
2015 _ ' 751
2046 ' 926
2017 through 2021 10,463

Assumed healih care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point
increage or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effents on costs for 2011 and the postrelirement benefi
obligation gt December 31, 2011 :

Gme-Percentage- One-Percentage.
(in thousandy) Foint Increase Foint Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost g 970 g 734
Effect on postretirement berefit obligation 3,790 (3,067

Tnvesement Objectives and Fair Value Measurement

The general investment objectives of the gualified other postretirement henefit plang include maximizing the refrn within reasonabie and
prudent levels of risk and controlling administrative and mansgement costs. The targeted asset zlocation is welghted equally between equity
and fixed income investments, Investment decisions are made hy our retirement benefits hoard as delegared by our board of directors. Equity
investments may include various types of U.S. and intemational equity securities, such as large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks. Fixed
income investmenis may include cash and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds, mortgages and other fixed
income investments. No investments are prohibited for use in the other postretivement plan, Wcluding derivatives, but our exposure to
derivatives currently is not material. We intend that the long-term capital growth of the other postretirement plans, together with employer
contributions, will provide for the payment of the benefit obligations.

We determine our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets based on the current target allocations of the retitement plan investments
and considering historical returns on comparable fixed income investments and equity mvestments,

The measurement of fair value is based on a three-tier hierarchy, which priovitizes the inpots used in mmeasuring fair value. These. tiers
include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markeis; Level 2, defined as inputs other
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than quoted prices in active markets that are sjther directly or indirectly observable; and Leve! 3, defined as unobservabie inputs in which ltile
or no market data exists. therefore requiring an entity 1o develop its own assumptions.

The fair value measurement of the other postretirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2011 , was as follows:

Fair Vitue Measurements a¢t Revorting Date Using

Oueted Prices in Signifivant Significant
Aetive Markets.for Other Observabie Unobservable
{in thousarnds) Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) tLevel 3y
Financial assets measared on 3 recurring basis:
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4 8 - § —
Pooled separate accounts — 1.6, equity securities — 858 —_
Pooled separate accounts -— international equity securities — 151 —
Pooled separate acoounts — fixed income securitieg e 916 o
Whrtual funds — equity securities 4,895 — —
Rutual fonds — fixed income secirities 41768 — -
Guaranteed deposit fund — 1,947 —
Total _ 3 9677 8 3,872 b —

The fair value measurement of the other postretirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2010 , was as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Guoted Pricesin Significant Sigwifieant
Active Markets for Gther Ghservabie Unobservahle
{Imx thonsands) Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets measured on a recurring: basis:
Cash and eash equivalents 5 27 0% — % —
Pooled separate-accounts — U.S, equity securities R 839 —_—
Pooled separate accounts — international equity securities e 188 —
Pocled separate-accounts — fixed income securities — 813 —
Mautual funds — equity seourifics 3,515 — —
Mutual funds —— fixed income securities 3.350 — —
Guaranteed deposit fund — 1,011 -
Total ' 3 6,802 § 2871 § -

Defined Contribution Plan

We also sponsor & defined contribution retivernent savings plan. Participation in this plan is available to substartially all employees. We
match employes coniributions up o certain predefined limits based upon eligible compensation and the employes’s contribution rate. The cost
of this plan was $3.4 million , $2.7 million.and $2.6 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009 . Tespectively,

12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTE

The measurement of feir value is based on a three-tier hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value, These tiers
include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inpuis other than gquoted prices in
active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which litfle or no market data
exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

Qur assets and lizbilities measured at fair value subjectto the three-tier hierarehy at Decenther 31, 2011, were as follows!

Fair Valge Mewsnrements at Reporting Date sine

Quoted. Prices in Siganifieant Significant
Active Markes for Other Observable Unobservable
(s thousands) Identical Asvers Inputs Inputs
{Level 1} {Level 2) (Lavel 3y

Financial assets measured on a recurring hasiy:
Cash and cash equivalents — cash equivalents 5 15004 % 34,246 g —
Murtua] funds — fixed income securities 13,551 . Exhibit CB-H1a —



Mutoal fonds -~ equity secarities 1.107 — —

Interest rate swap derivatives L — (24,258) —
Total 3 31662 § 9 988 3 —

Cur asgets measured at fair value subjéct to the three-tier hierarchy at December 31, 2010 . were as follows:

Fair Value Measarements at Reparting Date Using

Qumed;?ﬁces i Rignifcant Sigaificant
Active Markets for Oriker (bservable Unabservable
(§in thousands) idantical Assats Fnputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Fitaneial assets measured on a recurring basis:

Cash and cash equivalents — cash equivalents $ 18§ 84,726 § —

dutnal funds —fixed Income securities 479 - —

Mutug! funds — eqguity securities BY6 — —

Interest rate swap derivative. : — 3.899 —
Total 5 11365 § 87825 & -

Asof December 31, 2011 and 2010, we held certain asseis and Habilities that are required to be measured at fair value on 2 recurring hasis.
The assets included in the table consist of nvestments recorded within cash and cash equivalents and other Tong-term dssets, including
investments held in a trust associated with-our supplemental nonqualified, noncontributory. refirement benefit plans for selected management
employees that are classified as trading securities. The liabilities and assets related to derfvatives consist.of interest rate swaps. discussed. in
Nete 8 . Qur investments included in cash equivalents consist of money ‘market mutual funds and common and colleciive trusts that are
administered similar to money market Tunds recorded at cost plus accrued interest to approximate fair value. Ourmuotual fund nvestrments
consist primarily of publicly traded mutmal funds for which market prices are readily available. Changes in the observed trading prices and
liguidity of money market funds are monitored as additional support for determining fair value, and losses are recorded in earnings if f2ir value
fulls below recorded cost. The fair value of qur interest rate swap derivatives as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is determined based on a
discounted cash fiow method using LIBOR forward-interest swap rates which are observable at comimonty quoted intervals.

We also held non-financial assets that arerequired 1o be measured at falr valuz on a non-recurring basis. These consist of poodwill and
intangible assets. We did not record any impairment charges on long-lived assess and no other significant events cccwmed requiring non-
financial assets and liabilities to be measured at fair vaiue (subsequent to initial recognition) during the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010,

Falr Value of Financial Assets and Linbilities
Fived Rate Long-Term Debt

Based on the borrowing rates currently availaide for bank loans with similer terms and average maturities, the fair value of our consolidated
long-term debt, excluding revolving credi( agresments, was $2.862.6 milion and $2.747.2 million at December 31, 3011 and 2010 ,
respectively. The total book value of owr consolidated long-term debt, excluding revolving credit agreernents, was $2,444.0 million and
$2.443.5 million af December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively,

Revolving Credii Agreemenits

At Decerber 31, 2011 and 2010 , we had & consolidated total of $201:1 willion and $53.4 million respectively, outstanding under our

revolving credit agreements, which arervariable rate loans. The fair value of these loans approximates book value.
Trade Accounts Receivables and Puvables

As of December 31, 2011 , our accounts receivable and accounts payable balances approximate fair value die to their short term nature.

13, STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Commen Stock

General - 1TC Holdings” aathorized eapital stock consists oft
« 108 milion shares of comman stock, without par value; and
* 10 millicn shares of preferred stock, without par value.

As of December 31, 2011 |, there were 51,323,368 shares of our common stock outstanding, no shares of preferred stock oufstanding and
575 holders of record of our common stock.

Voting Rights - Bach holder of ITC Haldings™ common stock, including holders of our commoen stock subject to restricted stock awards, is
entitied to cast one vote for each share héld of record on all matters submitted to a voie of stockhoiders, including the elestion of directors.

Holders of ITC Holdings’ common stock have no cumulative voting rights.
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Dividends — Holders of our common stock, including helders of commen stock subject to restricted stock awards, are entifled to receive
dividends or other distributions declared by the board of directors. The right of the board of direstors o declare dividends is subject to the right
of any hotders of I'TC Holdings™ preferred stock, to the extent that any preferred stock is authorized and issued, and the availability under the
Michigan Business Corporation Act of sufficient funds to pay dividends. We have not issuad any shares of preferred stook. The declaration and
paymeni of dividends. is subjectto the discretion of ITC Holdings® board of directors and depends on varions factors, including our net income,
financie] condition, cash requirements, future prospects and ofher factors deemed relevant by ITC Holdings® board of directors.

As a holding company with n¢ business operations, ITC Holdings’ assets consist primarily of the stock and membership interests in iis
subsidiaries, deferred fax asseis and cash on hand. ITC Holdings’ only sources of cash to pay dividends to our stockholders are dividends and
other payments received by us from our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and any other subsidiaries we may have and the procecds raised
from the sale of our debt and equity securities. Each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, however, is legally distinet from ITC Holdings
and has o obligation, contingent or otherwise, to-make funds available to us for the pavment of dividends to ITC Holdings’ stockholders or
otherwise, The abiiity of each of our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries and any other subsidiaries we may have to pay dividends and make
other pavments to ITC Holdings is subject to, among other things, the availability of funds, after taking into account capital expenditure
requirements, the terms of itsindebtedness, applicable state laws and reguiations of the FERC and the FPA.,

Each of the TTC Holdings Revoiving Credit Agreement, the FFCTransmission Revolving Credit Agreement, the METC Revolving Credit
Agreement, the ITC Midwest Revolving Credit Agreements, the ITC Great Plains Revolving Credit Agregment and the note purchase
agreements governing ITC Holdings’ Senior Notes imposes-restrictions on ITC Holdings and #ts subsidiaries® respective abilitfes to pay
dividends if an event of default has occurred untler the relevant agteement, and thus ITC Holdings” ability 10 pay dividends on its common
stock will depend upon, among other things, our level of indebtedness at the time of the proposed dividend and whether we ar¢ in compliance
with the covenants under our revolving credit facilifies and our other.debt instruments. FTC Holdings™ futore dividend policy will also depend
on the requirements of any future financing agreements to which we may be 2 party and other factors considered relevant by ITC Holdings’
board of directors,

Pursuant to SEC requirements, Schedule I is required because of restiictions which [imit the payment of dividends to ITC Holdings by its
subsidiaries. ITCTransmission, METC, ITC Midwest and 1€ Great Plaing are restricted by their revelving-credit agreements in their ability to
pay dividends to ITC Holdings. In the event of default on eur revolving credit agreemetsts or non-compliance with the covenants under our
revolving credit agreements, we may not be able 1o disburse dividends. ITCTransmission, METC, [TC Midwest and ITC Great Plaing were in
compliance with the covenants-under their revolving credit agreements during 2011 .

Liguidation Rights — I TTC Holdings is dissolved, the holders of ovr sommon stack will share ratably in the distribution of all zssets that
remain after we pay all of our liabilities and satisfy our obligations to the holders of any of ITC Holdings® preferred stock, to the extent that any
preferred stock is authorized and issued,

FPreempiive aned Other Rights — Holders of our commen stock have no precimptive rights to purchase or subscribe for any of our stotk or
other securities of our company and there:are no conversion rights or redexption or sinking fund provisions with respect to our common stock,

Repurchases — In 2011, 2010 and 2006 , we repurchased 89,715 , 1,057 arid 700 shares of cormmon stock for an aggregate-of 36.4 million ,
501 million and less tun $0.1 million , respectively, which represented shares of common stock delivered to ug by emplovees as payment of
tax withholdings due to us upon the vesting of restricted stock.

FYC Holdings Sales Agency Financing Agreement

On July 27, 2011, 1TC Holdings entered into & Sales Agency Financing Agreement (the “BAFAT). Under the terms of the SAFA, ITC
Holdings may-issue and sell shares-of common stock, without parvalue, from time to time, up to an aggregate sales proceeds amount of $250.0
million , The SAFA terminates in July 2014, although the agreements relating @ the Estergy Transaction generally prohibit us from issuing
shares under the SAFA until approximately swo years after the closing sxcept under cértain limited circumnstances, The shares of common stock
may be offered in one or more selling periods. Any shares of common stock sold ander the SAFA will be offered at market prices vrevailing at
the time of sale. Moreover, ITC Holdings will specify to the sales agent (1) the aggregate seliing price of the shares of common stock to be soid
during each selling pericd, and (ii) the minimum price below which sales may not be made. ITC Holdings will pay @ commission equal to a
mutualty agreed upon rate with its agent, not to exceed 2% of the sales price of a1l shares of common stock sold throu gh its agent under the
SAFA, plus expenses, The shares we would issue under the SAFA have heen registered untler 17C Holdings® shelf registration statement on
Form §-3 (File No. 333-163716) filed on December 14, 2009 with the SEC. The prior ITC Holdings Sales Ageney Financing Agreement
expired ot June 27, 2011. No shares have been issued under either of these agreements.

i4. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Qur LTIP, which wes adopted in 2006 and most recently amended and resiated in 207 i, permits the compensation comumittes to make
grants of a varlety of share-based awards (such as options, restricted shares and deferred stock units} for a cumulative amount of up to
4,950,600 shares to emplovees, directors and consultants. The LTIP provides that no more than 3,250,000 of the shares may be granted as
awards to be settled in shares of common stock other than options or stock sppreciation rights. No awards would be permitted afier February 7,
2016. Prior to the adoption of the LTIP, we made various sharesbased awards under the 2003 Plan, including options and restricted stock. In
addition, our board of dizectors and-shargholders approved the ESPP, which we implemented effective April 1, 2007. The ESPP allows for the
issuance of an aggregate of 180,000 shares of our common stock. Participation in this pian is available 1o substentially all employvees. ITC
Heldings issues new shares to satisfy option exercises, restricted stock grants, employee ESPP purchases and settlement of deferred stock unis.

Exhibit C8-H1a



As of December 31, 2011, 2,092,891 shares were available for future issuance under our 2003 Plan, ESPP and LTIP, mcluding 2,100,056
shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options, of which 1,577,925 were vested.

We recorded share-based compensation in 2011, 2010 and 2009 as follows:

{In thossands) 2011 2010 2608
Operation and mainienance expenses i 2540 % 2008 % 1,581
General and adminisirative expenses 7,524 8074 4,859
Amounts capitalized to property, plant and equipment 5,327 4,702 3426
Total share-based compensation 5 15,391 3 14 874 $ 10,606
Tota] tax benefit recognized in the consolidated statement of aperations § 3,876 3 4,078 Y 2,621

Tax deductions that exceed the cumulative compensation cost recognized for options exercised, restricted shares that vested or deferred
stock units that are settled are recognized as common stork only if the tax deductions réduce taxes payable as a result of a-realized cash benafit
from the deduction. Forthe years ended Decentber 51, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , we recognized the tax offects of the excess tax deductions as an
increase in common stock of $28.1 million , $0.3 million and $0.1 willion , respectively, as the deductions have resulted in a reduction of taxes
pavable.

Options

Our option grants vest in equal annual installments over a fhree - or five -yedr period from the date of grant, or as a resilt of other events
such as death or disability of the option holder. The options have a term of 10 years from the grant date,

Stock option activity for 2011 was as follows:

Weighted
Numilier of Averuge
Ontions Exercise Price
Ourstanding at January 1, 2012 {1.778,45] exercisable with a wéiphted average exércise price of
£21.21) 2436742 2796
Granted 212,818 7215
Exercised ' (543,775) 3241
Forfeited {3,729) 4818
Ouistanding at December 31, 2011 (1,577,925 exercisable with a weighted average exercise piice
of $22:88) : 2.100.056 pS 3145
i memre—

Grant dat¢ fair value of the stock options awards granted during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was. determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Thefollowing assumptions were used in determining the weighted-average fair value per option:

2011 2018 2608
Optign Grants Cption Grants Option Grants
Weighted-average grant date fair value per opifon 5 18.77 b3 16.0% $ 11.93
Weighted-average expected volatility {a) 29.8% 37.4% 37.%%
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate : 2:1% 25% 24%
Weighted-average expected term (h) 6 years. 6 years 6 years
Weighted-average expecied dividend vield 1.86% 2,44% 2.95%
Estimated fair value of underlying shaves b 72.15 8 5247 8 41.37

{z) We estimated volatility using the historical volatility of our stock.

(b} The expected term represents the period of ime that options granted are expected to be outstanding. We have utilized the simplified
method permitted under share-based award accouniing standards in determining the expected term for all option gramts as we do not
have sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable hasis upon which to estimate expected ferm due {o the limited period of
time our-equity shares have been publicly traded.

At Becember 31, 2011 | the aggregate intrinsic value and the weighted-average remaining contractual term for all outstandin ¢ options were
approximately $93.3 million and 4.7 wvears, respectively. At December 31, 2011 | the aggregate intrinsic value and the weighted-average
remaining contractual term for exercisable options were $85.6 million and 3.5 years, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options
exercised during 2011, 2014 and 2009 were $20.5 million , $19.3 million and $7.5 million , respectively. Af Decembsr 31, 2011 | the rotal
unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested options awards was $5.1 million and the weighted-average peried. over which it ig
expected to be recognized was 1.9 vears,

We estimate that 2,088,211 of the options outstanding at December 31, 2011 will vest, including those already vested. The weighied-
average exercise price, aggregate intrinsic value and the weighted-average remaining contractual term for options shares that are vested and
expested to vest as of December 31, 2011 was $31.33 per share, $93.0 million and 4.6 years, respecively. Fxhibit CB-Ha



Restricted Stock Awards

Holders of restricted stock awards have all the rights of a holder of common stock of ITC Holdings, including dividend and veting rights.
The holder becomes vested as a result of certain events such as death or disability of the holder, but not later than the vesting date of the
ewards. The weighted-average expected remaining vesting period at Deceraber 31, 2011 3 1.4 years. Holders of restricted-shares may not sell,
transfer, or pledge their restricted shares until the shates vest and the restriciions lapse. Restricted stock awards arerecorded at fair value at the
date of grant, which is based on the closing share price on the grant date. Awards that were granted for future services are accounted for as
uneamned compensation, with amounts amortized over the vesting period.

Restricted stock award activity for 2011 was as follows:

MNumber.of Weighted.
Restricted Average
Stoek Grant Date
Awards Fair Yalue
Unvested restricted stock awards at January 1. 7611 885.340 3 4612
Granted 142,599 7127
Vested {260.346) 41,95

Forfeited 1801y 48 51

Unvested restricied stock-awards at December 51, 2011 % 3306

'8_-3{

The weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock awarded during 2010 and 2009 was $53.28 and $41.81 per share,
respectively: The aggregate fair value of restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2811 was 854.6 million . The aggregate fairvalue of
restricted stock awards that vested during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 was $20.7 million . $0.6 million and $0.3 million , respectively. At
December 31, 2011 , the total unrecognized compensation cost related to the restricted siock zwards was $17.1 million and-the weighted-
average period over which that cost is expected to'be recognized was 2.2 years.

As of December 31, 2011 | we estimate that 652,307 shares of the restricted shares outstanding at Deecember 31, 2011 will vest. The
weighted-average fair value, aggregate intrinsic value and the weighted average remaining conmacrual term for resiricted shares that are
expected to-vestis $52.63 per share , $49.5 million and 1.4 years, respectively.

Employee Sfock Purchese Plan

The ESPP is a compensatory plan accounted for under the expense recognition provisions of the share-based. payment accotnting standards.
Compensation expense is recorded based on the fair market value of the purchase options at the grant date, which corresponds fo the first day
of each purchase period and is amortized over the purchase period. During 2011 . 2010 and 2009 . employees purchased 23,027 , 24,840 and
28,681 sharcs, respectively, resulting in proceeds from the sale of our common stock of $1.8 million . 811 million and $1.1 million ,
respectively, under-the ESPP. The total share-hased compensation amortization for the ESPP was $0.2 million for each vear ended 2011 , 2010
and 2009,

Beferred Setock Units

Our deferred stock units are paid mn shares of common stock on each of the following three anniversatics of the grant date, in equal
installments. The deferred stock units do not contain any vesting provisions: that is, our commeon.stock wiil-be issued-at the anniversary dates
of the-grant dates irrespective of employment status. The deferred stock units do not provide-for any voting mghts unfif the deferred stock units
are delivered as shares of our common stock. The deferred stock units have dividend equivalent rights, providing the holder with the right to
any dividends declared on our common stock subseguent to the grant date, such that the holders receive additional deferred stock units, with a
fair market value equal to the cash dividends they would have reveived on the shares underlying the deferred stock units they hold as if such
underiying shares of common stock had been outstanding on the record date for the dividend. The additional dividend equivalent units granted
will be settled in shares of our common stock at the same time as the deferred stock units-on which the dividend eguivalents are received. The
deferred stouk units are niot transferable by the holders, but the shares issued upon each setilement date will be immediately transferable.

Deferrad stock unitactivity for 2011 was as follows:

Mumber of Weighted-
Deferrved Average

Stock Giramt Date

Units Fair Valoe
Deferred stock units at Janvary 1, 2011 3489 % 35.21
Granted e o
Vested {5485 55.21
Deferred stock units at December 31, 2011 $ o

The weighted-average grant date fair value of deferred stock units awarded during 2010 and 2008 was $57.60 and $43.54 per share,
respecitvely. As of December 31, 2011 , there were no deferred stock units outstanding, The aggregate Tair value el gafermdisfock units that



vested as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.4 million and $8.3 milkion respectively. As of December 31, 2011 , there is ne nnrecognized
compensation costs related to the deferred stock units.

15 HEINTLY OWNED UTILITY PLANT/COORDINATED SERVICES

Our MISO Regulated Operating Subsidisries have agreements with other usilities for the join{ ownership of substation assets and
transmission lines. We account for these jointly owned assets by recording property, phant and. equipthent for our percentage of ownership
interest. Various agreements provide the authority for construction of capital improvements and for the operating costs associated with the
substafions and lines. Generally, each party is responsible for the capital, operation and maintenance, and other costs of these jointly owned
facilities based upon each participant’s undivided ownership intersst. Our MISO Regulated Cperating Subsidiaries’ participating share of
expenses associated with these jointly held assets are primarily recorded within operating and maintenance expense on our consolidated
statement of operations.

We have investments in Jointly owned utility assets as shown in the table below. as of December 31,2011

Net Construction
(in thoasends) Investments {n) Work in Progress
Substations 5 19,191 § 1,395
Lines 83,771 —
Total 5 2R % 1,395

(a) Amount represents our investment in jointly held plant, which has been reduced by the ownership interest amounts of other parties.
ITCTransmission

The Michigan Public Power Agency {the “MPPA™) has a 50.4% ownership interest in two ITCTransmission 345 ¥V transmission lmes.
ITCTrapsmission’s net investment in these two lines totaled $21.5 million as of December 31, 2011 . The MPPA’s ownership portion enfities
them to approximately 234 MW of network transmission service over the ITCTransmission system. An Ownership and Operating Agreemeni
with the MPPA provides ITCTransmission with authority for construction of capital improvements and for the operation and management.of
the transmmission lines. The MPPA s responsible for the capits] and operating and maintenance costs allocable fo feir ownership interest.

METC

METC has joint sharing of several assets within various substations with Consumners Energy, other munieipal distribution systems and other
generators. The rights, responsibilities and obligations for these jointly owned assets are documented in the Amended and Restated Distribution
— Trangraission Imierconmection Agreement with Consumers Energy and in numerous Interconnection Facilities Agreements with various
municipalities and other generators, As of December 31, 2011, METC had net investments i jomtly owned assets within substations including
jointly owned assets under construction fotaling $12.2 million of which METC s ownership percentages for these jointly owned substation
assets ranged from 6.3% to 92.0% . In addition, the MPPA, the Wolverine Power Supply Cooperative, Ing, (the “WPSC™), and the Michigan
South Central Power Agency, (the “MBCPA™), sach have an ownership interest in several METC 345 &V transimission lines. This ownershin
eitifles the MPPA, WPSC and MSCPA to approximately 608 MW of network transmission service over-the METC fransmission system. As of
Deceraber 31, 2011 , METC had net investments in jointly shared transmission lnes totating $41.0 million of which METC’s ownership
perceniages for these jointly owned lines ranged from 35.2% to 64.5% .

ITC Midwest

I'TC Midwest has joint sharing of several substations and transmission Hres with various parties. As of December 31, 2081, ITC Midwest
had net investments in jointly shared substations facil#ties including jointly shared substations facilities under construction totaling $8.4 million
of which ITC Midwest's ownership percentages for these jointly owned substations facilities ranged from 48.0% to 70.0% . As of
December 31, 2011 |, ITC Midwest had net investments in jointly shared transmission Hoes totaling 321.2 million of which 1TC Midwest's
ownership percentage for these jointly owned Hnes ranged from 28.0% io 70.0% |

16, COMMITMENTS AND'CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Environmental Matters

Our Regulated Operating Subsidieries” operations are subiect to federsl, state, and local environmental laws and regulations, which impose
fimitations on the discharge of pollutants into the environment, establish standards for the management. treatment, storage, transportafion and
disposal of hazardous materials and of solid and hazardous wastes, and impose obligations to investigate and remediate contamination in
serian circumstances. Liabilifles to investigate or remediate confamination, as well as other lizhilities concerning hazardous materials or
contarminaiion, such as claims for personal injury or property damage, may arise at many locations, including formerly owned or operated
properties and sites where wastes bave been treated or disposed of, as welt as at properties currently owned or operated by owr Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries. Such Habilities may arise even where the comtamination does not result from noncommliance with applicable
environmental jaws. Under & number of environmental laws, such lisbilities may also be joint and several, meaning that a party can be held
responsible for more than s share of the Hability involved, or even the entire share. Environmental requirements gl CRiEhecome more



stringent and compliance with those reguirements more expensive. We are not aware of any specific developments that would increase our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” costs for such compliance in 2 manner that would be expected to have 4 maierial adverse effect on our
results of operations, fmancial pasition or Hquidity.

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries’ assets and operations aiso involve the use of materials classified as hazardous, tokic or ofherwise
dangercus. Many of the properties our Regulated Operating Bubsidiaries own or operate have been used for many vears, and include older
facilities and equipment that may be more likely than newsr ones to contain or be made from such materials, Some of these properties inélude
aboveground or underground storage tanks and associated piping. Some of them also include large electrical equipment filled with mineral oil,
which may contain orpreviously have contained PCBs. Qur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” facilities and equipment ave ofien situated close
i ot on property owned by others so that, if they are the source of contamination, other’s property may be affected. For example, aboveground
and underground transmission lines sometimes traverse properties that our Regulated Operating Subsidiarics do not own, and, &t some of our
Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” transmission stations, fransmission assets (ewned or operated by our Regolated Operating Subsidiaries) and
distribution assets (owned or operated by our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” transmission customer) are commingled,

Some properties in which our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries have an ownership mierest of at which they operate are, and others are
suspected of being, affected by environmentl contamination. Gur Regulated Operating Subsidiaries arenot aware of any pending or threatened
claims against them with respect to environmental contamination, or of any investigation or remediation of contamination at any properties,
that entail cosis likely to materially affeci them. Some facilities and properties are located near environmentally sensitive areas such as
wetlands.

Claims have been made or threatened against électric utilities for bodily injury, disease or other damages allegedly related to EXPOSUTE {0
electromagnetic fields associated with electric transmission and distribution lines, While our Regidated Operating Subsidiaries do not believe
thata causal link between electromagnetic field exposure and injury has been generally established and sceepted in the scientific community, if
suck-a relationship Is established or accepted, the liabilities and costs imposed on our business could be significant. We are not aware of any
pending or threatened claims. agaibst. our Regulated Cnerating” Subsidiaries: for bodily injury, discuse or other damages allegedly rélatéd to
exposure to eleciromagnetic fields and eleciric transmission and distribution Hnes that ertajl costs likely to have a material adverse effect on
our-results of operations, financial pesition or Hauidity.

Litigation

We are involved in certain legal proceedings before vartous couris, governmental agencies and medistion panéls concerning, matters arising
in the ordinary course of business. These proceedings inelude certain contract disputes, regulatory matters and pending judicial matters. We
caunot predict the final disposition of such proceedings. Weregularly review legal matters and record provisions for claims that are considered
probable of loss, The resolution of pending proceedings is not expected o have o material effect on our aperations or consolidated financial
statements in the perfod in which they are resolved,

Michigan Szlesand Use Tax Andis

The Michigan Department of Treasury conducted a sales and use tax audit of TTCTransmission for the mudit period April 1, 2005 through
June 38, 2008 and has denied ITCTransimission®s-usé of the indnstrial processing exemption from use tax it kas taken beginning January 1,
2007 ITCFransmission has certgin administrative-and fudicial appeal rights.

ITCTransmission believes that its utilization of the industrial processing exemption is appropriate and infends to defend itself against the
denial of such exemption, However, it is reasonably possible that the assessment of additional use fax could be sustained after all administrative
appeals and Iitigation have been exhausted.

The amournt of wse tax Hability associated with the exemptions taken by ITCTransmission through December 31, 2011 is estimated to be
approximately $8.7 million , which includes approximately $3.6 million assessed for the andit period April 1, 2005 ihrough June 30, 2008,
meluding interest. In the event i becomes appropriate fo tecord adéitional use-tax liakility relating to this matter, TTC Transenission would
record the additional use tax primarily as an increasc.to the cost of property, plant and equipment, as the majority of purchases for which the
exemption was taken relate to equipment purchases associated with capital projects. METC has also taken the industrial processing sxemption,
estimated to be approximately $10.1 million for periods sfill Subject to audit. These higher use tax expenses would be passed on to
ITCTransmission’s and METCs customers as the amounts are included as components of netrevenue requirements and résulting rates.

FERC Aundit of 1T Midwest

Certain staff of the FERC (“FERC audit staff”) have copducted an audit of ITE Midwest's complianee with certain of the FERC's
regulations and the conditions established in the 2007 FERC order approving the aequisition of the transmission assets of IP&T by ITC
Midwest, On September 30, 2011, FERC issued an order that identified certain findings and recommendations of FERC audit staff relating 1o
specific espects of the accounting treatment for the acquisition which, if approved by FERC, have the potential to resul in adiustments to ITC
Midwest's annual revenue reguiremnent caloulations and corresponding refunds for 2008 through 2010. On October 31, 2011, we filed a request
for hearing with the FERC to contest the findings relating to the accounting treatment for the acquisition. In Becember 2011, FERC gave notice
of the commencement of a contested paper hearing procedure and we filed cur initial memorandum on February 13, 2012. All parties who filed
by February 13, 2012 will have 20 days to file reply comments. We believe an unfavorabie outcome is reasonably possible for the ITC
Midwest findings. ITCTransmission and METC bhave applied an accounting veaiment for their respective acquisitions that is similar to ITC
Midwest. We do not beligve the resolution of the FERC audit staff findings will be material to our resulis of operations, cash flows or fimancial

condition.
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At December 31, 2011, we had purchase obligations of $73.3 million representing commitments for materials, services and equiprnent that
had not been received as of December 31, 2011, primarily for construction and maintenance projects for which we have an executed contract.
The majorily of the items relate.to materials and equipment that have lowg production lead times that are expected to be paid for in 2012.

We have operating leases for office space, equipment and storage facilities. We recognize expenses relating to our operating lease
obligations on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. We recognized rent expense of $0.7 million . $0.9 million and $0.4 millian for the
years encled December 31, 2011 | 2010 end 2009 | respectively, recorded in general and administrative und operation and maintenance
expenses. These amounts and the amounts in the table below do not include any expense or payments to be made under the METC Fasement
Agreement described below under “Other Commitments — METC — Amended and Restated Easement Agreement with Consumers Enerpy”

Future minimum lease payments under the leases at December 31, 2071 were:

{1n thousends}
2012
2013
2014
2015
2046 and thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

Other-Commitments

Our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries entered into an Operation and Mafnterdnee Agreement with its primary mairitenance contractor and a
Supply Chain Management Agreement with its primsry purchasing and {nvertery. management contractor. We aré not obligated to fake any
specified amount of services under the terms of the Operation and Maintenance Agreement or the Supply Chain Management Agreement,
which have five-year terms ending August 29, 2013 and automatically renew for-additional five year terms ealessterminated by either party. In
January 2012, we gave notice that we intend to terminate the Operation and Maintenance Agreement for all of our Regulated Operating
Subsidiaries no later than six months following the termination notice. We' are 7. the process of negotidting and expect to enter into a new
agreement with the same supplier prior to the end of the notice period and do not.anticipate any disruption in mdinienance services,

METC

Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement Sor Ancillary Services with Consumers Energy, Under the Purchase and Sale
Agreement for Ancillary Services with Consumers Energy (the “Anciliary Services Agreement”), Consumers. Ehergy provides reactive power,
balancing energy, load following and spinning and suppiemental reserves thal ave nesded by METC and MISO, These ancillary services are o
necessary part of the provision of transmission service. This agreement is necessary because METC does not own any generating facilities and
therefore must procure ancillary services from third party suppliers in¢luding Consumers Energy. The Ancillary Services Agreement
establishes the terms and conditions under which METC obtains anetllary services from Consumers Energy, Consumers. Energy will offer ail
ancillary services as required by FERC Order No. 888 at FERC-approved rates. METC is not precluded from procuring these services from
third perty suppliers-and is free to purchase anciflary services from unaffilisted generators located within is control area or in neighboring
Jjurisdistions on a non-preferential, competitive basis. This ene- year agreement became effective on May 1, 2002 and is automatically rencwed
cach year for successive one-year periods, with the most recent renewal effective May 1, 2011, The Ancillary Services Agreement can be
terminated by sither party with six months prior written notice. Services performed by Consumers Enezgy under the Anciliary Services
Agreement are charged to operation and maintenance expense,

Amended and Restared Ecsement Agreement with Consumers Energy. The Easement Agreement with Consumers Energy {the “Fasement
Agreement™) provides METC with an easement for transmission purposes and righis-of-way, leasehold interesis, fee nferests and licenses
agsociated with the land over which the mansmission Hnes cross. Consumers Dnergy has reserved for itself the rights to and the value of
activities associated with other uses of the infrastructure (such as far fiber aptics, telecommunications and gas pipelines). The cost for use of
the rights-of-way is $10.0 million per year. The term of the Easement Agreement runs through December 31, 2050 and is subject to 10
automatic 5§ -vear renewals theregfier. Payments to Cobsumers Energy under the Eazsemeni Agreement are charged o operation and
maintenance expense.

T Midwesst

Operations Services Agreement For 34.5 RV Transmission Facilities. TTC Midwest and P&L have enfered into the Operations Services
Agreement For 345 KV Transmission Fasilites (the “03$4™), under which P& performs certain operations of ITC Midwests 345 ¥V
fransmission system. The OSA will remain in full force and effect from year fo year thereafter until terminated by either party upon not less
than one year prior written notice to the other party.

Project Commitment.  In the Minnesota reguiatory proceeding to approve ITC Midwest's-December 20607 acquisition of the tansmission
assets of IP&L, TTC Midwest agreed to build & certsin project in lowa, the 345 IV Salem-Hazelton line, and made a commitment to use
comiercially reasonabie best efforts to complete the project prior to December 51, 2611, In the event ITC Midwest is found (o have failed 1o
meet this commitment, the allowed 12.38% rate of retrn on the actual equity portion of its capital structure would be retuced to 10.39% until
such time as ITC Midwest completes the projecr, and ITC Midwest would refund with interest any amounts collected since the close date of the
transastion that exceeded what would have besn collected if the 10.39% return on equity bad been used. Certain pemsbmwspprovals were



needed from the IUB before construction of the project could commence, but due to the [1IB's case schedule, these approvals wers not received
until the second quarter of 2011. As a result of the delay in the receipt of the necessary regulatory approvals, the project was not completed by
December 31, 2011. We believe we used commercially reasonable best efforis to meet the December 31, 2011 deadline and will continue to do
so. Therefore, we believe the likelihood of any materizl effect from this matier is remote.

IO Grear Plains

Amended and Restated Muinienance Agreement. Mid-Kansas Electric Company LLC (“Mid-Kansas™) and ITC Great Plains have entered
into a Maintenance Agreement (the “Mid-Kansas Agreement™), dated as of August 24, 2010, pursuant to whick Mid-Kansas has agreed to
perform various field operations and maintenance services related to the ITC Great Plafs Elm Creek ané Flai Ridge Sibstations, whish ITC
Great Plains has purchased from Mid-Kansas. The Mid-Kansas Apresment has an initial term of 10 years and avfomatic 1§ ~year renewal terms
unless terminated (1) due.to a breach by the nop-terminating party folowing notice ard faffure to cure, (Z3 by mutual consent of the parties, or
{3} by ITC Great Plains under certain Himited circumstances. Services must continue to be provided for at Teast six months subsequent 1o the
terinination date in any case,

Concentration of Credit Risk

CGur credit risk is primarily with Detroft Edison, Consumers Energy and IP&L. which were respansible for approximately 30.8% |, 26.0%
and 25.3% | respectively, or $233.4 million , $196.6 million and $191.7 million , respectively, of our consolidated operating revenues for the
year ended Deceniber 31, 2011 . These percentages and-amounts of total operating revenues of Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy and [P&L
include an estimate for the 2011 revenue accruals and deferrals that were ircluded in our 2011 operating revenues, but will tot be billed or
refunded to our customers until 2013, We have assumed that the revenues associated with the revenue aceruals and deferrals would he billed.ar
refunded to these customers in 2013 in the samé proportion of the vespective percentages of netwoik and regional cost shafing revenuves billed
to then in 2011 . Any financial difficultes experenced by Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy or IP&L could negalively impact our business.
MIBO, as cur MISO Regulated Operating Subsidiaries” billing agent, bills Detroit Edison, Consumers Energy, IP&L and other customers on a
monthly basis and coliects fees for the use of our tansmission systems. SPP bills customers of ITC Great Plains on 2 morithly basis and
collecis fees for the use of ITC Great Plains’ assets. MISO and the SPP have implementeéd strict eredit policies for its members’ cusiomers,
which #n¢lude customers using our transmission systems. In generdl, if these customers do 10t maintain their investment grade. credit rating or
have4 history of late payments, MISG and the $P¥ may require them ta provide MISO-and the SPP with a letter of credit-or cash deposit equal
0 the highest monthly inveiced amount over the previcus twelve months.

17 ENTERGY TRANSACTION

As of December 4, 2011, Entergy and ITC Holdings executed definitive agreements under which Entergy will divest and thén merge its
clectric transmission business with a whollywowned subsidiary of ITC Heldin gs. Energy’s electric transmission business consists of
approximately 15,700 miles of interconnected fransmission Hines 8t voltages of 69 KV and above and sssociated substations across Hs utility
service territory in the Mid-Sowth.

The terms of the transaction agreements call for Entergy to divest its electric transmission business o a newly-formed entity, Mid South
TransCo LLC {*Mid South TransCo™), and Mid South TransCo's subsidiaries, and distribute the equity interests in Mid South TransCo. to
Entergy's shareholders in the form of a tax-free spin-off. Mid South TransCo will then merge with a'newly-created merger subsidiary of ITO
Holdings in an all-stock, Reverse Marris Trust transaction, and will survive the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of [T Holdings. Priorto
the merger, we expeet (o effectuate 2 recapitalization, currently anticipated to take the form of 2 one-iime special dividend to investors holding
shares of ITC Holdings common stock immediately prior fo the completion of the Entergy Transaction . The merger will resultin shareholders
of Entergy receiving approximately 50.1% of the shares of pro forma ITC Holdings in exchange for their shares of Mid Seuth TransCo, with
existing shareholders of ITC Holdings owning the remaining approximately-49.9% of the combined company. In eddition, Entergy will receive
gross cash preceeds-of $1.775 billion from indebtedness that will be incurred by Mid South TransCo and its subsidizries prior fo the merger.
Completion of'the transaction is expected in 2013 subject to the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including the necessary approvals of
Entergy’s retail reguiators, the FERC and ITC Holdings' shareholders.

As of December 31, 2011 , we expensed external legal, advisory and financial services fees of $7.0 million and certais interna! iabor and
related costs of approximately $1.6 million related 10 the Fatergy Transacton recorded within general and adeministrative expenses, The
external and interndl costs related to the Entergy Transaction are not included as components of Tevemie requtirement at our Regalated
Operating Subsidiaries as they were mewrred at ITC Holdings.

18, SEGMENT INFORMATION
We identify reportable segments based on the criteria set forth by the FASB regarding disclosures zhout segmertts of an enterprise,
including the regulatory envirenment of our subsidiaries and the business activifies performed to earn revenues and tncur expenses.
Hegulated Operating Subsidiaries

We aggregate ITCTransmission, METC, ITC Widwest and ITC Great Plaias into one reportable operating segment based on their similar
reguiatory environment and economic characteristics, among other factars, They are engaged in the wansmission of glectricity within the
United States, eam revenues from the same types of customers and are regulated by the FERC. Their tariff rates are established using cost-
based formula rates.

I Holdings and Otier -
Exhibit CB-Hig



Information below for ITC Holdings and Other consists of a holding sempany whose activities include debt and equity fin

ancings and

general corporate activities and all of ITC Holdings® other subsidiaries, excluding the Regulated Operating Subsidiaries, which are focnsed

primarily on business development activities.

Regulated

Operating ITC Holdings Reconclliztions/
2811 Subsidiaries and Other Fiiminations Totaj
(in thousands}
Operating revenues 5 757465 8 486 (5543 § 757,397
Depreciation and amortization 04,520 461 — 94,981
Interest-expense 58,795 84,609 {468) 146,954
Income before income taxes 367,628 {101,194 — 266,434
Income tax provision'(henefit (b) 142,416 (48.667) - 94,749
Net income (4) 224,211 171,685 {224,211) 171,685
Property, planf.ené equipment, net 3404001 11,752 ot 3413825
Goodwill 050,163 e —_ 050,163
Total assets’{c) 4,711,274 2,845,182 [2.733.080) 4,823,366
Capital expenditures 554,692 7,633 (5,3943 556,931

Regulated

{O¥perating IEC Holdings Reconcilistions/
2010 Subsidiaries and Ciher Eliminations Tatal
(ks thousands)
Operating revenues % 696,885 % 25 (467) % 690843
Depreciation ané amorfizaticn ' 86,621 355 86,976
Interestexpense 54,083 87,665 (95) 142,553
income before income taxes 330,207 {(102.275) — 227,632
Income tax provision (benefity{b) 126:556 (44.302) — 82254
Net income (b)Y 203,651 145,678 (203.650) 145,678
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,867,008 5269 - 2,872,277
Goodwill 950,163 — — 950,183
Total assets () 4,187,374 2671027 (2,550:523) 4307873
Cuapital expenditures 391,252 45 (2896} 388401

Regulated

Operating ITC Holdings Reconcifiations/
2048 Subsidinries (a) snd Other Elmingiions Total
{in thoesands)
Operating revenues i 621,061 3 320 (35%) 5 621,018
Depreciation and amortization 85,622 327 s 83,049
Interest expense 49605 80,604 e 130,208
Incems before income taxes 297,241 (88.769) - 208,477
Income tax provision {benefitj{b) 113954 {36,382) — 77572
Net income {b) 183,287 130,900 {183.287; 130.90¢
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,835,826 6,238 — 2,342 On4
Goodwill 056,163 e — 530.163
Total assets (¢} 3,914,808 2,546,755 {2431.937) 4,029,716
Capital expenditures 410,684 47 (5,61%) 404,514

{a} Amoums include the results of operations from ITC Great Plains for the period Auvgust 18, 2009 through December 31, 2009, in
connection with ITC Great Plains impleinenting its cost-based formula rate in SPP.
(b} In December 2011, the Company converted MTH into 2 limited liability company which is treated as-a corporation for tax purposes. Prior
to December 31, 2011, METC was organized as a single-member limited liability company that was a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. METC was treated as a branch of MTH, which was taxed as a multiple-partner limited perinership for federal
income tax purposes. Since METC and MTH, its bnmediate parent, filed as a parmership for federal income tax purposes, they were
exempt from federal income taxes. As z result, METC did notvecord a provision for federal income tases in its statements of operations or
record amounts for federal deferred income tax assets or liabilities on its statements of financial position in 2010 and 2009, For FERC
regulatory reporting, however, METC computed theoretical federal income taxes as well as the associnted ¢afopredanenme taxes angd



included an annual allowance for income taxes in its net revenue requirement used to determirie its rates.

Effective for the reporting period ended December 31, 2011, METC records federal snd state income tdxes since the operating entity is no
longer held by a partnership. The Regulated Operating Subsidiaries segment now includes the allocation of taxes for METC for all periods
presenied.

{¢) Reconciliation of total assets results primarily from differences in the netting of deferred tax assets and labilities &t our Regulated
Operating Subsidiaries as compared to the classification in our consolidated statements of financial position.

1%, SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly earnings per share amounts may not sum to the totals for each of the years, since guarterly computation are based on weighted
average common sharesoutstanding during each quarier,

First Secontdd Thirg Hourth
(fnthousands, except per share data} Cruarier Quartes Cruzrter Ouarter (a) Yeur
2651
Operating revenies p 178,385 b 1B5.00% & 191303 $ 201610 8 757397
Operating Income _ 99,975 100,231 8,833 98,713 397,752
Nef income 42,002 42,996 44,024 42,663 171,688
Basic earnings per share 5 083§ 684§ 0.8 3 083 3 136
Diluted zamings per share 5 081§ 083 8 COBES % 082 % 3.31
2030 :
Operating reventies ¥ 161,288 0§ 168463 % 178020  § 180067 8§ 696,843
Operating income 85,348 8,808 93,213 89,862 ¥87,321
Net income 34,204 36,301 38,394 36,779 145678
Basic carnings per share kY 6.68 B 0.72 b 076 g 0,73 3 .89
Diluted earings per share 3 067 & 071 3 ¢75 § 071§ 284

(#) In the fourth quarter of 2011, we expensed externai legal, advisory and financial services fees of $6.9 miliion and certain internal labor
and related costs of approximately $1.5 million related to the Entergy Transaction of which certain of the external costs are not expected
o be deductible for income fax. The external and internal costs related to the Entergy Transaction are not included as componenis of
revenue requirément at our Regulated Operating Subsidiaries as they were incurred at TTC Holdings.

ITEM Y.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
BISCLOGSURE.

MNone,
ITEM %A,  CONTFROLS AND PROCEDIURES,

Management’s Report on Internal -Control Over Financia! Reporting Is included in Item & of this Form 10-K. The attsstation report of
Deloitte & Touche LLE, our independent registered public accounting firm, on the effectiveness of our intemal contral over financial reporting
is also included in lem 8 of this Form 10-E.

Discliosure Controls and Procedures

We maintein disclosure controls and procedures that are designed fo provide reasonsble assurance that material mformation required to be
disclosed in our reports that we file or submit inder the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC"s mafes and forms, and thit such information is acoumulated and cominunicated 1o our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Qfficer, as appropriate, te allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure. In
designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that a control system, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonzble, not absolute, assurdnce that the ohiectives of the control sysiem are met. Becanse of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaivation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all cortro! issues and instances of fraud, if any,
with 2 company have bean detected.

Az of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluaticn, under the supervision and with the participation. of cur

management, incleding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectivencss of the d.cgi%nb tzné% ﬁpﬁra‘tioﬁ of cur
Xt CB-Hia



disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure.controls and procedures are effective, atthe reasonable assurancs level,

Changes is Internal Contrd! over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2811 tha! have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materiatly affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM $B. OTIHERINFORMATION.

None.
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PART IH¥
FTEM 18, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item 1§ contained under the captions “Election of' Drirectors,” “Bxecutive Officers,” “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Gwnership Reporting Compliance,” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement and {excluding the report of the Audit
Committee) is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information reguired by this lrem Is contained under the caption “Compensatior of Executive Officers and Directors” in the Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item is contained under the caption “Security Ownership of Management and Major Shareholders™ in the
Prowy Statement and is:dncorporated herein By reference.
Haulty Compeusation Plans

At December 31,2011, the 2003 Stock Phrchase and Option Plan and the LTIP werein place, pursuant to which we grant stock options and
restrictedd stock and other equity based compensation to employess, officers, and directors, as well as the ESPP. Fach of these plang has been
approved by shareholders.

The following table sets forth cerain information with respect to our squity compensation plans st Deceriber 31, 2071 (shares in
thousands):

Namber of Shares
Remaining svailable

Mumber of Shares for Futaere dssuance
forbre Issued Weighted-Average Under Egnity
Upon Lxercise of Exercise Price of Compensation
Plan Cateogry Dutstsuding Gptions Omtstanding Options Plafes{a?
Equity compensation plans approved by sharehalders 2,100 $31.45 1,993

{a} Thenumber of shares remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans has been reduced by 1Y the commeon shares
issued through December 31, 2011 upon sxercise of stock options: 2) the number of comumon Shares fo be issued upon the future exercise
of outstanding stock options and 3} the number of restricted stock awards granted that have not been forfeited. The LTIP Imposey &
separate restriction so- that no more than 3,250,000 of the shares may be granted as awards to-be setfled in shares of common stock other
than options or stock appreciation rights.

FTEM13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item is contained under the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Corporate Governance — Diirector
Independence” in the Proxy Statement and.is incorporated herein by reforence.

ITEM 1.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES,

The information required by this ltem is contained under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm™ in the Proxy
Staternent and (s incorporated herein by reference.
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PARTIV
YTEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES,

{a} {1} Financial Statements:
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Report of Indéperdent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Staferients of Financial Position as of December 31,2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 3 1, 2011, 2010 and 2000
Censolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31,
2011, 20190 and 2009
Consolidated Stafements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2011,2010 and 2009
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{2) Financial Stetement Schedule
Schedule 1 — Cendensed Financial Information of Registrant
All other sehedules for which provision ismadein Regulation $-X. either (i} ave not required under the rélated instructions or
are inapplicable and, therefare, have been omitted, or {i1).the information required is included in the sonsolidated financial
statemients or thenetes thereto that are a part hereof.
{b) The exhibits included as part-of this report-are listed in the attached Exhibit Index, which is incerporated herein by reference. Af
the request of any shareholder, ITC Holdings will furnish any exhibit upon the payment of 2 fee of $.10 per page to cover
the cogts of farnishing the exhibit,
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SCHEDULE | — Condensed Finaneial Information of Registrant

ITC HOLDINGS CORP.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (PARENT COMPANY GNLY)

(i thousands, except share data)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from subsidianes.
Cither
Total current assers
Oither assets
Investment. ir subsidiaries
Dieferred noome taxes
Deferred financing fees (net of accumulated amortization of $6,590 and $5,397, respectively)
Ciher
Total other assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities
Agcounts payable
Actrued payroll
Accrued interest
Criher
Total current liabilities
Acerued peasion and postretirement iabilities
Derivative instraments
Other
Long-term debt (net of discounts of $2401 and $2,822, respectively)
STOCKEOLBERS EQUITY
Common stock, without par value, 100,006,000 shares authorized, 51,323,368 and 50,715,804
shares issued and outstanding at Drecernber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively
Retamed carnings
Accnnmulsted other comprehensive (foss) income
Total stockhotders® equity
TOTAL LYABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

December 33,

2013 Mg
49,240 § 71,384
47,815 49,645
o5 2.520
98,000 123,549

2,668,109 2,492,969
79,444 9,474

8,756 91054
41408 33877
2747717 2,545,414
2885706 § 2:668.963
5930 § 1,804
18,013 18,606
30,892 30,827
2,138 3.279
56,973 54.516
44923 35,811
24,258 —
1,081 2,025
1.459.509 1,459,178
043 Add 886,808
330,816 229,437
{15,368} 1.188
1,258,892 1117433
2.845.726 % 3668063

Exhibit CB-H1a



See notes to sondensed financial statements (parent company only).
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SCHEBULE ! — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

ITCHOLBINGS CORP.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

{in thousands)

Other Income

General and administrative expense
Interest expense-

Loss on extinguishient of debt
Other expense

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOMETAX BENEFIT

LOSS AFTER TAXES

EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES" WET EARNINGS
MET INCOME

Yesr Ended December 3%,

201 2019 Py

$ 2,55 § 1518 % 1:154
(11,409) (8,899) (5.539)
(§8.618) (87.610) (80,638
— — (1,263)
(517} (2813 (344)
(97.988) (95.272) (86,630}
(47:545) (41,457) (35.798)
(50.443) (53.815) (50,832}

222128 190,493 181,732

$ 171,685 % 145678 & 130,980
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Seenotes to condensed financial statements (parent company only).

72

Exhiblt CB-H1z



SCHEDULE I — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

ITC HOLDINGS CORP.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

{In thonsands)
CASHFLOWS EROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income fo et cash provided by operating activities:

Equity in subsidiaries' carnings
Dividends frot subsidiarics
Deferred incometax expense
Intevcompany fax. payments from subsidiaries
Share-based compensation. expense
Other
Changes ihagsets and liabilities, exvlusive of changes shown separately:
Accounisreceivable from subsidiaries
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Aocrued payroll
Accrugd interest

Tax benefit for excess fax deductions vfishare-based compensation

Other current kabilities
Other wos-clirrent assets and labilities. net
Net.cash provided by-operating actvities
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Equity contribution o sibsidiaries
Return of capital from subsidiaries
Froceads from sale ofsecuritiss
Purchases of secarities
Net cash used ininvesting activities
CASHFLOWS FRONM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of long-term deht
Repayment of long-term debt
Burrowings under revélving credit agreements
Repayments of revolving credit agreements
Issuance of common-stock '
Dividends on common stock
Tax benefit for excess tax deductionso¥ share-based compensation
Other

Net.cash (used in) provided byfinancing actvities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BEOUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS — Beginning of period
CABH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of period

Supplementary cash flows information:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid
Supplementary non-cash investing and financing activities:

Heuity transfers o subsidiaries

Year Ended Becernber 31,

2811 2018 2009
§ 171685 5 145678 130,900
(222.128) (196,493} (181,732
304,244 231,161 189,260
(54,663) (34.623) (31.776)
86,226 59,643 26,950
15.392 14,874 10,006
3423 2115 3,498
(11,062) {26.361) (14377
1566 (2.082) (1%)
4196 {1,539} (3423
(593) 4,958 3.319
&5 4475 517
(28,114) 3207 (126
26,184" 1,156 {2617
1.008 (1,806) (1,731
257,319 199776 131,668
(472 962 (141,904 #3252
228,600 i 3,493
3830 14576 —
8.136) (14,587 —
(248.861) (1414915) £149.027)
-~ — 298,670

— — (160,600

- — 90,715

— — (158.668)
18,693 8908 3578
(70,363) (66,041) (62.408)
28,114 320 179,
(7.546) (247) (3.443)
30,8023 (570603 $2.570
(22,144} 801 51,211
71,384 70,583 19,372
S 49240 0§ 71384 S 70,583
S RGG40 5 Bl4iE 78,181
34,127 § 844 1,967
12,492 7,450 4,149

See notes to comdensed financial statements (parent company only),
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SCHEDULE I — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
ITC HOLDINGS CORP.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

. GENERAL

For ITC Holdings Corp.’s (“ITC Holdings,” “we,” “our” and “ns™) presentation {Parent Company only}, the. investment in subsidiaries s
accounted for using the equity method. The condensed parent company financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction-with the
consolidated financial statements and notes of TTC Heldings appearing in this Annual Report.on Form 10K,

As a holding company with no business operations, ITC Holdings’ assets consist primarily of investments in our subsidiaries, deferred tax
assels Telating primarily to foderal ineome tax operating ioss carryforwards and cash, ITC Holdings” material cash inflows are only from
dividends and other payments received from our subsidiaries and the procesds raised from the safe of debt and equity securities. ITC Holdings
may not be able to access cash generated by our subsidiaries is order 1o fulfill cash commitments or to pay dividends to shareholders. The
ability of our subsidiaries to make dividend and other payments to us is subject to the availability of funds after taking into aceount their
respective funding requirements, the terms of their respective indebtedness, the reguations of the FERC under the FPA, and applhicable state
laws, Each of our subsidiaries, however, is legally distinct from us and has no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make funds available to
ug. :

2. LONG-TERM DEBY
Asof December 31, 2011 | the maturities of our long-term debt dutstanding were as follows:

(in thowsands)

20102 3 —
2013 267,000
2014 50,000
2013 e
2016 : 255,000
2017 and thereafter 894,000
Tatal ® 1,462,600

P~

P ——————

Refer to'Note 8 1o the consolidated financial statements for a description of the ITC Holdings Senior Notes and the ITC Holdings Revolving
Credit Agreement and related items. Based on the borrowing rates currently availabl to us for loans with similar terms and average maturities,
the fair value of the ITC Holdings Senior Notes is $1,681.9 millien at December 31, 2011 . The total book value of the ITC Holdings Senior
Notes net of discount is §1,459.6 million at December 31, 2011 .

At December 31, 2611 |, we weresin compliance with all. debt covenants.

3. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

ITCTransmission, MTH, ITC Midwest and other subsidiaries paid cash dividends to ITC Holdings totaling $304.2 million, $231.1 million
and $185.2 million in 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively. ITCTransmission, MTH, ITC Midwest and other subsidiaries recognized & return of
capital to TTC Holdings totaling $228.6 million and $3.5 million in 2011 and 2009 , respectively, No return of capital was recognized in 2010 .

Additionalty, ITCTransmission paid $51.6 million, $52.8 million and $23.5 million to ITC Holdings under an intercompeany tax sharing
arrengement during 2011, 2010 and 2009 , respectively. MTH paid $23.3 million, $3.5 million and $3.5 million to ITC Holdings under an
intercompany tax sharing arrangement during 2011 , 2010 and 2009 , respectively, Additionally, ITC Midwest paid $11.3 miliion and $3.3
million o ITC Holdings under an intercompany tax shaving arangement during 2011 and 2010, respectively. No payments were made by TTC
Midwaest in 2009 .
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SIGNATURES

Purguant fo the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) the Securifies Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report-ic be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Novi, State of Michigan, on February 22, 2012,

FPC HOLDINGE CORP.
By: 8/ JOSEPH L. W BLCH

Joseph L. Welch
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities end on the dates indicated:

Siunsture Title Date
/4 Y OsEPH L. W ELGH Chairman, President and Chief February 22, 2012
Joseph L. Welch Executive Qfficer {principal executive officer)
s/ C AMERON M. B READY Executive Vice President and Chief February 22, 2012
Cameron M. Bready Fmancial Officer {principal financial officer

and principal accounting officer}

/8/-C HRISTOPHER H. F RANELIN DHrector February 22, 2012
Christopher H. Franklin

73/ E DWARD Q.. EPEEN Dirvecter February 22, 2012
Bdward G. Jepsen

/afBOICTHEARD DL M ¢ L ELLAN I¥irector February 22, 2012
Richard . McLellan

/87 W nLiaw L M USELER Director Febmary 22, 2012
William. J. Museler

isf B OAZEL RUOOCL BEARY Director Febroary 23,2012
Hazel R. O'Leary

s/ M. M IcBARL R 0UNDS Director February 22, 2012
M. Michael Rounds

i3/ G ORDON B ENNETT S TEWART , I Director February 27, 2012
Giorden Bennett Stewart, 111

8/ LEE C.S TEWART Director February 22, 2012
Lee T Stewart

/s/ J.C. W ATTS, TR _ Director February 22, 2012
J1.C. Watts, Ir.

Exhibit CB-H1ia



EXBIBITS

The following exhibits are filed as part of this repart or filed previously and incorporated by reference to the filing indicated. Cur SEC file
number is 001-32576.

Exhibit Me,
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4.1
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4.0

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10
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4.14

Descrintion of Hxhibit

Merger Agreement, dated as of Decernber 4, 2011, among Entergy Corporation, Mid South TransCe LLC, Registrant and
ibis Transaction Subsidiary LI.C (filed with Regiswant's Form 8-K filed on December 6, 201 1}

Separation Agreement, dated as‘of December 4, 2011, among Entergy Corporation, Registrant, Mid South TraneCo LLC,
Entergy Arkansas, Inc., Entergy Gulf States Lowisisna, L.L.C. Entergy lLouisiana, LLC, Entergy Mississippi, Inc.,
Entergy New Orleans, Inc., Entergy Texas, Inc. and Entergy Services, Ine. {filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on
December6,.2011} '

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (filsd with Registant’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1, as amended, Reg: No. 333-123657)

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Regisirant dated as of February 16, 2011 (filed with Registrasit's 2010 Form 10-
K}

Farm of Certificate of Common Stock (filed with Registrant’s Registration Staiement on Form §-1, ds aménded, Reg. No.
333-123657)

Indenture, dated as of Joly 16, 2003, between the Registrant and BNY Midwest Trugt Company, as trustee {filed with
Registrant’s Registration Statemnent on Form $-1, as amended, Reg.No.333-123657)

First Supplemental Indentare, dated as of July 16, 2003, supplemental to the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2003, between
the Registrant and BNY Midwest Trust Gompany, as trustee (filed with Regisorant’s Repistration Statementon Form 8-1,
as amended, Reg. No. 333-123657)

First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of Juty 15, 2003, between International Transmission Company and BNY
Midwest Trugt Company, as trusiee {filed with Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, as amendad, Reg. No.
333-123657}

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2003, supplementing the First Muortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of
July 15, 2003, between International Transmission Company and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee (filed with
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1, as amended, Reg. No. 333-123657)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of fuly 15, 2003, supplementing the First Mortgage and Deed of Trast dated as
of Faly 13, 2003, between International Transmission: Company and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as frusies (filed with
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1, a8 amended, Reg. No. 333-123657)

Amendment to Second Supplemental Indenture, dated 2§ -of January 19, 2003, between International Transmission
Company and BNY Midwest Trast Company, as trastee (fled with Registrant’s Regisiration Statement on Form 8-1, as
amended, Reg, No. 333-123657)

Second Amendment to Second Supplemental Indersure, dated as of March 24, 2006, between Internstional Transmission
Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. {as successor to BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee
{filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on March 30, 20967

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as. of Wareh 28, 2006, supplementing the First Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as
of July 15, 2003, between International Transmission Company and BNY Midwest Trust Campany, as trustee (filed with
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on March 30, 2006)

Second Bupplemertal Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2006, supplemental fo the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2003,
between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., {28 successor to BNY Midwest Trust Company,
as trustee} (filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October 18, 20063

First Mortgage Indenture between Michigan Electrie Transmission Company, LLC and JPMorgan.§ fﬁ&fg_ﬁ&;gk, dated as of
December 10, 2003 (filed with Regigirant’s Form 10-Q for the guarter ended September 30, 2006)



4.15

416

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 10, 2003, supplemental to the First Mortgage Indenture between
Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, dated as of December 10, 2003 {filed with
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 10, 2003, supplemental to the First Mortgage Indenture between
Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, o the First Mortgage Indenture between
Michigan Ejectric Transmission Company, LLC and JEMorgan Chase Bank, dated as of December 18, 2003 {filed with
Registrant’s Form 10~} for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)
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4.17

4.18

4£.19

4.2G

4,22

423

424

425

4.26

4.27

4.28

429

Deseription of Exhibit

ITC Holdings Corp. Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 20, 2007 {filed with Registrant’s Form 10-G for the
guarter ended September 30, 2007)

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated us of January 24, 2008, supplemental to the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2003,
between the Registrant and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A_ (as successor to BN'Y Midwest Trust Company),
as trustee (fled with Registrant’s Form. 8-K. filed on January 253, 2008)

First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of January 14, 2008, between ITC Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (filed with Registrant’s Form8-K filed on February 1, 2008)

First Supplemental Indenture, deted as of January 14, 2008, supplemental to-{he First Mortgage Indenture between ITC
Midwest LLC and The Bank of New Vork Trust Company, N:A., as trustee, First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as.of
January i, 2008 {filed with Regisirant’s Form 8-K filed on Febraary 1, 2008)

Fourth Suppiemental Indenture, dated ns of March 25, 2008, between Irdernational Transmission Company and The Bank
of New York Trust Company, N.A.,.as trustze, 1o the First Mortgage-and Deed of Trust dated ag of July 15, 2003 (filed
with Registrant’s Form 8-K. filed o March 27, 2008)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated ag of December 171, 2008, E}EEWEGI‘{ METC and The Bank of New Yeork Mellon Trust
Company, N.A. (as successor fo JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A), as trustes, to the Hirst Mortgage Indenture hetween
Michigan Electrie Transmission Company, LLC and FPMorgan Chase Bank, dated &s of December 10, 2003 {filed with
Registrant’s Form §-K filed on December 23, 20083

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 13, 2008, between ITC Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York.
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. {as successor to The Bank of New York Trust Company. MN.A.), as trustee, to the First
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of January 14, 2008 (filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed om December 23, 20083

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 25, 2008, between METC and The Bank of New York Melion Trust
Company, N.A. (as successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.), as trustee, to the First Mortgage Indenture between
Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, .dated as of December 10, 2003 {filed with
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2008} '

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 11, 2009, between ITC Holdings Corp. and The Bank of New York
Melion Trust Company, N.A. (fik:a. The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as suceessor to BNY Midwest Trust
Compaiy}, as trustee (filed with Registrant’s Form 8K filed on December 14, 2009}

Fourth: Suppiemental Indenture, dated s of December 10, 2009, between ITC Mithwest LLC and The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (as successor to The Bank of New York Trust-Company, N.ALJL as tristee (Died with
Registrant’s. Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2009).

Fifth Supplemertal Indenture, dated as of April 20, 2010, between Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC and
The Bank of New York Melion Trust Company, N.A. {25 suctessor to JPMorgan Chase Bank), ws trustee (Bled with
Regisirant’s Form 8-K filed on May 10, 2010

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2008, between ITC Midwest LLC and The Bank of New York
Melion Trust Company, N.A. (The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A,), as trustee (iled with Registrant's Form 10-
Q for the guarter ended Jung 30, 2011)

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2011, between ITC Midwest LLO and The Bank of New Yark Mellon
Trust Company, N.A. {as successor to The Bank of New YVork Trust Company, N.A.), as trustee (filed with Registrant's
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011)

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 29, 2011, between ITC Midwest LLE and The Benk of New York
Mellen Trust Company, N.A. {as successor 10 The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.), as trustee (filed with
Registrant’s Form 8K filed on December 1, 20611) Exhibt CB-H1a



*10.13

*10.27

10.28

Amended and Restaied 2003 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Regisirant and its Subsidiaries
(filed with Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, as.amended, Reg. No, 333-123657)

Deferred Compensation Plan {filed with Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, Reg. No. 333-
123657)

Service Level Agresmermt— Construction and Maintenance/Engineering/Systern Operations, dated February 28, 2003,

between The Detroit Edison Company and International Transmission Company (fied with Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, s amended, Reg. No. 333-123657}
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*10.34

*10.35

*10.38

*10.44

*10.45

*10.46

*10.48

10.52

10.58

16.5¢

10.61

10.62

10.63

Description of Exhibit

Forr of stock option agreement for executive officers under Aziiended and Restated 2003 Stock Purchase and Option Plan
for Key Employees of the Registrant and its subsidiaries (filed with Registrant’s Form10-Q for the quarter ended
Septémber 30, 2005}

Form of restricted stock award agreement for directors and executive officers under Amended and Restated 2003 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Registrant and its subsidiaries (filad with Registrant’s 2005 Form 10-
K}

Amendment No. | dated as of February & 2006, to Amended and Restated 2003 Steck Purchase and Option Plan for Key
Employees of the Registrant (filed with Registrart’s Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2006)

Form of Restricted. Stock Award Agreement for Nop-emmployee Directors under Awmended and Restated 2003 Steck
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Registrant and its subsidiaries {filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed
on August 18, 2008)

Farm of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Employees under the Registrant’s 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan (filed
with Registrant’s Form §-K filed or August 18, 2006)

Ferm of Stock Option Agreement for Employees under the Registrant’s 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan {Hled with
Registrant’s Form $-K filed on August 18, 2006)

Summary of Stock Ownership Agreement, effective August 16, 2006, for Registrant’s Directors and Executive Officers
(filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on August 18,.2008)

Form of Amended and Restated Easement Agreement between Consumers Energy Company and Michigan Electric
Transmission Company {(filed with Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)

Amendment and Restatement of the April 1, 2001 Operating Agreement by and between Michigan Eleciric Transmission
Company and Consumers Fnergy Company, effective May 1, 2002 (filed with Registrant's Forem 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006}

Amendment and Restatement of the April 1, 200} Purchase and Sale Agreement for Ancillary Services between
Consumers Energy Company and Michigan Electric Trausmission Company, effective May 1, 2002 (filed with
Registrant’s Form {0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2007, among the Registrant, as the Borrower, Various Financial
Institutions and Other Persons from Tine to Time Parties Hereto, as the Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., zs the
Administrative Agent, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., a5 Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, and Comerica Bank,
Credit Suisse (Caymen Islapds Hranch) and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSE, as Co-8yndication Agents {filed with
Registrant™s Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2007)

Revolving Credit Agreement. dated.as of March 29, 2007, among International Transmission Company and Michigan
Etectric Transmission Company, LEC, as the Borrowers, Various Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time o
Time Parties Hereto, as the Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the Administrative Agent, J.P. Morgan Securities
Inc., as Sele Lesd Arranger and Sole Bookrupner, and Comerica Bank, Credit Suisse {Cayman Islands Braneh) and
Lchman Brothers Bank, PS8, as Co-Syndication Agents {filed with Registrant®s Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2007)

form of Distribution-Transmission Interconnection Agreement, by and between ITO Midwest LELC, as Transmission
Owner and Interstate Fower and Light Company, as Local Distibution Company, dated as of Decermnber 17, 2607 {(fled
with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2007)

Form of Large Generater Interconnection Agresment, entered into by the Midwest Independent Transmission System
Operator, Inc., Interstate Power and Light Company and ITC Midwest LLC (filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on
Dwcember 21, 2007}

. : : . . Exkibit CB-Hia . .
Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of Januaery 29, 2008, among 1TC Midwest LLC, asthe Borrower, Varicus Financial



*10.64

#1065

Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time Parties Hereto, as the Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the
Administrative Agent, IP. Morgan Sccurities Inc., as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Booknunner, Credit Suisse (Cayman
Islands Branch}, as Syndication. Agent and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, as Documentation Agent {filed with Registrant’s
Form '8-K filed on January 31, 2008}

Form of Amended and Restated Executive Group Spectal Bonus Plan of the Registrant, dated November 12, 2007 {filed

“with Registrant’s 2007 Form 10-K)

Form of Amended and Restated Special Bonus Plan of the Registrant, dated November 12, 2007 (filed with Registrant’s

2007 Form 10-K}
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10.67

*10.68

W76

*10.71

1072

*10.73

*10.74

*10.75

*10.76

1077

#10.78

*10.99

*10.80

*10.81

*10.82

*10.83

Descrintion of Exhibit

Commitment Increase Supplements of the Lenders, dated December 27, 2007, related to-the Revalving Credit Agreement,
dated as of March 29, 2007, among International Transmission Company and Michigan Elecitic Transmission Company,
LLC, ss the Borrowers, Various Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Tine Parties Hereto, as the
Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the Administrative Agent, 1.7, Morgan Beourities Inc., as Sole Lead Arranger
and Sole Bookrunner, and Comerica Bank, Credit. Suisse {Ceyman Islands Branch) and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSR, as
Co-Byndication Agents (flled with Registrani’s 2007 Form 10-1)

Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated February 25, 2008, pursuant to the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Play of
Registrant; between the Registrant and Joseph L.Welch (filed with Registrant’s Form 100 for the quarier ended March
31, 2008)

Sales Agency Financing Agreement, dated June 27, 2608, berween Registrant and BNY Mellop Capital ‘Markets, LLC
{filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on June 27, 2008)

Form of Amendment te Stock Option Agreement under 2003 Plan (Initial Option) (August 2008) (filed with Registrant™s
Formm'8-K. filed on August 19, 20068)

Foru: of Amendment to Stock Option Agreement under 2003 Plan {120 Option) {August 2008} (Bled with Registrant’s
Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2008) '

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Agreement under 2003 Plan {Augest 2008) '(:ﬁ]ad with Registrani’s Form §-K
filed on August 19, 2008)

Form: of Amendment to Management Stockholder’s Agreement {August 2008) {filed with Registrant’s Form §-K filed on
August 19, 2608

Form of Amendment t¢ Stock Option Agreement under 2006 LTIP fAugust 2008} (filed-with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed
on August 19, 2608}

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Agreement under 2006 LTIP) {Augnst 2008) {filed with Registrant’s Form 8-
filed on Auvgust 19, 2008

Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2006 LTIP {August 2008) (filed with Registrant’s Formy 8-K filed on August 19,
2008)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2006 LTIP {Augunst 2008) (filed with Registrant’s Form &K filed on
August 19, 2008)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Non-employee Dirsctors under Amended and Restated 2003 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Registrant and its subsidiaries (filed with Registrant’s 2008 Form 10-
K)

Meanagement Suppleraental Benefit Plan (fled with Registrant’s 2008 Form 16-363
Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan {filed with Registzant’s 7008 Form 10-K)

Hmploymenl Agreement between the Regisirant.and J oseph L. Welch (filed with Registrant’s 2008
Ferm 16-K)

Form of Employment Agreements between the Registrant and Linda H. Blair, Jon E. Jipping, BEdward M. Rahill, Daniel 7.
Gginsky and Cameron Bready {filed with Registrant’s 2008 Form 10-K)

Tenm Loan Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2009, among the Registrant, as the Borrower, Various Finanoial Institutions
and Other Parties from Time to Time Parties Thereto, as the Lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, as the Adminisrative
Agent, 1.P. Morgan Securities inc., as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookranner, and PNC BanE.x%tti@ggll ,\%ss;ociation., as
Syndication Agent (Bled with Registrant®s 20609 Form 10-K)



10.86

First Amendment, dated as of July 22, 2010, to the Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2007, among the
Registrant, as borrower, the lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Banl, N.A.. as the adminigtrative agent, 1.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., as sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, and Comerica Bani, Creé;t Suisse, Cayman 1slands Branch and
Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB as co-syndication agents (filed with Registrant’s Form 8- filed July 27, 2010}
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10.87

10.88

10.89

080

.51

*10,93

16.94

10.95

10.86

*10.97

*10.98

10.99

10100

Beserintion of $xhibir

First Amendment; dated as of July 22, 2010, to the Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March' 29, 2007, among
International Transmission Company and Michigan Electric Transmission Company, LLC, #s borrowers, the lenders party
thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, NLA., ae the administrative agent, 1.P. Morgan Secutities Inc., 25 sofe lead grranger and
sole bookrunner, and Comerica Bank, Credit Suisse, Cayman Isiands Branch and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB as co-
syndication agents {filed with Registrant”s Form8-K filed July 27, 2010)

Second Amendment, dated a5 of July 22, 2018, to the Revoiving Credit Agreemend, dated as of January 29, 2008, among
ITC Midwest LLC, as borrower, the lenders party thereto, IPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent, 1.P.
hMeorgan Securities Inc., as sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, Credit Suisse, Cayman Istands Branch g3 syndication
agent and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB as decumentation agens (filed with Registrant’s Form 8-K fliéd .on July 27, 2010y

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 11, 2011, among FTC Midwest LLT, as the Borower, Various
Financial Institutions and Other Persons from Time to Time Parties Hereto, as the Lenders, J Piorgan Chase Bank, N.A
as the Administrative Agent and LP. Morgan Securities Inc., ag Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner (filed with
Registrant’s Form 8- filed on February 17, 2011}

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 16, 2011, amonyg ITC Great Plaing, LLC, as the Borrower, Various
Financial Institwtions and Other Persons from Time to Time Parties Herete, as the Lenders, Credit Sulsse &G, Cayman
Isiands Branch, as the Administrative Agent, Credii Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Morgaen Stanley Senior Funding,
Inc., as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as Syndication Apent
{Tited with Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2011)

Amendment and Restaternent of the April 1, 2001 Distribution-Transmission Interconnection Agreement by znd between
Michigan Diectric Transmission Company. LLC as Transmission Provider and Consumers Energy Company as Local
Distribution Company, effective September 1, 2016 (filed with Registrant's 2010 Form

10-K3

Letter Agreement, dated ag of February 1, 2011, hetween Edward M. Rehill and ITC Holdings Corp. {filed with
Registrant’s Form 16-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 17, 2011, among ITC Holdings Corp., as the borrower, various financial
institutions and other persons from time to time parties hereto, as the lenders, IPMergan Chase Bank, N.A., as
atiministrative agent, L.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Barclays Capital, as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners, and
Barclays Capital, a¢ syndication agent (filed with Registrants Form 8-K on May 18, 2011)

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as.of May 17, 2011, among International Transmission Company, as the borrower,
various financia! institutions angd other persons from time to time parties hereto, as the lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administraiive agent, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Barclays Capital, as joint lead arrangers and joint
bookrunmers, and Barclays Capital, as syndication agent (flled with Registrant’s Form 8K on May 18,2011}

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 17, 2011, among Michigan Flectric Transmission Company, LLC, as the
borrower, various financial institetions and other persons frow time to Hme parties hereto, as the lenders, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as adminisirative ugent, 2. Morgan Securities LLC and Barclays Capital, as joint lead arrangers and joint
bookrunners, and Barclays Capital, as syndication agent {Bled with Registrant’s Form 8-K on May 19,2011

Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan effective May 26, 2011 (filad with Registrant’s Form 8-K
on June 1, 2011}

ITC Holdings Corp. Enmployee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated May 26, 2011 {fited with Registrant’s Form
B-KonJune i, 2011

Sales Agency Financing Agreement, dated July 27, 2011, between Registrant and Deussche Bank Securities e, (filed
with Registrant's Form 8-K filed on July 27, 2011)

Amended and Resiated Generator Intercovnection Agreement entered into by and among Miché%%r{"bl@&%gg{iga"ﬁansmissi011
. i - o e L e . -
Company, LLC, Consumers Energy Company and the Midwest Independent Transmission system {perator, Ing.,



effective August 1, 2011 (filed with Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011)

10,101 Employment Matters Agreement, dated as of December 4, 2011, among Entergy Corporation, Mid South TransCo LLC
and Registrant (filed with Registrant's Form §-X filed on December 6, 2011)

21 List of Subsidiaries
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Exhibit No. Breserintion of Exhibit
231 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP relating to the Registrant and subsidiaries
311 Certification of Chief Executive Offiver pursuant 1o Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted
pursuantito Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chiel Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securilies Exchange Act.of 1934, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanss-Oxley Act of 2002
32 Centification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350, as adopted pursusnt to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
FHLH1INS ABRL Instance Document
##101L.5CH ZBRIL Taxonomy Extension Schems
FEIQL.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
#1017 DEF KXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Datzhase
**101L.LAB KBRL Taxohory Extension. Label Linkbase
**101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Exlension Presentation Linkbase
* Management contract or comipensatory plan or arrangement.
fd KBRL {Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed herewith, is not a part of 2 registration

statemsent-or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Secwrities Act of 1933, is deemed mot filed for purposes of section
18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, arid otherwise is not subjest to liability under these sections.

Exhilit CB-H1a



1ZAT

e AT

Exhibit CB-H1a



EXHIBIT 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OR 15D-14¢A), AS ADOPTED PUBSUANT TC SECTION 367 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT GF 20642

I, Joseph L. Welch, certify than

i
2.

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ITC Holdings Comp.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not.contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a marerial fact nECessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such staterments were made, not misleading with respect to the

period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial staterents, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this

report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s).and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Aot Rules T3a-15(e) and 15d-15{e}) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15¢1}) for thetegistrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure contrels and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be designed under our
supervision, 1o ensure that material information relating to the registrant, inchiding its- consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to.us by others within those entities, particularly during the peried in which this report is being prepared;

b Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such interna? control over fnancial reporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reperting and the preparation of
financial staterents for external purposes in atcordance with generally accepted acoceunting principles;

¢.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures #nid presented in this report our conclusions
ahiout the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evalaation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s infernal contral over financial reporting that oecarred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected, or is
reasonalily likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal conirol over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and T have disclossd, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over Tinaneial

reporiing, to the registrant's auditors and the audit commines of the registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the

equivalent fupctions):

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or eperation of internal control over financial reporiing which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to recard, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b. ny fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employses who have a significant role in the registrant's
mternai control éver financial reporting.

Dated: February 22, 2012

/s Joseph L. Welch

Joseph L. Welch
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION FURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OR 15D-14(A), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TG SECTHON 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT:-OF 2002

L Cameron M. Bready, certify that:

L

2

Lix

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ITC Holdings Corp.;

Based o my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of & material fact or omit fo state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumsiances under which such statements were made, not isleading with respect fo the

period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

Tespects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this

report;

The registrant's other certifving officer(s) and T are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controis and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(e) and 15d-15(e)} and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchunge Act

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disciosurs controis and procedures 1o be designed under our
supervision, o ensure that material information relating to-the registrant, incinding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
tous by others within those-entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal contrs] over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed

under owr supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation. of
financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generaily acoepted accounting principles:

¢, Hvaluated the effectivencss. of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented. in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controis and procedures, as ¢f the end of the period coveraed by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d.  Disclosed in this report any ¢hange in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that oceurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected,.or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting: and

The registrant's other certifying officer{s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the

equivalent functions):

a.  All significant deficienciss and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contral over fnanoial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
interndl control over financial reporting.

Dated: Febroary 22, 2012

/s/ Cameron M. Bready

Cameron M. Bready
Executive Vice President and Chief Finansial Officer

Exhibit CB-H1a



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.K.C. SECTION 1350, AB ADOPTED PURSUANY TO SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-
GXLEY ACT OF 2002

In comnection with the-Annual Report of ITC Holdings Corp. (the “Registrani”} on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 22, 2012 (the “Repart™), we, Joseph L. Welch, President & Chief Executive
Officer of the Registrant, and Cameron M. Bready, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, certify, pursuant o
18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(2) or 15(d) of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934; and

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

Diated: February 22, 20112

/87 Joseph L. Welch

Joseph L. 'Welch
President and Chief Executive Officer

fsf Cameron M. Bready

Cameron M. Bready
Exsoutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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